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ORDINANCE

JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.050

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
JERSEY CITY ADOPTING THE GARFIELD AVENUE
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council seeks renewed investment and development within the redevelopment
area; and

WHEREAS, fhe following amendment removes the redevelopment plan area from the R-l Zone Dis&'ict
and creates a new "GarEeld Avenue Redevelopment Plan" to guide development; and

WHEREAS, the attached Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan has been reviewed by the Jersey City
Planning Board at its meeting of April 07,2015;and

WHEREAS, fhe Planning Board voted favorably to recommend adoption of the Garfield Avenue
Redevelopment Plan by the Municipal Council; and

WHEREAS, a copy offhe Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan is attached hereto and made a part hereof,
and is available for public inspection at the Offices offhe City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey
City, NJ; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE FT ORDAMED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the
attached Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan be, and hereby is, adopted as recommended by the Jersey
City Planning Board.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

B. Thisordinanceshallbeapartofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and set foitii tally herein. The City Clerk shall
liave this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers,
article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conSict
between those numbers aad the existmg code, in order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions.

B. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this
Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to NJ.S. 40;55D-15 and
NJ.S. 40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed
to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County
Planning Board asrequiredtiyN.J.S.40;55D-16. The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after
final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.J.S. 40:49-2.1.

Robert D. Cotter, PP, FAICP, Director
Division of City Planning
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This summary sheet is to be attached to the fi-ont of any resolution/ordinance that is submitted for Council

consideration. Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution/ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance/ResoIution

ORDINANCE OF THE 1VTOMCIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ADOPTING THE GARFIELD AVENUE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN
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Matt Ward, AICP
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Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Purpose

This ordinance adopts the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan. The area straddles Garfleld Avenue and is

bounded by Arlington Avenue, Wilkinson Avenue, the mid-block lot lines between Marcus Street and

Bayview Avenue, and a paper street called Commercial Street. There are 17 tax lots included in fhe Area.

The Area, though adjacent to residential uses and zoned R-l (one- and two-fanoily residential), is a mix of

warehousing, light industrial, service and commercial uses. The Plan divides the area into two sub-districts -
the Adaptive Reuse District and the Residential District.

I certij?rfhat aU^hejacts-oresented herein are accurate.
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Signalfiir^ofD^artirient Director Date



Summary

ORDmANCE OF THE MU1MCIPAL COUNCU. OF THE CITY OF
JERSEY CITY ADOPTING THE GARFIELD AVENUE
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

This ordinance adopts the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan. The area

straddles Garfield Avenue and is bounded by Arlington Avenue, Wilkinson

Avenue, the mid-block lot lines between Marcus Street and Bayview

Avenue, and a paper street called Commercial Street. There are 17 tax lots

mcluded in the Area. The Area, though adjacent to residential uses and

zoned R-l (one- and two-family residential), is a mix of warehousing, light

industrial, service and commercial uses. The Plan divides the area into two

sub-districts — the Adaptive Reuse District and the Residential District.



Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

Division of City Planning

Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE: April 8, 2015

TO: Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Bob Cotter

FROM: Matt Ward, AICP

SUBJECT: Ordinance to adopt the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan

The ordinance before you is to adopt the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan.

This Redevelopment Plan is a result from the designation of the Garfield Avenue Study
Area as a non-condemnation redevelopment area. There is no use of eminent domain
in this plan and does not have an acquisition plan.

The area is in Ward F and is bounded by bounded by Bayview Ave, Arlington Ave,
Wilkinson Ave and Commercial Street (paper street). The area contains 17 tax parcels
on either side of Garfield Avenue. The area is currently zoned R-1 but consists of
industrial and commercial uses. The redevelopment plan has two sub-districts: the
adaptive reuse zone and the residential zone.

The adaptive reuse zone is limited to simply that reuse of existing buildings. The
Adaptive Reuse zone permits business incubator, community center, artist studio
workspace as well as other some other uses. The residential Zone has a height bonus
provision for the inclusion of affordable housing units. For every 10 units market, 1 unit
is affordable. Lastly, the Residential Zone has a second height bonus to create a public
walkway to the an area in Canal Crossing that is planned to be a park.
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REDEVELOPMENT PLAN
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INTRODUCTION

On _ the Jersey City Municipal Council determined, by Resolution # _, the
Garfield Avenue Study Area to be an "area in need of redevelopment," pursuant to the New Jersey Local Housing
and Redevelopment Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-1 et seq.).

The purpose of the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan is to encourage and facilitate the development of

undemtilized, abandoned, and neglected properties.

The Jersey City Master Plan lists several specific objectives and recommended actions which guide the standards
and requirements for this plan. These include:

» Acknowledge distinct characteristics of residential neighborhoods through design standards. The scale

of new development should be consistent-with the neighborhood.

• Encourage adaptive reuse of obsolete buildings, especially industrial facilities.

• Promote the creation of incubator space.

The Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan Area is approximately 5.2 acres located in the Bergen-Lafayette
neighborhood of Jersey City, relatively adjacent to the New Jersey Turnpike exit 14B. The area straddles
Garfleld Avenue and is bounded by Arlington Avenue, Wilkinson Avenue, the mid-block lot lines between

Marcus Street and Bayview Avenue, and a paper street called Commercial Street. There are 17 tax lots included
in the Area. The Area, though adjacent to residential uses and zoned R-l (one" and two-family residential), is a
mix of warehousing, light industrial, service and commercial uses.

I. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A map of the boundary, entitled, Map 1: Boundary Map, dated December 12,2014, is attached and shall govern
the boundaries of this redevelopment plan.

II. REDEVELOPMENT PLAN OBJECTIVES

This Redevelopment Plan is intended to compliment and rejuvenate the Garfield Avenue blocks and
underutilized buildings therein. The Redevelopment Plan provides for mixed use and residential development.

Renewal activities for the Garfleld Avenue Redevelopment Plan Area will be undertaken in conformity with,

and will be designed to meet, the following objectives of the Redevelopment Plan:

A. No acquisition of private property.
B. Encouragement of the rehabilitation and adaptation ofunderutilized, vacated, deteriorated and

obsolete structures including unused industrial buildings, which, in their current state, adversely
affect the feasibility of amenable neighborhood physical change and further development of an

emerging area.

C. Provision of land in parcels of sufficient size and configuration so as to permit economic

redevelopment.



D. Provision of site improvements for the beautiflcation of the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment
Plan Area and surrounding neighborhoods.

E. Provide for redevelopment without public acquisition or relocation of residents and business
concerns.

F. Coordinate redevelopment activities to provide a uniform and consistent attack on blighted,
dilapidated, and obsolete structures within the Area.

III. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

A. The regulations and controls in this section may be Implemented where applicable by appropriate
covenants, or other provisions, or agreements for land disposition and conveyance executed

thereto.

B. There shall be no restriction of occupancy or use of any part of the project area on the basis of

race, creed, color, age, gender, marital status or national origin. No lease, conveyance or other

instrument shall be executed by a developer or any of his successors or assignees, whereby land

within the project area is restricted upon the basis of race, creed, color, age, gender, marital status
or national origin in the sale, lease, use or occupancy thereof.

C. No building or structure shall be const-ucted over public rights-of-way or easements without the
written approval of the Municipal Engineer and site plan approval by the Planning Board.

D. Prior to commencement of construction, site plans for the construction and/or rehabilitation of

improvements to the project shall be submitted by the developer to the Planning Board of the
City of Jersey City for review and approval, so that compliance of such plans with the
redevelopment objectives can be determined.

E. No use or reuse shall be permitted, which, when conducted under proper and adequate conditions

and safeguards, will produce corroslve, toxic or noxious fumes, glare, electromagnetic
disturbances, radiation, smoke, cinders, odors, dust or waste, undue noise or vibration, or other

objectionable features so as to be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare.
Roasting operations involving food products are recognized as producing some fumes and
smoke. Such operations shall not be prohibited if the applicant can show such to comply with
commonly accepted health and emissions standards for such operations.

F. No Junked motor vehicles or parts thereof shall be permitted to be stored on the premises of any
service station.

G. All residential redevelopment proposals and construction plans shall meet or exceed applicable
F.H.A. and/or H.F.A. minimum room size requirements prior to Board approval.

H. The provisions of this plan specifying the redevelopment of the project area and the requirements
and restrictions with respect thereto shall be in effect for a period of forty (40) years from the

original date of approval of this plan by the Jersey City Municipal Council, provided however
that any development or redevelopment projects that are commenced and/or completed within

said forty (40) year period shall be deemed to comply with all applicable laws, as long as they
comply with the provisions of this Redevelopment Plan.

I. Prior to commencement of construction, site plans for the construction and/or rehabilitation of
improvements to the Area shall be submitted by the developer to the Planning Board of the City
of Jersey City for review and approval so that compliance of such plans with the redevelopment



objectives can be determined. Site plan review shall be conducted by the Planning Board

pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-1 et. seq. Applications may be submitted for the entire project or m

any number of phases.

As part of any site plan approval, the Planning Board may require a developer to furnish
performance guarantees pursuanttoNJSA40:55D-53 etseq. Such performance guarantees shall
be in favor of the City in a form approved by the Jersey City Corporation Counsel. The amount

of any such performance guarantees shall be determined by the City Engineer and shall be
sufficient to assure completion of on and off site improvements within one (1) year of final site

plan approval.
J. All utility distribution lines and utility service connections from such lines to the project areas'

individual uses shall be located underground.
K. No use or reuse shall be permitted, which, when conducted under proper safeguards, will

produce corrosive, toxic or noxious fume, glare, electromagnetic disturbances, radiation, smoke,.

cinders, odors, dust or waste, undue noise or vibration (60 decibels), or other objectionable
features so as to be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare.

L. All residential redevelopment proposals and construction plans shall meet or exceed applicable

FHA minimum room size requirements prior to approval by the Planning Board.
M. Any subdivision of lots and parcels of land within the Redevelopment Area shall be in

accordance with the requirements of this plan and the Land Development Ordinance (LDO) of
Jersey City.

N. Upon demolition of existing structures, the site shall be graded and planted or sodded, with a
dm-able dust free surface in the interim period prior to construction of new buildings.

FS^. TYPES OF PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT ACTIONS

It is proposed to substantially improve and upgrade the Garfield Avenue Redevelopment Plan Area through
redevelopment action, including the adaptive reuse of existing structures and complementary development on
remaining un- and underdeveloped sites.

V. TRAFFIC CIRCULATION OBJECTWES AND GmDELINES

A. Parking and service access should be separated from Garfield Avenue to the greatest extent
possible. Access areas shall be clearly designated and designed so as to avoid the backing in and
out of vehicles onto the street ROW.

B. Sight triangle areas at all intersections shall be kept clear ofplantings and structures by limiting
heights to a maximum of thirty (30) inches.

C. The pedestrian circulation system shall be integrated with the roadway circulation network and
shall encourage safe and improved pedestrian circulation through the following:

1. The focus of the streetscape improvements along primary pedestrian corridors;
2. Encourage design features, materials and activities at the street level which create an

attractive and interesting pedestrian environment;



3. Insure the safety of pedestrians by providing adequate sidewalk space and clearly defined

pedestrian crossings;
4. Direct new development to minimize pedestrian and traffic conflicts.

D. All sidewalks and pathways must be designed to provide ease of access for the physically
disabled. Access ramps shall be conveniently placed and sloped at a maximum of 8.5 percent to
provide easy connection to streets and sidewalks. Design standards shall meet, at a minimum,
barrier free design regulations as specified in the Uniform Construction Code.

VI. INTERIM USES

Interim uses may be established, subj ect to agreement between the developer(s) and the Planning Board that such use

will not have an adverse affect upon existing or contemplated development durmg the interim use period. Interim
uses must be approved by the Planning Board which may establish an interim use period of up to three (3) years in

duration. Additional renewals of an interim use may be granted by the Planning Board.

VII. DEVIATIONS

The PlanningBoard may grant deviations from the regulations contained within this redevelopment plan, where, by
reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape of a specific piece of property, or by reason of exceptional
topographic conditions, pre-existing structures or physical features uniquely affecting a specific piece of property, or

by reason of an extraordinary and exceptional situation uniquely affecting a specific piece of property, the strict
application of any area, yard, bulk or design objective or regulation adopted pursuant to this redevelopment plan,
would result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue hardship upon, the

developer of such property. The Planning Board may also grant such relief in an application relating to a specific
piece of property where the purposes of this redevelopment plan would be advanced by a deviation from the strict
requirements of this plan and the benefits of the deviation would outweigh any detriments. No relief may be granted

under the terms of this section unless such deviation or relief can be granted without substantial detriment to the
public good and will not substantially impair the intent and purpose of this redevelopment plan.

Notice, pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-12.a. and b., shall be given by an applicant seeking such relief.

VIII. SPECIFIC LAND USE PROVISIONS

This redevelopment plan authorizes the planning Bo^rd to identify, review, and approve the site improvements and
building Improvements, including the fa9ade design of all buildings within the redevelopment plan area.

A. Adaptive Reuse District
1. Permitted Uses

a. Residential
b. Work/Live Artist Studios

c. Artist Studio Workspace
d. Restaurants, category one and two

e. Retail



f. Business Incubators

g. Community Center
h. Daycare center

i. Adult Daycare center
j. Senior Housing
k. Assisted Living Residence
1. Long Term Care facilities
m. Combinations of the above

2. Accessory Uses - customarily associated with, subordinate and incidental to the
principal use, and located on the same lot:

a. Garage on-Site/off-street Parking & Loading Facilities
b. Fences & Walls

c. Signs

d. Recreation rooms, exercise rooms, resident meeting rooms, roof top

recreation areas, and other similar rooms and facilities for the use of building
residents.

3. Area Yard, and Bulk Requirements
a. The adaptive re-use of these properties shall exempt the area, yard and bulk

requirements, provided that the coverage is not increased by more than 5%
b. Height - vertical additions are permitted, provided that the height is not

increased by more than two stories or a total height of 60 feet, whichever is
less. Vertical additions must be set back from the existing facade a minimum

of twenty feet (20;).

4. Parking
a. Parking shall be provided to the greatest extent practicable considering the

constraints of each site and prioritizing the preservation of the existing
structures. The Board shall consider each application and determine if the

parking proposed is appropriate. It may be necessary for the applicant to
convert a portion of the existing building into a parking garage.

B. Residential District
1. Permitted Use:

a. Multi-family Residential.
2. Accessory Uses - customarily associated with, subordinate and incidental to the

principal use, and located on the same lot:

a. Off-street Parking.

b. Fences and walls.

c. Home Occupations.

d. Signs.

e. Recreation rooms, exercise rooms, resident meeting rooms, roof top

recreation areas, and other similar rooms and facilities for the use of building



residents.

3. Area, Yard and Bulk Requirements
a. All existing lots at the time of adoption of this plan are conforming but may

not be reduced in size. The creation of flag lots shall be prohibited.
b. All lots must have sole frontage on Garfield Avenue. Any lots currently

existing that do not have frontage on Garfield Avenue but are in common
ownership with a lot fronting on Garfield Avenue must be consolidated.

c. Density is not regulated by floor area ratio or units per acre in this zone.
Instead, a "building envelope" is defined.

d. Subdivisions must conform to the following minimum standards:

i. Mmimum lot area: 7,500 square feet
ii. Minimum lot frontage on Garfield Avenue: 75 feet
iii. Minimum lot width: 75 feet

iv. Minimum lot depth: 100 feet
e. Required Front Yard Setback:

1. Minimum 5 feet
ii. Maximum 10 feet

f. Required Side Yard Minimum:

i. Minimum 5 feet

g. Minimum Rear Yard:
1. 30 feet

h. Floor-to-ceil ing height:
i. 9 feet minimum.

i. Maximum Building Height:
i. 5 stories and 55 feet.

j. Maximum Lot Coverage
i. 75%

4. Parking Standards:

a. Minimum of 1 off-street parking space per dwelling unit
b. Compliance with requirements in the Off-Street Parking and Loading

Requirements section below.

c. Parking must be provided in an interior garage at or below grade.
d. Maximum twelve foot (12') driveway and curb cut width
e. For lots with one hundred feet of street frontage or less, there shall be no

more than one vehicular egress point per lot. For lots with 101 feet of

frontage or more, there may be one egrees point for every hundred feet of
frontage or portion thereof.

5. Bonus Provisions - in recognition of the benefits of pedestrian access between Garfield

Avenue and the planned Canal Crossing Redevelopment Area, as well as the growing
need for affordable housing citywide, the following bonus is offered:



An additional story and 1 1 feet of height, for a maximum of 6 stories and 66 feet of
height are permitted when the following are all provided:

a. A privately held and maintained 600 square foot pedestrian plaza is developed for
24-hour public use. The Developer and its successors and assigns must agree to
maintain and repair the plaza in accordance with a Developer's Agreement
entered into with the Planning Board. This plaza must have a minimum of

twenty (20) feet of linear frontage along Garfield Avenue.
b. A privately held and publicly maintained pedestrian extension of Wilkmson

Avenue, extending roughly perpendicularly from Garfield Avenue to the Canal
Crossing Redevelopment Plan boundary at the paper street known as Commercial
Street. This walkway must be a minimum of 8 feet wide, employ barrier free
design, and be sufficiently lit for safe passage.

c. Minimum lot size must meet the standards set forth above.
d. Minimum sidewalk width along Garfield Avenue must be ten (10) feet.
e. Affordable housing and workforce housing shall be provided, as follows:

i. For every ten (1 0) residential units constructed, a development shall be
obligated to include one unit that is affordable to households of low,
moderate, or work force income. In addition, a redeveloper shall be

permitted to construct a bonus" market rate unit for every low,

moderate, or work force income unit constructed. The result being that
out of every eleven (11) units constructed, one will be an affordable or
workforce unit.

il. Affordable housing shall be defined the same as affordable housing that

is a part of a fair share plan housing element as approved by Superior
Court and/or the Counsel On Affordable Housing (COAH) or the City of
Jersey City. Workforce housing shall be defined as housing affordable to
households with a gross household income equal to more than eighty
percent (80%) but not more than one-hundred and twenty percent

(120%) of the median gross household income for households of the
same size.

iii. Affordable housing requirements may be further defined and obligated

as part of a Redevelopment Agreement between the City of Jersey City

Redevelopment Agency and a designated redeveloper. Where such a
Redevelopment Agreement exists, the .affordable housing requirements
of that agreement shall take precedent over this section of the

Redevelopment Plan.
iv. Where a redevelopers agreement does not exist, the mix of low income,

moderate income and workforce units, the number of bedrooms and
other attributes of the affordable and workforce housing shall be

mutually agreeable to the City and the Redeveloper.

C. Signage

I. Each commercial use fronting on a public street may be allowed one (1) exterior sign, not



to exceed 20 square feet.

2. Signage for apartment buildings is limited to aNameplate or awning identification, not to

exceed two (2) square feet.
3. Temporary Construction Signs - One sign for each project or development indicating the

name of the project or development, general contractor, subcontractor, financing

institution and public agency officials (where applicable). The sign area shall not exceed
32 square feet and shall be attached (where there is an existing structure) or freestanding
(where there is new construction).

4. Sign Standards
a. All signs shall be mounted flush to the face of the building.
b. No sign shall be animated or flashing.

c. Roof signs, billboards and signboards are prohibited.
d. Window signs are prohibited above the ground floor level and shall not

exceed 20 percent of the window surface to which the display appears.
e. Freestanding signs, except for those indicating direction, transportation,

circulation and street parking are prohibited.

f. All signs are subject to site plan review.

D. OfF-Street Parking and Loading Requirements

1. All requu'ed parking spaces must comply with size and aisle standards set forth in the Land

Development Ordinance. Parking facilities utilizing automated mechanical pai'kmg systems
or a valet parkmg system are exempt from these dimensions; applicants must show that
proposed valet parking lots will be lEunctional.

2. Off-street parking and loading areas shall be coordinated with the public street system
serving the project area In order to avoid conflicts with through traffic or obstruction of

pedestrian walks and thoroughfares. Developers shall demonstrate that sufficient off-street
parking and loading will be provided to meet the needs of the proposed use.

3. Parking setback areas shall be adequately landscaped to provide buffer and visual screening.
4. The developer / applicant shall demonstrate that sufficient off-street loading is provided to

accommodate the anticipated demands of the building and proposed uses. All loading shall
be located off-street; all loadmg shall be designed to reduce conflicts with pedestrian and

other traffic to the greatest extent practical.
5. Interior garage lighting shall utilize only fixtures that will not readily expose the lighting

source from view, thereby maintaining a soft illumination of the interior garage space.
Individual fixture sources shall not be visible from the exterior. An internal lighting plan

prepared by a lighting professional shall be included with any garage application for review
and approval

6. Projects are subject to bike parking standards as outlined in the Land Development
Ordinance

7. Where indoor parking is proposed in new buildings, the following standards apply:

a. Garage level(s) to be screened so as not to give the apparent perception of garage
space from street rights-of-way and from adjacent property lines.



b. Examples of various acceptable screening and fa9ade treatment techniques which
can be utilized include the following:

i. Artificial windows of the punched out style utilizing glass or
decorative grillwork or a combination of same.

ii. Artificial building facade wrapping around the exterior of the garage.
iii. Extension of the ground floor or second floor window design to upper

floors without the glass, but utilizing the same detailing, design, and

window frame color.

iv. The addition of comices, lintels, quoins, and other decorative
detailing in addition to all the other fa9ade designs.

v. Emphasis of a vertical exterior facade pattern instead of the
horizontal cladding associated with parking garages and their

structural members.

IX. DESIGN OS JECTIV^S AND REQUIREMENTS

A. Building Design - General
1. Building design shall be guided by the general characteristics of the surrounding properties

and the surrounding neighborhoods.
2. All structures within the Redevelopment Plan Area shall be situated with proper

consideration of their relationship to other buildings, both existing and proposed, in terms of
light, air and usable open space, access to public rights-of-way and off-street parking, height
and bulk.

3. Buildings should be designed so as to have an attractive, finished appearance when viewed
from all vantage points within and outside the Redevelopment Plan Area.

4. All major mechanical equipment located on the roof of any building shall be screened from
view with materials harmonious with those used in the building's facade. The screening shall

not impair the functioning of the equipment.
5. New construction shall be encouraged to provide a top which shall serve to finish the

building. Said top may be in the form of a cornice, a parapet, or any other indicator
consistent with the design, proportions, materials and character of the building.

6. All electronic communication equipment shall be mounted m such a way that it does not
negatively impact the appearance of the building on which it is placed, nor create
objectionable views when seen from surrounding buildings.

7. Access by the elderly, physically handicapped and/or disabled shall meet, at a minimum,
barrier free design regulations as specified in the Uniform Construction Code.

8. Roofs may contain HVAC equipment, provided however, that the equipment must be
enclosed or screened. Constructed screening shall be executed in a matter that is sympathetic
with the architecture of the building, and shall not be visible from an elevation of five feet

above the sidewalk on the opposite side of the public right-of-way.
9. Chain link fencing shall not be permitted except during construction and for dog run

enclosures. If chain link fencing is used for a dog run, it may not exceed 4 feet m height and
must be surrounded by thick landscaping a minimum of 3 feet high and 1 foot deep.
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10. All utility distribution lines and utility service connections from such lines to the areas

individual uses shall be located underground.

11. Roofs shall include open space for building residents. Terraces, decked areas, seating areas,
and landscaping should be included.

12. Entrances shall be designed to be attractive and functional. Indicators such as awnings,
changes in sidewalk paving materials, changes in height incorporating stairs or any other
indicator shall be incorporated into the main entrance design

13. Required amenities :
a. Laundry facilities. A minimum of one (1) washer and dryer for every ten (10)

units with a minimum of one (1) washer and dryer on each residential floor
must be provided; OR a washer and dryer in each residential unit.

b. Bicycle storage in accordance with City standards

B. Building Design — Adaptive Reuse District - Preservation and rehabilitation are the primary
objectives of this district's design controls

1. Existing buildings shall implement rehabilitation thatrestores the building's exterior fa9ade
to its original profile to the extent possible within reasonable engineering methods and cost.
Restoration of original window and door openings is encouraged to the extent feasible.

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a building, structure or site and Its
environment shall not be destroyed. The removal or alteration of any historic material or
distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

3. All buildings, structures and sites shall be recognized as products of their own time.
Alterations which have no historical basis and which seek to create an earlier appearance

shall be discouraged.
4. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship which characterize a

building, structure or site shall be treated with sensitivity.

5. Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced wherever possible. In
the event that replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being
replaced in composition, design, color, texture and other visual qualities. Repair or
replacement of missing architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of
features, substantiated by historical, physical or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural
design or the availability of different architectural elements from other buildings or

structures.

6. The surface cleaning shall be undertaken with the gentlest means possible. Sandblasting and
other cleaning methods that will damage the historic building materials are strictly forbidden

as they destroy the essential water resistant glazing on the exterior of brick and masonry, and
scour, scar and obliterate the surface.

7. For new construction as an addition to the existing buildings, the following shall apply:
i. Vertical additions shall not be made to replicate the original building in materials or

color. Additions shall be primarily of glass and steel with other modem material

details. Glazing on additions must be a minimum of 75%.
ii. All vertical additions shall incorporate flat roofs

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be

11



discouraged when such alterations and additions do not destroy significant historic,

architectural or cultural material and such design is compatible with the size, scale, color,

material and character of the property, neighborhood or environment.
/ 9. Wherever possible, new additions or alterations to structures shall be done in such a manner that

if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential fomi and integrity
of the structure would be unimpaired.

C. Building Design - Residential District - as it pertains to new construction.
1. All facade vents for air conditioning or heating units must be incorporated into the window

design such that vent grills and windows appear as a single unit. This is best achieved by lining
up vent grills with the vertical or horizontal edge of the adjacent window and matching the

window's length or width or using a spandrel panel to fill any voids.
2. Synthetic stucco materials such as EIFS are prohibited.

3. Concrete block may not be used as a primary material on any facade.
4. Cantilevered balconies are prohibited along rights-of-way.

5. Use of chain link fencing, razor wire, barbed wire, or other similar security devises is expressly
prohibited. Chain link fencing may be temporality utilized during construction only.

6. All landscaping must be curbed by a concrete, brick, metal, or stone curb measuring a minimum
of 6 Inches in height and 4 inches in width surrounding all landscaped areas, except for rear yard
areas.

7. All buildings must be designed to have attractive street frontages with quality materials.

8. Flat roofs are required.

X. LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING

A. Landscaping shall be required for any part of any parcel not used for buildings, off-street parking, or
loading space. The developers' plan shall include plans for landscaping indicating the location, size

and quantity of the various species to be used. Areas reserved for future development shall, as a
minimum, be seeded with Perennial Rye Grass, or equivalent.

B. Greenspace (trees, shrubs, flowers, etc.) shall be used as buffers and to accent entrances, arcades and

sidewalks.

C. In cases where, because oftopographic issues and/or preexisting building conditions, garage parking
is partially below grade and unable to be wrapped" with ground floor retail, it is required that the
perimeter landscaping be planted in a raised planting bed. This planting bed must be approximately

30" high with a seating wall of brick/masonry construction that complements the design of the
building. Plantings in this bed must be a thick shrubbery variety a minimum of 3 feet high from the

top of the wall.
D. All plant material used must be able to withstand an urban environment. All screen planting shall be

a minimum of three (3) feet high and shall be planted, bailed and burlapped, as established by the
American Association ofNurserymen. A planting schedule shall be provided by the developer and

approved by the Planning Board.
E. Any landscaping which is not resistant to the environment or dies within 2 years of planting shall be

replaced by the developer.
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F. Underground watering facilities shall be encouraged for all landscaped areas.
G. Trees and shrubs shall be planted along curblines of streets at a maximum of 40 feet centers or in

groupings in a regular pattern to further enhance the aesthetic quality of the Redevelopment Plan
Area.

H. Parking areas for more than ten (10) vehicles, and all loading areas abutting a street, shall

provide a screen planting of dense evergreen not less than three (3) feet high along any street line
and along all property lines except those instances where a building intervenes or where the

proposed plantings may interfere with site triangles.
I. Lighting used to illuminate off-street parking and loading areas shall be arranged and shielded to

prevent the spillage of light off the premises and shall be in accordance with the lighting
requirements of the Land Development Ordinance.

J. Lighting within a site shall sufficiently illuminate all areas, including those areas where buildings
are set back or offset to prevent "dark comers".

K. All lighting sources must be adequately shielded to avoid any glare. The area of illumination
shall have a fairly uniform pattern averaging at least 1/2 footcandles.

L. New lighting fixtures installed as part of site improvements shall be in scale with existing street

hardware and relate to the size of the project.

XI. OTHER PROVISIONS NECESSARY TO MEET REQUIREMENTS OF STATE AND LOCAL LAWS

The Local Redevelopment and Housing Law, N.J.S.A 40A:12A-7 et seq. requires that a Redevelopment Plan

shall include an outline for the planning, development, redevelopment, or rehabilitation of the project area
sufficient to indicate:

A. This law requires tliat a redevelopment plan shall include an outline for the planning,
development, redevelopment or rehabilitation of the project area sufficient to indicate:

1. Its relationship to definite local objectives as to appropriate land uses, density of

population, and improved traffic and public transpiratlon, public utilities,
recreational and community facilities and other public improvements.

2. Proposed land uses and building requirements in project area.
3. Adequate provision for the temporary and permanent relocation, as necessary, of

residents in the project area, including an estimate of the extent to which decent,
safe and sanitary dwelling units affordable to displaced residents will be available
to them in the existing local housing market.

4. An identification of any property within the redevelopment area which is

proposed to be acquired in accordance with the redevelopment plan.
5. Any significant relationship of the redevelopment plan to (a) the master plans of

contiguous municipalities, (b) the master plan of the county in which the
municipality is located, (c) the State Development and Redevelopment Plan
adopted pursuant to the State Planning Act.
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6. As of the date of the adoption of the resolution finding the area to be in need of
redevelopment, an inventory of all housing units affordable to low and moderate

income households.. .that are to be removed as a result of the implementation of
the redevelopment plan....

7. A plan for the provision, through new construction or substantial rehabilitation of one
comparable, affordable replacement housing unit for each affordable housing unit
that has been occupied at any tune within the last 18 months, that is subject to
affordability controls and that is identified as to be removed as a result of the

implementation of the redevelopment plan.. ..

B. In accordance with the State requirements, the following statements are made:
1. The proposals of this Plan conform with the general plan for the municipality;
2. This plan provides an outline for the development of the Garfield Avenue.
3. No residents are expected to be displaced as a result of the adoption or

implementation of this Plan.

4. No properties are to be acquked, and there is no provision for eminent domain as
part of this Plan.

5. The subject Area is not in proximity to other municipalities. The 2002 Hudson

County Master Plan includes the following:
a. Objective: Protect existing neighborhoods from incompatible

development.

b. Goals: To provide for the economic re=vitalization of the
County's commercial and mdustrial base.

c. Action Strategy: Support efforts to revise State building code

requirements to permit special residential uses (i.e. artists) to live
in industrial buildings

The 2008 Reexamination Report adds the following:
a. Goals: To promote compact and mixed use development patterns.

b. Goals: To encourage redevelopment in areas in need of

rehabilitation.

c. Goals: To develop a diversified economy to maintain full

employment.

d. Objectives: Encourage the adaptive reuse of older industrial
facilities.

e. Objectives: Review on a case-by-case basis conversion of

industrial buildings to commercial uses.
6. No housing units are expected to be removed as a result of the adoption or

implementation of this plan.

7. There is no known affordable housing in the Plan Area, and no housing units are
identified as to be removed.
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XII. PROCEDURE FOR CHANGES IN APPROVED PLAN

This Redevelopment Plan may be amended from time to time upon compliance with the requirements of

law. A fee of $ 1,000 plus all costs for copying and transcripts shall be payable to the City of Jersey City for
any request to amend this plan.

xm. MAPS

See following pages.
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City Clerk File No.

Agenda No..

Agenda No.

Ord. 15.051

J st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE

JERSEY CITY, N.J,

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

C\T^ ORDINANCE 15.051

TITLE:
ORDNANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE MORGAN/GROVE/MARIN (MGM)
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CREATE A COMMUNITY BENEFIT BONUS
PROVISION ON BLOCK 11508 ALONG THE LUIS MUNOZ MARIN BOULEVARD
FRONTAGE AND TO EXPAND THE 4 STORY SUB-DISTRICT "A" ZONE

WHEREAS) the Local Redevelopment and Housing Law, NJSA 40A:12A-let seq. permits
municipalities to adopt and amend regulations dealing with areas declared to be "in need of
redevelopment" and "in need of rehabilitation"; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City adopted a redevelopment plan for the MGM
RedevelopmentPlanAreaonFebmary 1,2006 and last amended June 19, 2013; and

WHEREAS, at its meeting of April 7, 2015 the Jersey City Planning Board discussed the proposed
amendments and recommended their adoption to the Municipal Council; and

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Plan reflecting the proposed amendments is attached hereto and made a
part hereof, and is available for public inspection at fhe Office of the City Clerk in City Hall, 280 Grove
Street, Jersey City, NJ;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the
proposed Amendments to the M(jM Redevelopment Plan Amendments , dated April 9, 2015, entitled
Draft 8 - As Recommended by the Planning Board, attached hereto, be, and hereby is, adopted.

BE FT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are liereby repealed.

B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk
shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This ordmance sliall lake effect at fhe time and in the manner as provided by law.
D, The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter

numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a
conflict between (hose numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confasian and possible repealers of existing
provisions.

E, The City Plaiming Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this
Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant toN.J.S, 40:55D-15
andNJ.S. 40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of thisOrdinaneeafter public hearing thereon, IheCify Clerk is
lierebydirectedtopublishnoticeofthepassagethereof and to file a copy of flie Ordinance as finally adopted with the
Hudson County Plannmg Board asrequiredbyN.J.S.40:55D-16. The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of
this Ordinance after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required byN.J.S. 40:49-2,1.

Robert D. Cotter, PP, FAICP
Director, Division of City Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:^ .

APPROVED:_
~J/"^^

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



QRDINANCE/RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL

Full Title of Ordmarice/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE MORGAN/GROVE/MARIN (MGM) REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO
CREATE A COMMUNITY BENEFIT BONUS PROVISION ON BLOCK 11508 ALONG THE LUIS
MUNOZ MARIN BOULEVARD FRONTAGE AND TO EXPAND THE 4 STORY SUB-DISTRICT
"A"ZONE

Initiafor
Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/email

HEDC/PIaiming

R. Cotter, Director. PP, FAICP

201-457-5050 ; bobbvc(%icni,or£r

M. Bucci-Carter, Supervising Plauner, PP, AICP

201-547-4499; marvannb@icm.Qn

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Purpose

These amendments create a bonus provision to allow a building on Block 11507 (Morgan, Marin, Bay and
Grove) to rise to a maximum of 375 feet in return for

bonus payments to the City of Jersey City which be utilized to provide one or more of the following
Community Benefits; 1) To assist in providing affordable housing wifhia the City of Jersey City; 2) To
acquire and unprove public open space in the Harsunus Cove Neighborhood 3) To provide for physical
improvements to public rights-of-way within the community in order to enhance the aesthetics and safety of

the streetscape and pedestrian envu'onment. Other improvements required by the bonus taclude: the creation

of a landscaped open-space area at the comer of Bay Street and Marin Boulevard greater than 3,000 sq.ft. that

will contain public amenities of a tree bosque, seating, bilce racks, perennial and annual planting bed;
increased sidewalk width; and, the strengfhemng of building design and fa9ade standards.

Also amended is a portion of Sub-District "C" is changed to Sub-District "A".

l/^Z
^ GROVE ST

13001 11507
M (^

®
L®.
11508

^1501

a
LUIS MUNOZ MARIN BLVD,

sr~i r 3—J:
MAP 3: Morgan / Grove / Marin (MGM)
Ravised; May^O^ ^ch 2015

I certify that alHlie'facts/presentcd herein are accurate. ^.

Signature of^)eparfmi&t^t)irector Date



ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE MORGAN/GROVE/MARIN (MGM)
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CREATE A COMMUNITY BENEFIT BONUS
PROVISION ON BLOCK 11508 ALONG THE UJIS MUNOZ MARIN BOULEVARD
FRONTAGE AND TO EXPAND THE 4 STORY SUB-DISTRICT "A" ZONE

These amendments create a bonus provision to allow a building on Block 11507 (Morgan,
Madua, Bay and Grove) to rise to a maximum of 375 feet in return for

bonus payments to the City of Jersey City which be utilized to provide one or more of the
following Community Benefits: 1) To assist in providing affordable housing within the City of
Jersey City; 2) To acquire and unprove public open space in the Harsimus Cove Neighborhood
3) To provide for physical improvements to public rights-of-way within the community m order
to enhance the aesthetics and safety of the streetscape and pedestrian environment. Other
improvements required by the bonus include: the creation of a landscaped open-space area at the

comer of Bay Street and Marin Boulevard greater than 3,000 sq.ffc. that will conlam public

'amenities ofa-tree bosque, seating, bike racks, perennial and annual plantmg bed; increased

sidewalk width; and, the strengthening ofbuildmg design and fa9ade standards.

Also amended is a portion of Sub-District "C" is changed to Sub-District "A".
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MDRGAN/GROVE/MAMN

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

I. INTRODUCTION

The Morgan/Grove/Marin Redevelopment Area (hereinafter the MGM Area, the Redevelopment
Area or the Area) was determined to be "an area in need of redevelopment", pursuant to the New

Jersey Local Housing and Redevelopment Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-1 et. seq.) as part of the
"Powerhouse Arts District Study Area", by resolution of the Jersey City Municipal Council on

July 14, 2004 followmg recommendation by the Jersey City Planning Board.

However, the MGM Area was not included in the Powerhouse Arts District Redevelopment Plan
as adopted by the Jersey City Municipal Council. It was felt that although the MGM Area was

mdeed an area in need of redevelopment, it was sufficiently, different in. character to warrant its
own redevelopment plan. The Powerhouse Arts District Area is dominated by large historic
warehouse and industrial structures, whereas the MGM Area is comprised of a mixture of

smaller residential uses and commercial uses, some on smaller lots and others on larger sites
comprised of an assemblage of smaller lots, and vacant land.

The MGM Area is adjacent to the Powerhouse Arts District Redevelopment Area on the east; but

separated by Marin Boulevard, a major north south street providing access to the Holland Tunnel
and the City of Hoboken to the north. Ttie MGM area also borders the Grove Street H
Redevelopment Area-just across Morgan Street to the South. The Grove Street II Redevelopment

Area permits high rise (up to 330 feet in height) mixed-use development. To the west, the MGM
Area borders the Grove Street commercial district and the Harsimus Cove historic district. This

is an area of primarily four story stone and masonry construction dating from the 19 century.
To the north, several redevelopment plans extend along Maria Boulevard and Manila Avenue

(formerly Grove Street), including Grove Street N.D.P., Henderson Street South and the Luis
Munoz Marin Redevelopment Areas. These areas are now developed with low, medium and
high-rise residential structires.

The MGM Area is surrounded by redevelopment plans on three sides and the Grove Street
Neighborhood Commercial District and Harsurms Cove Historic District on the fourth side. It is

located between large scale, high intensity redevelopment areas to the east and south and more
traditional historic neighborhoods and redeveloped neighborhoods to the west and north. This
area has lagged far behind the redevelopment and rehabilitation that has occurred in the

surrounding area. Clearly, it is now time for the City to take a more pro-active role in the
redevelopment of this critical area. The purpose of this Plan is to provide a comprehensive
redevelopment plan that will allow and encourage the redevelopment of this Area, which can
serve as a transitional area between the higher intensity mixed-uae areas to the south and east,

and the more traditional residential neighborhoods to the-north and west.



H. BOUNDARIES

The MGM Area consists of Tax Lots found on Tax Blocks 11507 and 11508 in the Downtown
section of Jersey City. The following are the Block and Lot numbers which are to be included in

the Area.

Block
11,507

11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507
11507

Lot
12
25
26
23
27
13
2
3
4
5
6
14
15
11
10
9
8
7
24
22
21
20
19
18
17
16

Address
349 Luis M Marin Blvd.

196 Morgan St.

198 Morgan St.

186-188 Morgan St.

338 Grove St

347 Luis M Marin Blvd.

199 Bay Street

197 Bay St.

195 Bay St.

193 Bay St.

191 Bay St.
345 Luis M Marin Blvd.

343 Luis M Marm Blvd.

181 Bay St
183 Bay St.

185 Bay St.
187 Bay Street

189 Bay Street

190-194 Morgan St.

184 Morgan St.

182 Morgan St.

331LuisMMarinBlvd.

333 LuisMMarm Blvd.

335-37 Luis M Mann Blvd..

339LmsMMarinBlvd.

341 Luis M Marm Blvd.

Block
11508
1.1508

11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508
11508

Lot
15
10'

9
7
6
20
1
2
11
12
13
14
16
3
4 .

8

Address
198-200 Bay Street

186-188 Bay St.

184 Bay St.

351-61 Luis M MarinBlvd.
363-65 Luis M Marin Blvd.

366 Grove St.

368 Grove St.

187-197 First St.

190 Bay St.

192 Bay. St.

194 Bay St.

196 Bay St.

202 Bay St
183-185 First St.

181 First St.

180-182 Bay St.

The boundary of the Redevelopment Area is also depicted on Map 1 - Boundary Map.



m. REDEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES AND REQUIREMENTS OF ANY
DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE PLAN AREA

A. The planning and development of the Redevelopment Area as a primarily residential
mixed-use area wifh ground floor commercial uses along Grove Street and Marin
Boulevard, and residential uses above and elsewhere m the Redevelopment Area.

B. Encourage the assemblage of lots within the Ajrea in order to create suitable sites for more

comprehensive development, while also allowing development on the many pre-existing
smaller lots in order to provide for transitional development between the more traditional
neighborhoods in the surrounding area and the more intensive mixed-use areas to the
south and east.

C. To promote the principles of "Smart Growth" and "Transit Village" development, i.e.

sustainable economic and social development, including a variety of housing choices,
providing pedestrian friendly streets and public rights-of-way, mmmiize automobile use
by maximizing the appeal of mass transit, encourage reduced parking and shared use
parking solutions, and creating a livable community with convenient access to
commercial facilities.

D. Minimize on-site parking and maximize the use of mass transit in order to take advantage
of the new PATH entrance located one block south at the comer ofMarm Boulevard and
Columbus Drive and the new Hudson-Bergen Light Rail station located just to the east.

E. To mtegrate new development wiftim the Area into the surrounding community by
encouraging new development, that can act as a transitional element between the
surrounding area's adjacent high-rise office and mixed-use developments, and the
adjacent lower-rise historic commercial and residential areas.

F. Maximize the participation by the private sector by allowing for development on a variety
of different lot sizes so as to minimize the need for acquisition by the public sector

through eminent domain.

G. The improvement of the pedestrian environment and traffic circulation for the
contemplated new development by prohibiting all vehicular access to the site from Marin

Boulevard and Grove Street, limiting ingress and egress points to major development on
other streets, and the provision of new side walks, street trees and other pedestrian
amenities within the existing street .rights-of-way.

JV. PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT ACTIONS

It is proposed to substantially miprove and upgrade the Redevelopment Area through a
combination of redevelopment actions that will provide a uniform and consistent attack on blight

within, the Area by systematically removing blighting influences in an orderly manner and
allowing for new construction. These will mclude but not be limited to:



A. Acquisition of vacant land, and/or acquisition and demolition of structures, determined to

be impediments to sound and comprehensive redevelopment.

B. The consolidation and re-subdivision of land within the Redevelopment Area into
suitable parcels for development for the new residential and commercial land uses where
necessary.

C. Provision for a full range of public and/or private infrastructure necessary to service and
support new development in the Area and adjacent areas.

D. Construction of new structures and complementary facilities that are consistent with the

land use patterns m the surrounding area.

V. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

The following provisions shall apply to all property located withm the MGM Redevelopment
Area.

A. Prior to the commencement of: (a) any new construction, (b) reconstruction, (c) .
rehabilitation (d) any change to the interior floor plan of any stmcture, (e) any change in
the use of any structure or parcel, or (f) any change in the intensity of use of any structure
or parcel; a site plan for such shall be submitted by the developer or property owner to the

Planning Board for review and site plan approval. No temporary or permanent Building
Permit shall be issued for any work associated with a through f above, without prior site
plan review and approval of such work by the Planning Board. Nothing in this section is

intended to require site plan review and approval for minor modifications to the interior
floor plan, such as the relocation or modification of partition walls, which are commonly
done to accommodate new tenancies or during lease renewals.

B. The provisions of this Plan specifymg the redevelopment of the Area and the
requbrements and restrictions with respect thereto shall be in effect for a period of twenty

(20) years from the original date of approval of this Plan by the Jersey City Municipal
Council. Subsequent amendments hereto shall not alter or extend this period of duration,
unless specifically extended by such amendments.

C. Prior to commencement of construction, architectural drawings and site plans with

detailed specifications for the construction and/or rehabilitation of improvements to the
area shall be submitted by the developer to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City
for review and approval so that compliance of such plans with the redevelopment
requirements and objectives can be determined. Site plan review shall be conducted by

the Planning Board pursuant to NJSA 40:55D4 et. seq. Applications may be submitted
for the entire project or m any number of phases. Final Site Plan approval for any phase
shall entitle an applicant to building permits.

As part of any Final Site Plan approval, the Planning Board may require a developer to

furnish performance guarantees pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-53 et seq. Such performance



guarantees shall be in favor of the City m a form approved by the Jersey City Corporation
Counsel. The amount of any such perfomiance guarantees shall be detennined by the
City Engineer and shall be sufficient to assure completion of on and off site

improvements within one (1) year of final site plan approval.

D. Any subdivision of lots and parcels of land within the Redevelopment Area shall be in
accordance with this Plan's requirements and the Jersey City Land Subdivision

Ordinance.

E. No development or redevelopment of any parcel in the Redevelopment Area that will
result in an increase m wastewater ficom that parcel shall be permitted unless and until the

planned project wastewater piping and systems for the removal of effluent and storm
water are approved by the City of Jersey City Division of Engineering and the Municipal

Utilities Authority; and the municipal wastewater piping and systems for the removal of
effluent and storm water are certified by the City of Jersey City Division of Engineering

and the Municipal Utilities Authority as being of sufficient capacity and good condition
to accommodate uses that will occupy said parcel. Such approval may be contingent upon

requisite improvements to the drainage system in. the street, as determined by the Division
of Engineering.

F. Interim uses may be permitted, subject to site plan review and approval by the Planning
Board. The Planning Board shall only permit uses that it fmds will not have an adverse

effect upon surrounding existing or contemplated development during the interim use
period. Interim uses must be approved by the Plannmg Board. The Board shall establish
an interim use period of up to three (3) years in duration. The Planning Board may grant

additional one (1) year renewals ofinterun uses upon application, review, and approval.

Commuter or commercial surface parking lots and commuter or commercial parking
garages are specifically prohibited and shall not be permitted as interim uses.

G. The Planning Board may grant deviations from the regulations contamed within this Plan,

where, by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowriess or shape of a specific piece of
property, or by reason of exceptional topographic conditions, pre-existing structures or
physical features uniquely affecting a specific piece of property, the strict application of
any area; yard, bulk or design objective or regulation adopted pursuant to this Plan, would
result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue

hardship.upon, the developer of such property. The Planning Board may also grant a
deviation from the regulations contained within this Plan related to a specific piece of

property where the purposes of this Plan would be advanced by such deviation from the
strict application of the requirements of this Plan; and the benefits of granting the

deviation would outweigh any detriments. The Planning Board may grant exceptions or
waivers from design standards, from the requirements for site plan or subdivision

approval as may be reasonable and within the general purpose and intent of the provisions
for site plan review and/or subdivision approval within this Plan, if the literal

enforcement of one or more provisions of the plan is impracticable or would exact undue
hardship because of peculiar conditions pertaining to the site. No deviations may be

granted under.the terms of this section unless such,deviations can be granted without
resulting in substantial detriment to the public good and will not substantially impair the



intent and purpose of this Plan. No deviations may be granted which will result in

permitting a use that is not a permitted use within this Plan. An application requesting a
deviation from the requirements of this Plan shall provide public notice of such
application in accordance with the public notice requirements set forth in NJSA 40-.55D-

12.a.&b.

H. The regulations and controls in this section maybe implemented where applicable by

appropriate covenants, or other provisions, or agreements for land disposition and
conveyance executed pursuant thereto.

I. No covenant, lease, conveyance or other instrument shall be effected or executed by the

Jersey City Redevelopment Agency or by a redeveloper or any successors or assignees,
whereby land within the Redevelopment Area is restricted by the Jersey City

Redevelopment Agency or the redeveloper upon the basis of race, creed, color or national
origin in the sale, lease, use or occupancy thereof. Appropriate covenants, runnmg with
the land forever, will prohibit such restrictions and shall be included in the disposition
instruments.

J. No building shall be consfcructed over an easement in the Redevelopment Area without

site plan review and approval of the Jersey City Planning Board and prior written
approval of the Redevelopment Agency and the Division, of Engineering.

K. If any word, phrase, clause, section or provision of this Plan shall be found by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, such word, phrase, clause,
section or provision shall be deemed severable and the remainder of the ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect.

VI. GENERAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS

The following standards and requirements shall apply to all applications, includmg but not

limited to: developments, re-developments, rehabilitation, and or re-use applications within the
Redevelopment Plan area:

A. All utility distribution lines; utility semce comiections from such lines to the

Redevelopment Area's individual uses; and utility appliances, regulators and metering
devices shall be located underground or within the building. No utility boxes or structire
shall be permitted in sidewalk areas or exterior to the building. Remote readers are

required for all utilities, in lieu of external location of the actual metering devices.
Developers are required to arrange for connections to public and private utilities.

B. Chain link fencing shall be prohibited within the Redevelopment Area, except during
construction. Chain link fencing for construction shall be dismantled and removed prior

to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

C. No Billboard shall be permitted on any property contained within the Redevelopment

Area.



D. No signage shall be permitted within the Redevelopment Area, which includes flashing,
blinking or otherwise animated lights and/or parts, spmners, pennants, reflective
materials, which sparkle or twinkle and/or similar materials; except for seasonal holiday

decorations.

E. No advertising shall be permitted on parking meters, light poles, or on benches or other
street furniture within the public right-of-way.

F. Upon demolition of any existing structures, the site shall be graded, planted, sodded,

and/or developed, as applicable, in accordance with. this Plan.

G. All trash dumpsters and/or compactors shall be located withm the buildings. All outdoor
storage shall be prohibited.

H. All buildings within the Redevelopment Area must display the street address of the

building such that it is clearly visible from the adjoining street right of way.

I. In order to facilitate the overall redevelopment of the MGM Area, the surrounding area,
and the City of Jersey City in general, all advertising, signage and other promotion of the
resulting project, whether undertaken by the City, the Redevelopment Agency, or private
developers, shall contain references to the proposed project's location. They all shall
clearly state it to be within the City of Jersey City so as to promote the positive external
effects for not only the project, but the Redevelopment Area and the City as well.

VU. URBAN DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

A. Building Design Requirements

1. All structires within the Redevelopment Area shall be sitiated with proper consideration
of their relationship to other buildings, both existing and proposed, in terms of light, air
and usable open space, access to public rights of way and off-street parking, height and
butk. Buildings shall be designed to be attractive from all vantage points, such that
similar facade materials and detailing is used on all facades.

2. Any existing building to be retained and rehabilitated shall comply with the Department
of the Interior Rehabilitations Standards for guidance in selecting materials and methods
of rehabilitation.

3. Buildings shall be oriented toward the street so as to contribute to the overall livelmess of

the pedestrian environment. Specifically, at least seventy (70) percent of the ground floor
frontage of any project along Marin Boulevard and/or Grove Street shall be dedicated to
commercial uses and/or pedestrian access areas such as retail sales of good and services,

restaurants, banks, offices, building entrances and lobbies; which shall have direct access
from the sidewalk area. Main-building entries shall be prominent and easily identifiable,



and shall not occur simply as voids within or between buildings. Townhouse style units
and/or buildings shall provide a raised stoop with at least three (3) risers at the entry.

4. Buildings shall have a clear base, middle and top. Architectural devises, such as

providing stringcourses, cornices and sub-comices, and/or horizontally differentiating
surface treatments, can be used to achieve the necessary transitions.

5. The windows and glazing of a building are a major element of style that gives character to

the buildiug. Windows and glazing on. ground floor commercial uses should be broad and
- expansive providing views into the store and display areas. At least seventy-fiye (75%)

percent of the storefront facade shall be glass. Comer buildings shall have wmdows on
bpth street frontages. If security gates are used on any part of the building or window,
they shall be installed on the interior side of the window, hidden from view when closed,

and be of the open grate style.

6. Buildings along Grove Street shall be designed to be compatible with the 19 century
character of the existing buildings along Grove Street in terms of materials, window
placement and other architectural elements. Storefronts are required in all such buildings
and shall also reflect the design- of the existing storefronts along Grove Street in terms of

display windows, matterials, sub-comice line and other architectural features.

7. Windows in residential portions of a building shall be arranged such that the vertical

dimension, or height, is greater than the horizontal dimension, or width. However, bay

windows, bow windows or other window features may also be incorporated into the
facade to provide architectural interest and character, provided that the overall verticality
of the structure is not adversely ajEfected.'. Scattered window facades shall not be allowed.

Each facade shall present a unified, rational composition. Comer buildings shall have
windows on both street frontages. The window sill of any residential window sill facing

a public street shall not be less than five (5) feet above the elevation of the adjoining
sidewalk.

8. Balconies and terraces may extend from the building when facing into interior courts.

However, all balconies facing onto streets shall be very shallow and recessed to prevent
their use as storage spaces.

9. EIFS (Exterior Insulating Finishing Systems, artificial stone and artificial brick veneer
("Pennastone" & "Brickface"), concrete or split-face block, and/or plastic type artificial

siding materials may not be used as fayade cladding within this Redevelopment Area.

10. All mechanical equipment, generators, HVAC equipment and similar equipment shall be
acoustically buffered such that auy noise generated by the equipment shall be within the

applicable standards as defined, by the State of New Jersey.

11. All electronic communication equipment shall be totally screened from view. This shall
be achieved through creative disguises within the basic architecture of the building, such
that it does not negatively impact the appearance of the building. Said screening shall be

constructed in a manner that is consistent with the architecture of the building, and shall



utilize the same materials used in the construction of the building';, such that the screening
appears to be an integral part of tile building. The screening shall not impair the
functioning of the equipment. Said equipment shall be located so as to minimize or

.eliminate the ueed for screening.

12. All mechanical equipment shall be totally screened from view, both from the street and
existing or planned neighboring buildings. Said screening shall be constructed in a
manner that is consistent with the architecture of the building, .and shall utilize the same

materials used in the construction of the building, such that the screening appears to be an
integral part of the building. The screening shall not unpair the functioning of the
equipment. Interior locations to the principal buildmg or underground locations must be

utilized.

13. Ventilation equipment required for commercial uses shall be vented through the roof of
the building. All such equipment ventllated through the roof and screened m compliance
with paragraph 6 above. The necessary incorporation of ventilation grillwork within the
storefront fa9ade system shall be limited to no more than 15% of the possible glazing

. . area. Such grillwork shall be architecturally incorporated within the storefront design so
as to compliment and add to the overall aesthetic affect of the commercial fa9ade.

Exposed ventilation pipes and risers are prohibited.

B. Stre^tscape and Landscape Requirements

1. A streetscape plan is required for all projects and shall include proposed sidewalk and
curbing materials and treatments, street trees, tree pit grates and/or treatments, and any
proposed street furniture, lighting or other features to be provided. The streetscape plan
shall be submitted to the Jersey City Planning Board for its review and approval as part of
the project site plan application and implemented as part of the construction of the

project.

2. Sidewalks must be provided along the street rights of way and shall be properly sized for
the safe and convenient movement of pedestrians through and around the Redevelopment

. Area. All sidewalks along Marin Boulevard must be a minimum of 15 feet wide, and all
sidewalks adjoining development utilizing the Community Benefit Bonus option must be
15 feet wide.

3. . Sidewalk areas shall be attractively landscaped and durably paved in conformance with
Municipal standards and shall be provided with adequate lightmg. Decorative concrete
paving materials shall be mcorporated into the design and pedestrian scale lighting is
required. At a minimum decorative elements shall be introduced at building entrances at

street comers and along the curb line to accent and channel pedestrian flow.

4. All plant material used must be able to withstand the urban environment and shall be
planted, balled and buriapped as established by the American Association ofNurserymsn.

A planting schedule shall be provided by the developer and approved by the Planning
Board. AlllandscapingshallbeguaranteedforaperiQd oftwo (2)years. Any



landscaping which in not resistant to the urban environment or that dies shall be replaced

by the developer or property owner.

5. Street trees shall be planted along all curb lines of streets within the Redevelopment Area

at a maximum of 3 5 feet on center. Each tree pit shall contain a decorative metal grate
and/or decorative paving treatment.

6. Outdoor landscaped open space areas shall be provided for all new construction within
the Redevelopment Area and shall occupy any required rear yard areas or be consb-ucted
on a deck over any parking structire. Additional open space areas may be provided after
Planning Board review and approval. All areas not covered by a building or necessary

paved areas shall be landscaped with trees, shmbs, groundcovers or other appropriate
plant material.

7. Lighting within the Redevelopment Area shall sufficiently illuminate all areas to prevent
"dark comers". All lighting sources must be shielded to prevent and eliminate any glare.
The area of •illumination shall have a uniform pattern of at least one-half (0..5) foot-.

candles.

C. Off-street Parking Design and Loading Requirements

1. All parking shall be located within the building. There shall be no separate parking

stmctures. -Access to parking may be provided from Bay Street, Morgan Street andVor
First Street only. No access to parking shall be provided from Grove Street or Marin
Boulevard. There shall be no exposed parking permitted, either surface parking or on the
top of parking deck levels of a building. A landscaped plaza or recreation area is required

at the top of all parking structures. •

2. All parking structures are to be designed to disguise the parking use within. All parking
and mechanical related areas shall be wrapped along the exterior by occupied active
building uses, such as commercial storefronts and residential units. Two exceptions may
be pennitted-by the Planning Board:

a.) One Utility room may occupy no more than fifteen (15%) percent or fifteen (15)
linear feet (whichever is less of any one single fa9ade, but shall not be located

along Marin Boulevard or Grove Street.

b) Where a site has frontage on at least three (3) streets, a small portion of the garage

fayade may adjoin the street right-of-way Ime on one facade in order to provide
design flexibility and efficiency in the parking layout. This portion of the garage

fagade shall be limited to not more than seventy (70) feet in length along one
street and the fa9ade must be disguised or masked through architectural design

treatments as further described below; also, any utility areas requested pursuant to
item a.) above shall be located within this seventy (70) feet offrontage, and the 70
feet shall not be, located along Marin Boulevard or Grove Street.
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3. Where an. occupied active building use is not utilized to mask the parking within the

buildmg, the fa9ade of the parking structure shall be designed to disguise the parking use
to the greatest degree possible. The exterior wall of the parkmg structure shall be
architectirally designed to mimic and reflect the occupied portions of the building in
terms of style and materials. All openings in the parking structure facade shall be of the
punched style. These openings shall be consistent with the rhythm of the window
openmgs serving the principal uses within the building. They shall be covered by glass or
metal m such a way that the exterior design is compatible with the design of the building
and the actual windows of the building. The glass tint and/or reflectivity may be different

so as to decrease the visibility of the garage use within. In lieu of glass, the openings may
be covered by a hinged solid metal plate/shutter, or recessed decorative grill over a

louvered opening as described below. Blind windows, where appropriate shall also be
permitted. Where louvers are needed or proposed, decorative grills shall be installed over
functional louvers, or other comparable decorative material shall be used in openings or
portions of the openings resembling the windows provided above and/or below, parking

levels. The intent of the above regulations is ttiat no exposed garage exterior wall shall
be detectable as a garage at the ground floor level,

4. In order to preserve the maximum number of on-street parking spaces possible, driveway

widths and curb cuts shall be limited to the minimum width and number necessary.
Driveway / curb cut widths leading to parking areas containing less than twenty (20) cars
shall be no more that twelve (12) feet in width. The width of driveways and curb cuts

leading to parking areas for twenty (20) cars or more shall be limited to twelve (12) feet
for one-way t'affic, and twenty (20) feet for two-way traffic.

5. All required parking spaces must be a minimum of 8.5 feet wide by 18 feet deep. The
placement of a curb up to two (2) feet within the required 18 foot depth, of the parking
space is permitted, provided that there is adequate area for an automobile occupymg the

parking space to over-hang said curb a like distance without infringing on required
landscapmg or pedestrian areas. All aisles shall be a minimum of 22 feet wide. Compact

spaces may be provided only with the approval of the Planning Board and shall be a
minimum of 8 feet wide by 16 feet deep.

6. Off-street parking and loading areas shall be coordinated with the public street system

serving the Redevelopment Area in order to avoid conflicts with vehicular traffic and/or

obstruction to pedestrian walkways and thoroughfares. No vehicular access to parking
and/or loadmg areas may be provided from Grove Street or Marin Boulevard.

7. Light sources within any parking level shall not be visible from. the exterior of the

building either from the street or from other surrounding buildings and properties.
Identification of the internal fixture and its location must be provided in order for any

application to the Planning Board for site plan to be deemed complete.

8. Where buildings incorporate internal above grade parking garages, facade treatments shall
be utilized which integrate their appearance with that of the building as a whole.

11



9. Developers shall demonstrate to the Board's satisfaction that sufficient off-street loading

is provided to meet the needs of the proposed uses.

10. Valet parking may be allowed if it can be demonstrated that an efficient, safe means of
operation will be provided, but in no case shall the maximum number of permitted
parking spaces be exceeded.

11. All parking provided within the Redevelopment Area shall be for the sole use of the
residents or tenants of the building in which the parking is located. Provided, however,
that on a large site where multiple buildings are constructed, parking may be shared
between the buildings. Parking may not be leased to commuters or other non-residents or

non-tenants of the building.

12. The number of requu'ed and/or permitted parking spaces for each use is indicated in
Section Vffl of this Plan.

D.

1. Permitted S ignage ;

a. Each residential building shall display the street address of the building on the

front facade or front door of the building such that it is visible from the adjoining
street right-of-way.

b. Each residential building may provide any necessary signage required for proper

mail delivery .mclicating the name(s) of the residents) of the building on the
mailbox or doorbell.

c. Each major residential building, i.e. buildmgs on lots of 10,000 square feet or

more, may have one (1) exterior sign flush mounted to the fa9ade at the entrance
to the building indicating the building's name, if any, not to exceed twenty (20)

square feet.

d. Commercial Uses - Each such use fronting on a public street may be allowed one
(1) exterior wall mounted sign not to exceed ten(10%) percent of the area of the

storefront (ground floor) to which it is attached. In addition, each commercial
tenant may be permitted one blade sign. Each blade sign shall not exceed a
maximum of 10 square feet and shall be externally lit. Blade sign are required to

be located on the building facade directly on the sidewalk frontage and shall be
placed such that the lowest portion of the sign hangs at least 8 feet above the
sidewalk.

e. Tenant directories may be located within the lobby of a building.
f. Accessory Parking - Since commuter and commercial parking is not permitted, no

additional signage is permitted for parking us&g.

2. Additional Signage Regulations and Requirements:

a. All signs are subject to minor site plan review when not included as part of a
major site plan application.
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b. All signs shall be flush mounted and project no more than fifteen (15) inches,
although blade signs may be attached to the first floor fa9ade.

c. Window signs (other than lettering as specifically permitted) shall be prohibited.
Lettering shall be limited to decorative gold-leaf, flat black or etched / frosted

glass style lettering and shall be limited to the name of the business occupying the
commercial space / store front and shall cover no more than twenty (20%) of the

window area.

d. All signs may be attached.to the first floor level of the building only. Where there

is a two-story lobby or mezzanine space incorporated into the design of the.
building, the sign may be permitted to be placed above the lobby at the equivalent
of the second floor or level with Board approval.

e. Permitted signage material includes: 1.) Pamted wood; 2.) Pamted metals
including aluminum and steel; 3.) Brushed finished aluminum, stainless steel,

brass, or bronze; 4.) Carved wood or wood substitute.

f. Permitted lettering material includes: I.) Lettering forms applied to the surface of

the sign; 2.) Single colored lettering forms applied to the surface of the sign; 3.)
Metallic solid body letters with or without returns; 4.) Painted acryUc or metal

letter; 5.) Neon style lettering.
g. Sign Lighting: Signs may be lit fi-om gooseneck fixtures, backlit halo, up-lights.

Internally lit signs and sign boxes are prohibited.
h. During construction, one (I) temporary sign indicating: the name of the project or

development, general contractor, subcontractor, financing mstitotion and public
entity officials (where applicable) shall be permitted. The sign area shall not

exceed Fifty (50) square feet.

3. Prohibited Signage: The followmg sighs and devices shall not be permitted within the
MGM Redevelopment Area:

Monument signs and internally or externally illuminated box signs, flashing or anuuated

signs, spinners, pennants, reflective materials that sparkle or twinkle, roof signs,
billboards, signboards, window signs, posters, plastic or paper that appear to be attached

to the window, pole signs, free-standmg signs, fluorescent and/or glowing paint for any
signage or building within the redevelopment area, waterfall style awnings, plastic
awnings, product advertising signage of any kind. Product advertising signage is defined
here to include, but not be limited to signage on: parking meters, signage in windows, ou
light poles, benches or other street furniture within the redevelopment area. Nothing in
this paragraph shall be deemed to prohibit either lamppost mounted seasonal banners or
traditional residential holiday decorations.

VIU. SPECIFIC LAND USE REGULATIONS

The Redevelopment Area is a relatively compact area, consisting of parts of two city blocks.
Although relatively small in size, the Redevelopment Area is fairly complex in terms of the
variety of land-uses and intensity of development that surround it. Large scale mixed-use

projects and the Powerhouse Arts District surround the Redevelopment Area to the south and

east, while more neighborhood scale development and the Harsimus Cove Historic District are
located west and north of the Redevelopment Area. It is the intent of these regulations to allow
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the MGM Redevelopment Area to act as a transitional area; to allow for larger scale development
on larger lots, especially in the eastern and northern sections of the Redevelopment Area, while
also allowmg for appropriate, development on the many smaller lots that exist within fhe

Redevelopment Area.

Base Zone Development Standards ;

These standards shall apply throughout the plan area except for where the Community benefit
Bonus criteria is et and applied, or for any development on Block 11507 Lot 27 which shall be

regulated by the site plan and variance approval granted by the Jersey City Board of Adjustment.

A. Principal Permitted Uses

1. Townhouses

2. Multi-family Apartment Buildings.

3. Governmental uses.

B. Uses incidental and accessory to the principal use, including:

1. Work/Live Units
2. Work/Live Artist Studios.

3. Theaters, performance and rehearsal spaces

4. Commercial Uses — limited to ^IQ ground floor ofmulti-family buildings
fronting on Grove Street and/or Marm Boulevard.

only. The commercial frontages may wrap around
onto the side streets. However, entrances shall be on

Grove Street and/or Marin Boulevard only.

Entrances may also front upon the open space plaza
required pursuant to the Community Benefit Bonus
of Block 11508y referenced in paragraph L of this
section.

a. Retail sales o'f goods and services.

b. Restaurants, category one and two.

c. Bars. • .

d. Offices.

e. Financial institutions.
f. Art Galleries.

5. Off-street parking, only within structures as part of the principal building.
6. Recreation facilities and areas, (indoor &/or outdoor) including pools,

landscaped yards and decks, active recreation uses, gymnasiums, exercise
rooms, etc.

•7. Community rooms.

8. Fences and walls.

9. Home occupations.

10. Outdoor seating in conjunction with a restaurant after site plan review and

approval.

11. Signs.
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c. Permitted Density — In order to. encourage the consolidation of lots into larger
development parcels, while at the same time. permitting reasonable
development on the many existing smaller lots, the permitted density will
vary in relation to both location and lot size.

Lot Size
JJpto2,500sq.ft.

_2,5(nto5_,p00s^ft_
5,001 to 9,999 sq.ffc.

10,000 to 14,999 sq.ffc.

15,000 sq. ft. and above

Permitted Density
55 d.u. per acre

75 d.u. per acre

90 d.u. per acre

120 d.u. per acre

As listed below.

Block 11507 — One Hundred and Eighty (180) units per acre.
Block 11508 - One Hundred and Sixty-Five (165) units per acre.

D. Minimum Dwelling Unit Size

1. Studio: 500 square feet

2. One Bedroom: 700 square feet
3. Two Bedroom: 950 square feet
4. Apartments with more than two bedrooms shall be a minimum of 950 square

feet plus 250 square feet for each additional bedroom over two bedrooms.

E. Permitted Height - Building height shall be as indicated on .
Map 3 -Permitted Height, revised March 2015

1. Additional Height Regulations:

a. All new buildings fronting on Grove Street shall be four (4) stories tall and

match the height of the adjoining buildmgs on Grove Street. Existing
buildings on Grove Street shall maintain their existing heights.

b. Any building constructed in sub-districts F, G and H as indicated on
Map 3 - Permitted Height shall be permitted two additional residential

stories above the permitted height, provided that they are set back at least
ten (10) feet from the front fa9ade and the total height of the building is
not increased by more than twenty (20) feet above the permitted height.

c. In sub-districts that permit sixty-five feet (65)or greater, aAny building

constructed on a lot of less than 10,000 square feet in area, shall not
exceed a height of sixty-five (65) feet and it shall comply with the
minimum required floor to ceiling height requirements of this plan.

d. All residential floors above the first floor shall have a minimum floor to

ceiling height of nine (9) feet. Residential units on the first floor shall
have a mmirnum floor to ceiling height often (10) feet. Residential units
on the first floor of any building shall be raised at least two (2) feet above

the grade of the adjoining sidewalk.

15



F.

e. Ground floor commercial areas along Grove Street shall be designed to
match the height of the existing stmcture(s) along Grove Street.

Commercial areas along Marin Boulevard shall have a minimum floor to
ceiling height of sixteen (1 6) feet. In addition, ground floor commercial

space along Marin Boulevard may include a mezzamne level, which shall
not be counted as a floor in conformance with International Buildmg Code
standards.

g. f. Parapets and other roof-top appurtenances may exceed the permitted
height within the limitations imposed by the Jersey City Land
Development Ordmance.

Required Lot Size - All lots existing at the time of adoption of this Plan shall be
considered conforming lots and may be developed in conformance with
this Plan.

G. Permitted Coverage

Lot Size

Up to 5,000 sq. ft..

5,001 to 9,999 .sq. ft.

10,000 sq.ft.and above

Building Coverage

75%
85%
100% for the parking structure portion of -

the building provided that the roof of the
parking structure is no taller than 35 feet
and the residential building above the
parking structure covers no more than 65%

of the site, provided landscaping is
mcorporated over the roof of the parkmg

stracture..

Lot Cov.

80%
90%
100%

H. Required Setbacks

1. Front - Front setback shall match adjoining buildings, if any, however, the

Maximum front yard setback shall not exceed 10 feet, and Commercial usoa
may bo located up to the front property line in order to adjoin the sklewalfe the
minimum shall not be less than what is needed to achieve minimum Additional

front sotbacks may be requu'cd in order to meet appropriate sidewalk widths
ancL^ef-te^eefr-fee Design Standards found in Section VII of this Plan. Maximum
front yard setback shall be 10 feet,

2. The M^aximum front yard setback of 10 feet may only be exceeded as
necessary to allow for the plaza to be created at the corner of Louis
Munoz Marin Boulevard and Bay Street pursuant to the Community

ius of Block 115Q8, referenced in paragraph L of this

3. Side - None required.
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4. Rear -

Lot Size
Upto5;000sq.ffc.
5,001 to 9,999 sq. ft.

10,000 sq. ft.
and above.

Minimum Rear Setback

20 feet
15. feet

Zero for the parking structure portion of the building
provided that the roof of the parking structure is no taller

than 35 feet. The rear wall of the residential portion of

the building above the parking structure may not be
constructed further than 70 feet back from the front
property line / street line. In the case of a corner lot or

through lot, all street lines shall be considered front

property lines, and the building may wrap the corner.

I. Vehicular and Bicycle Parking Requirements

1. All Residential Uses - Off-Sfreet Parking

Lot Size
Up to 2,500 sq. ft.

Over 2,500 sq.ft.

]S/[initnum

Zero

0.5 space per unit

Maximum

1.0 space per unit

1.0 space per unit

2. All Other Uses - Off-Street Parking

Minimum - Zero Maximum" 1.0 space per 1,000 sq.ffc.

3r-. —Bicycle storage ahall be accommodatod in the building at a rate of 0.5

bicycloQ per dwelling unit. All dcvelopmont ia rcquu'cd to provido on •
stroot bike parking along the otroot &ontago m addition to intorior storage.

J. Abutting Luis Munoz IS/Earin Blvd.: A minimum of 5 feet step back is required at

the top of the fourth (4th) story.

1C. Community Benefit Bonus on Block 11507: The following development

regulations shall applyto development parcels onBlock 11507 that meet the
criteria listed below:

• Possess at least 150 feet offrontage on Marin Blvd.;

• Consist of at least 25,000 square feet; and

• The proposed development of the parcel must include a theater of at least

6,250 square feet which shall include an area for seating for an audience of

at least one hundred and twenty-five (125) persons, a stage and back stage
areas, rehearsal area and dressing rooms, an entry lobby at street level with

appropriate signage and/or marquee, a lounge/cafe area with appropriate
preparation facilities, office and storage areas. The theater space shall be

sufficiently completed so as to be fully operational as a theater, including
electrical systems, HVAC equipment and facilities as necessary for the
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safe and effective operation oftlie theater. The theater area shall be
donated to a school of higher education, a qualified 501(c)3 not-for-profrt
arts/theater group or qualified community group for a period of not less
than 20 years, which shall operate the theater.

1. Permitted and Accessory uses - Same as Base Zonmg

2. Minimum Dwellmg Unit Size — Same as Base Zoning, density shall be
dictated by unit size and building form requirements.

3. Permitted Height

a. All buildings shall have a base, which may contain any permitted
or accessory use and shall have a maximum height of 75 feet.

b. Buildings may also have a tower above the base. Themaxmmm
height of the tower, mclusive of the base height, shall not exceed
400 feet in total.

c. Additional height requh'ements — same as paragraph E.l above.
4. Tower Dimensions - The maximum length of any tower face may not

exceed 110 feet on any side, nor shall the floor plate exceed 10,000 square
feet in area. .

5. Maximum Permitted Building Coverage - 100% for the base of the
building and 40% for the tower portion of the building.

6. Required Setbacks:
a. Front — Front setback shall match adjoining buildings and the

predominant setback of the street, but in no instance shall the
sidewalk width be reduced beyond the minimum required by this
plan to accommodate the prevailing setback. Commercial uses

may be located up to the front property line in order to adjoin the
sidewalk. Additional front setbacks may be required in order to
meet appropriate sidewalk widths and/or to meet the Design
Standards found in Section VS of this Plan.

b. Side - Zero required, except as necessary to meet building, fire and

.safety codes.

c. Rear - Zero where.no windows are proposed in the building
. fa$ade, a minimum of 10 feet where windows are proposed, and

such additional distance as necessary to meet building, fire and
safety codes.

d. Minimum distance between tower elements shall be 100 feet.

7. Abutting Luis Munoz Marin Blvd.: A minimum of a 5 foot step back is

required at the top of the fourth (4 ) story.

8. Parking Requirements
a. Residential - Minimum of 0.25 per unit; Maximum of 0.5 per unit
b. All other uses-Minimum of Zero; Maximum of 0.5 per 1,000

square feet .

c. Bicycle Requkements - same as Base Zoning

9. Building Pa9ade and Fenestration
a. The side and rear facades of the building base shall be standard or

Norman, non-jumbo brick or a material that the Planning Board
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determines to be consistent with the character of the low rise

neighboring properties.
b. When the side or rear yard setback is 10' from the property line or

less, the building base along these fayades shall contain recessed
brick elements to mimic windows.

c. All fa9ades of the tower shall be of equal design m detailing and

materials.

d. A significant top, depicted by more than lighting, shall be
incorporated into the building tower to provide a unique design
element for the community and to allow the tower to be identified
at a distance as a beacon and transit oriented building.

L. Community Benefit Bonus on Block 11508: The following development
regulations shall apply to development parcels on Block 11508 that meet the
criteria listed below:

® The parcel must encompass the entire frontage along Marin Boulevard;

The parcel must consist of at least 25,000 square feet; and

® Theproposed development of the parcel must include a landscaped
open-space area at the corner of Bay Street and Marin Boulevard within
the parcel boundary. It shall contain public amenities such as; but not

limited to, a tree bosque, seating, bike racks, perennial and annual
planting beds, and be at least 3,000 square feet in size. Said open-space
shall be at or close to street level and open to thepublic, but shall be
maintained by the developer or owner of the development parcel.

® Windowed bays encompassing a minimum of 75% of the first floor
fagade are required along thefrontage of the open space plaza andLuis
Munoz Marin Boulevard. The windows must retain open views into the

retail space and shall not be blocked by any permanent or temporary
structure such as; but not limited to, display case, freezer, furniture,

signage, shelving^ etc.

1. Bonus Requirements

a. Projects that meet the above bonus criteria are eligible to receive
additional bonus dwelling units above the base density permitted by
the Redevelopment Plan based on a Community Benefit donation to
the City at the rate beginning at $10,600 per additional dwelling
un it.

b. The maximum permitted unit count shall be limited by the dwelling
unit size and building bulk and design requirements specified below.

c. The required bonus payment shall be made in two installments; fifty

percent (50%) prior to the issuance of any building permit for the
approved project and fifty percent (50%) prior to the issuance of any
certificate of occupancy for theproject

d. These bonus p&vfnenis to the Citv of Jersey City shall only be utilized
Ie one or more of the followins Communitv Benefits: 1) To

2) To acquire and improve public open space in the B.arsimns 'Cove
ie for
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rights-of-way within the community in order to enhance the
aesthetics and safety of the streetscape and pedestrian environment;

e. Moneys designated to provide affordable housing shall be deposited
into the City of Jersey City Affordable Housing Trust Fund.

/ M^oneys designated for the acquisition and improvement of public
open space and/or improvements to public rlghts-of-way within the
community shall be deposited in a separate dedicated City of Jersey
City account to be established for the exclusive purpose of providing
these improvements as approved by the Municipal Council of the

City of Jersey City.
g. The $10,000/bonus unit payment amount shall increase annually

based on the published percentage increase of the Consumer Price
Index , for the prior year beginning on January 1, 2016, Specifically,
Ihe CPIfor urban wage earners and clerical workers in the North

Eastern United States (New Ywk-Northern New Jersey-Long
Island, NY-NJ-CT-PA). In the event of a decline of this CPI, the
contribution amount shall not decrease.

2. Permitted and Accessory Uses -Same as Base Zoning Standards of

Section VHI

3. M.inimum Dwelling Unit Size — Same as Base Zoning Standards of
Section VIH

4. Permitted Height:

a> M'aximum Base Height' 80 feet
b. Maximum Tower Height: 375 feet , (inclusive of the base height)
c. Additional Height Requirements: Buildings built pursuant to

this bonus shall also be permitted two additional residential
stories above the permitted height, provided that they are set back
at least ten (10) feet from the front facade and the total height of
the building is not increased by more than twenty (20) feet above
the permitted height.

5. Tower Dimensions andLocation - The mcfximum floor plate of the

tower shall not exceed 11,000 square feet in area. The tower shall be
situated on the Nprtheastern portion of the site.

6. Maximum Permitted Building Coverage - 90% for the base of the

building and 40% for the tower portion of the building.

7. Required Setbacks and Step-backs:

a. Street Lines - The setback shall be as required in order to meet
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b. Interior Lot Lines - Zero for the base of the building up to the
top of the sixth floor. Floors within the base above the sixth

floor shall be setback a minimum of 10 feet and contain over
50% glazing and a green roof or landscaped outdoor terrace.

c. Abusing the M'arin Boulevard Street Line - A minimum of a 7

foot step-back is required at the top of the fifth (5 ) story.
d. Minimum distance between tower elements located on or off the

subject site shall be 100 feet

8. Parking Requirements:

a. Residential - Minimum of 0.25 per unit. Maximum of 0.5 per
unit.

b. All other uses - Minimum of Zero, M^aximum of 0.5 per 1,000 sq.

ft'

9. Building Facade & Fenestration

a. The primary materials used on the facades of the building base shall
be standard or Norman, non-jumbo brick or a material that the
Planning Board determines to be consistent with the character of the
low rise neighboring properties, however, concrete block, EIFS or
other cementations concrete material are prohibited.

b. Where the facade of the building base along the interior property
lines cannot contain windows or only limited glazing, these facades
shall contain recessed design elements to mimic windows and
provide architectural interest

c. Any Blank walls may also employ the use of public art or a mural on
the interior lot line walls of the building.

d. All facades of the building shall be of equal design in detailing and
materials. An exception may be requested for the facade treatment
where a mural will be placed at the time of site plan application.

e. A significant top, (depicted by more than lighting) shall be
incorporated into the building tower to provide a unique design
element in the skyline.

DC. ACQUISITION PLAN

An Acquisition Plan is provided on Map 4 entitled, Morgan/Grove/ Marm(MGM)
Redevelopment Plan Acquisition Map.

X. RELOCATION PLAN

There is expected to be only very limited acquisition of occupied properties by the

municipality or redevelopment agency. Nonetheless, should relocation of persons or
businesses become necessary, the process of relocating the affected persons and

businesses will receive the careful attention of local officials and the Jersey City
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Redevelopment Agency, and be conducted in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable Federal, State and Local laws.

XI. CIRCULATION PLAN

1. It is the intent of this Circulation Plan to provide a street layout for the Redevelopment
Area which is adequate to meet the circulation needs of the Redevelopment Area in terms
ofvehicular traffic and pedestrian volume, while at the same time recognizing that it is a
primary purpose of this Redevelopment Plan to promote the principles of a Transit
Village". That is; to provide pedestrian friendly streets and public rights-of-way, to

minimize automobile use by maximizing the appeal of mass transit and to encourage
reduced parking and shared use parking solutions.

2. All streets and rights of way within the Redevelopment Area shall remain open to the
public. The configuration of all streets wifhm the Redevelopment Area is expected to
remain as it is. To the greatest extent practical, all streets should provide on street

parking on both sides of the street unless restricted by local ordinance.

3. Sidewalk areas must be provided on both sides of the street and shall be properly sized

for the-safe and convenient movement of pedestrians through and around the Area, taking
into consideration the character of the adjoining area. In general, sidewalks serving
commercial areas should be wider than those serving residential uses. Sidewalks on
busier, wider streets such as Marin Boulevard and Grove Street should be wider than
sidewalks on the side streets in the Redevelopment Area.

EL OTHER PROVISIONS TO MEET STATE AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS

InaccordancewithNJSA40A:12A"letseq.,Chapter79,LawsofNew Jersey 1992, laiown as
"The Local Redevelopment and Housing Law", the following statements are made:
A. The Plan herein has delineated a definite relationship to local objectives as to appropriate

. land uses, density of population, and improved traffic and public transportation, public
utilities, recreation and community facilities and other public improvements.

B. The Plan has laid out various strategies needed to be implemented in order to carry out

the objectives of this Plan.
C. The Plan has given proposed land uses and building requirements for the Redevelopment

Area.

D. . The Acquisition Map and Acquisition Plan (Section DC), which are a part of this Plan,
indicate all property to be acquired as a result of this Plan.

E. The Plan is in general compliance with the Jersey City Master Plan and the Master Plan
of the County of Hudson. It is not contrary to the goals and objectives of the Jersey City

Master Plan. The Plan complies with the goals and objectives of the New Jersey

Development and. Redevelopment Plan in that this Plan and the State's plan both

recognize the need to redevelop urban land,
F. This Redevelopment Plan shall supersede all provisions of the Jersey City Zoning

Ordinance that are specifically addressed herein. Any zoning related question that is not
addressed herein shall refer to the Jersey City Zoning Ordinance for clarification. No
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variance from the requirements herein shall be cognizable by the Zoning Board of
Adjustment. The Planning Board alone shall have the authority to grant deviations from
the requirements of this plan, as provided herein. Upon final adoption of this Plan by the
Municipal Council of Jersey City, the Jersey City Zoning Map shall be amended to rezone
the Redevelopment Area covered by this Plan as a Redevelopment Area, and all
underlying zoning will be voided.

Xm. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDING THE PLAN

A. This Plan may be amended from time to time upon compliance with the requirements of
law. A fee of five thousand dollars ($5,000), plus all costs for copying and transcripts
shall be payable to the City of Jersey City for any request to amend this Plan. If there is a

designated developer, as provided for under NJSA 40A: 12A-1 et. seq., said developer
'shall pay these costs. If there is no developer the appropriate agency shall be responsible
for any and all costs.

B. No amendment to this Plan shall be approved without the review and recommendation of
the Planning Board, and a public hearing and adoption by Municipal Council. A copy of
any proposed change to the Plan shall be filed with the Office of the City Clerk.
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Amend Map 3 - M^GM Redevelopment Plan - Permitted Height to change aportion of District

(C) to District (A) and amend the District (C) note to read as follows: "All buildings and
structures must maintain their existing height"

Aproposedmap is.provided, Revised: March 2015
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City Clerk File No. Ord. 15.052

Agenda No._3.C _1st Reading
Agenda No._ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

Cin ORDINANCE 15.052

TITLE:

TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE ADDING A DEFINITION FOR FORMULA BUSINESSES

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-62, may adopt or cimend a zoning ordinance relating to the nature
and extent ofthe uses of land and of buildings and structures thereon; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council adopted tbe Land Development Ordinance, Chapter 345 of the Code of the City of Jersey
City, on April 11,2001, (Ordinance No. 01-042), and several amendments since then; and

WHEREAS, Article I of the Land Development Ordinance contains definitions; and

WHEREAS, the existing glossary does not include a definition for "formula business," which will be beneficial to distuiguish
fi-om other uses; and

WHEREAS) City Council has determined that formula businesses that are easily recognized as offering the same merchandise or
menu items and having the same branding and styling as many other locations throughout the region and therefore may detract
from established community character and. instill a sense of sameness to our commercial areas causing neighborhoods to feel less

unique;and

WHEREAS) downtown Jersey City supports a great variety of small, unique local businesses while most national chains have
been located within enclosed shopping mails, strip shopping centers, or along the wateriront. The Jersey City Municipal Council
has determined that fhis pattern of retail development remain in order to preserve Downtown's distinctive sense of place and
unique neighborhood character; and

WHEREAS, fhe Municipal Council, pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-64, has sought and received the recommendations of the Jersey
City Planniug Board relative to liiese issues; and

WHEREAS, the Planrdng Board at its meeting of April 7,2015 did vote to recommend fhat the Municipal Council amend the
Definitions of the Land Development Ordinance to add a definition for Formula Businesses; and

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made a part hereof, and are available
for public inspection at die Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by fhe Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City thatthe Land Development
Ordinance, be and hereby is amended as per tiie attached document;

BE IT FURTHER ORDAES'ED THAT:
A. Ail ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.
B, Thisordinanceshallbeapartofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fally herein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified
and incorporated in the ofiiciai copies of the Jersey City Code.
C, This ordinance shall take effect at thetime and in the manner as provided by law.
D. The City Clerk and fhe Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section
numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict'between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid
confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions,
E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to tlie hearing an the adoption of this Oidinance to the Hudson County
Pianaing board and to all ottier persons entitled thereto pursuant to WJ.S. 40:55D-15 and N.J.S, 40-.55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Orduiance
after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice oftlie passage thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the
Hudson County Planning Board as required by IS) J.S. 40:55D-16. The clerk shall also librthwitli transmit a copy offhis Ordinance after final.passageto the
Municipal Tax Assessor as required by NJ,S. 40:49-2.1. ' fw"~) ^ ^ ^S ^iyjSSfy-.--:

^>
Robert D. Cotter, FAICl^.'i3>,j)irec{or, Division of City Planning

./«^APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED?^

APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Admtnlstrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - NON-CQNTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be rehimed with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/ResoIution

ORIrtNANCE OF THE MUNICFPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING AN
AMENDMENT TO THE LAND DEVELOMENT ORDINANCE ADDING A DEFINITION FOR
FORMULA BUSINESSES

Initiator
Department/Drvision

Name/Title

Phone/email

HEDC

Robert Cotter, PP, FAICP

JeffWenger, AICP

Matt Ward, AJCP

201-547-5010

City Planning

Director

Principal Planner

Senior Planner

bobbyc@jcnj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 pjn.)

Resolution Purpose

The proposed amendments will provide a definition of "formula business" to the Land Development

Ordnance.

I certify that all tja^SScts presented herein are accurate.

Signature of BepTtrtm^ff Drpfector Date

G:\Land Development Ordinance Aniendments\Articie I - DeflnitionsVPormula Busmess\Council\Fact Sheet.docx



Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

Division of City Planning

Inter-Qffice IVlemorandum

DATE: April 8, 2015

TO: Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Bob Cotter

FROM: Matt Ward, A1CP

SUBJECT: LDO definition amendment to add Formula Business

The amendment before you was requested by Mayor Fulop and pertains to Formula
Business restrictions to various downtown Redevelopment Plans.

Formula Business restrictions were added where most appropriate.

Formula Businesses are establishments with multiple locations that exhibit standardized
characteristics such as logos, menu items, merchandise, store decor, and other
standardized features. These types of business establishments, more commonly
referred to as "chain stores", are frequently perceived to detract from community
character by replicating the standard designs and items at every location. The Mayor
requested the Planning Division to review formula business restrictions nationwide and
propose a definition and set of standards appropriate for Jersey City.



Summary Sheet:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
CITY ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE LAND DEVELOMENT
ORDINANCE ADDING A DEFINITION FOR FORMULA BUSINESSES

The proposed amendment will provide a definition of "formula busmess" to the Land

Development Ordinance.



Proposed amendment to the Land Development Ordinance, Article I

Section 345-6 - Definitions

as presented to the Jersey City Planning Board OBS Apri! 7,2015

FORMULA BUSINESS:

A type of business establishment that is contractually obligated to maintain two or more

standardized characteristics such as: array of merchandise, menu items, facade design, decor,

color scheme, uniform apparel, signage, trademark, or servicemark; and where 10 or more other

establishments that are similarly contractually obligated to the same corporate entity are in

operation within 300 miles of Jersey City.

(1) Standardized array of merchandise and menu items shall be defined as 50% or more of

items from a single distributor bearing uniform markings.

(2) Trademark and Servicemark shall be defined as a word, phrase, symbol or design, or a

combination of words, phrases, symbols or designs that identifies and distinguishes the source of

the goods or service from one party from those of others.

(3) Decor shall be defined as the style of interior furnishings, which may include but is not

limited to, style of furniture, wall coverings or permanent fixtures.

(4) Color Scheme shall be defined as selection of colors used throughout, such as on the

furnishings, permanent fixtures, and wall coverings, or as used on the facade.

(5) Uniform Apparel shall be defined as standardized items of clothing including but not

limited to standardized aprons, pants, shirts, smocks or dresses, hats, and pins (other than name

tags) as well as standardized colors of clothing.



City Clerk File No,

Agenda No.

Agenda No..

Ord. 15.053

3-D 1st Reading

,2nd Reading & Final Passage

OF
JERSEY CITY, NJ.

COUNCfL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15,053

TITLE:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CFTY OF JERSEY CHY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO VARIOUS REDEVELOPMENT PLANS TO ADD FORMULA BUSINESS
RESTRICTIONS

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Local Redevelopment and Housing Law empowers local government to adopt and
amend Redevelopment Plan to promote the advancement of community interests through a program of
redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, Jersey City Municipal Council has determined that formula business, which utilize standardized
features such as decor, menu or merchandise items, and logos, may detract from downtown Jersey City's unique

community character; and,

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Master Plan recommends additional land use regulations restricting formula businesses;
and

WHEREAS, downtown Jersey City supports a great variety of unique local businesses while most national chains in
downtown have located within, enclosed shopping mqlls, strip shopping centers, or near the waterfront, and

WHEREAS, Municipal Council has determined that tius pattern of retail development should remain in order to
preserve Downtown's distinctive sense of place and unique neighborhood character; and

WHEREAS, formula business restrictions will apply to the following redevelopment plans or pardons thereof: 8 Erie;
Bates Street; Betz Brewery; Block 10102; Block 239 Lot 47; Bright and Varick; Bright Street; Colgate; Columbus
Comer; Dbi.on Crucible; Exchange Place Norfc (only River View District, Block 11613 and Block 13003); Grand
Jersey; Grand Street; Gregory Park; Grove and Mercer; Grove Sfa-eet Jl; Grove Street N.D.P.; Grove Street Station;
Hamilton Square; Harsimus Cove Station (only West Neighborhood District); Henderson Street South; Hoboken
Avenue; Jersey Avenue Light Rail (only Transition District and Medium Rise District); Jersey Avenue Park; Liberty
Harbor North; Luis Munoz Maria; Majestic Theater; Majestic Theater II; Merseles Street; Montgomery Gateway
(only Adaptive Reuse District, Commercial Reuse District, Public District, Residential New Constmction District, and
Residential Rehabilitation District); Morgan Grove Marin; Newark Ave; Ninth and Brunswick; Ninth Street; Ninth
Street II; Paulus Hook (only N,D.P Area 1, Block 13 102); Powerhouse (exempt Block 11609); School #2; St. Francis
Hospital; Tidewater; Village; Wayne Street; and

WHEREAS, the various redevelopment plans or portions thereof subject to this amendment is depicted on the
attached map entitled "Proposed Formula Business Restrictions Ordinance Amendment," and

WHEREAS, fhe Municipal Council, pursuant to NJSA 40:55D-64, has souglit and received the recommendations of
the Jersey City Plauning Board relative to these issues; and

WHEREAS, the Plamiing Board at its meeting of April 7, 2015 did vote to recommend that the Mumcipal Council
amend the Reclevelopment Plans listed above; and

'WHEREAS, the PIamiing Board at its meeting of April 7, 2015 i.'ecommended a floor amendment to reduce the
provision about grocery stores from 35,000 square feet to 15,000 square feet; and



Continuation of City Ordinance 15.053 ., pase

WHEREAS, the amendments to Redevelopment Plans listed above are attached hereto and made a part hereof, and
are available for public inspection at fhe Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the
redevelopment plans listed above and depleted on the attached map, be and hereby are amended as per the attached
document;

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.
B. This ordinanceshallbeapailofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City
Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.
C. This ordmance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Coi-poration Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any
chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in fhe event that the codification of this ordinance reveals
that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible
repealers of existing provisions.
E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption
offhis Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to NJ.S.
40:55D-15andN.J.S.40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the
City Clerk is directed to pubUsh notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted
with the Hudson County Planning Board asrequu'edbyN.J.S. 40:55D-16. The clerk shall also forthwitii transmit a
copy of this Ordinance after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.J.S. 40:49-2.1.

^̂ Zr^^^^_
Robert D. Cotter, FAICP, PP, Director

Division of City Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:.

APPROVED:.
~^

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required i-l

Not Required 1-3



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET ~ NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolufxon

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCD. OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING TO
VARIOUS REDEVELOPMENT PLANS TO ADD FORMULA BUSINESS RESTRICTIONS

Initiator
Depaitment/Division

Name/Title

Phone/email

HEDC
Robert Cotter, PP, AICP

JefFWenger,AICP

Matt Ward, AICP

201-547-5010

City Planning

Director

Prmcipal Planner

Senior Planner

bobbyc@jcnj.org
Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4;00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

The proposed amendments will provide formula business restrictions to various downtown redevelopment

plans or portions thereof. Formula business, which utilize standardized features such as decor, menu or
merchandise items, and logos, may detract from do-wnto-wn Jersey City's unique community character.
Restrictions on formula business should be implemented to preserve Downtown's distinctive sense of place

and unique neighborhood character.

^/—
I cert^yfhat aIl^e^aetS'pr^eAted herein are accurate.

Signature of^epar^afenp'iirector Date

G:\KEPLANS\000 General RedevelopmentPlanInfo\Aniendments\Foraiu1aBusmess2015\Cou!iciWactSlieet.docx



Department of Housing? Economic Development & Commerce

Division of City Planning

Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE: April 13, 2015

TO: Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Bob Cotter

FROM: Matt Ward, AICP

SUBJECT: LDO definition amendment to add Formula Business

The amendment before you was requested by Mayor Fulop and pertains to the
definition of "Formula Business."

Adding a definition for Formula Business to the LDO will distinguish it from other uses
and prompt legislation restricting the amount and location of uses meeting the definition
of Formula Business.

Formula Businesses are establishments with multiple locations that exhibit standardized
characteristics such as logos, menu items, merchandise, store decor, and other
standardized features. These types of business establishments, more commonly
referred to as "chain stores", are frequently perceived to detract from community
character by replicating the standard designs and items at every location. The Mayor
requested the Planning Division to review formula business restrictions nationwide and
propose a definition and set of standards appropriate for Jersey City.



Summary Sheet:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
CITY ADOPTING TO VARIOUS REDEVELOPMENT PLANS TO ADD
FORMULA BTOFNESS RESTRICTIONS

The proposed amendments will provide formula business restrictions to various
downtown redevelopment plans or portions thereof. Formula business, which utilize

standardized features such as decor, menu or merchandise items, and logos, may detract
from downtown Jersey City's unique community character. Restrictions on formula
business should be implemented to preserve Downtown's distinctive sense of place and

unique neighborhood character.



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO VARIOUS DOWNTOWN
REDEVELOPMENT PLANS

Text that is added to various plans is in bold like this.

Floor amendments are in underlined bold italics

Text to be omitted by a floor amendment is strikethi-ough lilco thi&-

Amendment lansuaee added to the followine redeveloDment olans:

1. 8 Erie
2. Bates Street

3. Betz Brewery
4. Block 10102
5. Block 239 Lot 47
6. Bright and Varick
7. Bright Street RDP
8. Colgate

9. Columbus Corner

10. DixonCmcible
11. Exchange Place North (only

River View District, Block
11613 and Block 13003)

12. Grand Jersey
13. Grand Street

14. Gregory Park

15, Grove and Mercer
16. Grove Street II

17. Grove Street N.D.P.

18. Grove Street Station
19. Harsimus Cove Station

(only West Neighborhood
District)

20. Henderson Street South

21. Hoboken Avenue
22. Jersey Avenue Light Rail

(only Transition District and
Medium Rise District)

23. Jersey Avenue Park
24. Liberty Harbor North
25. Luis Munoz Marin

26. Majestic Theater

27. Majestic Theater II
28. Merseles Street

29. Montgomery Gateway (only
Adaptive Reuse District,
Commercial Reuse District,

Public District, Residential

Text to be inserted iflto the principal permitted use sectiou:

New Construction District,

and Residential
Rehabilitation District)

30. Morgan Grove Marin
31. Newark Ave
32. Ninth and Brunswlck

33. Ninth Street
34. Ninth Street II
35. Paulus Hook {only N.D.P

Area 1, Block 13102)
36. Powerhouse (exempt Block

11609)
37. School #2

St Francis Hospital]
39. Tidewater

40. Village
41. Wayne Street

All commercial retail areas within each structure or within a single tax lot shall limit formula business

establishments, as defined by the Land Development Ordinance, to a maximum of 30% of ground floor

gross leasable commercial area. For the purposes of this area restriction, the formula business definition

shall apply to the following uses, whether functioning as a principal or accessory use:

1. Retail sales of goods and services.

2. Restaurants, all categories.

3. Bars.

4. Financial service facilities and banks.

Grocery stores greater than 35,000 ilME^Isauare feet may exceed 30% of gross leasable commercial area,

but shall be the only formula business within such structure or lot.



PROPOSED FORMULA BUSINESS RESTRICTION ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
^—1 RedevelopmentAreas to be amended for Formula Business Restrictions

Areas not to be amended
MAP NO.:S05



City Clerk File No. Ord. 15.054

Agenda No.

Agenda No.

3.E 1st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE

JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

Cm ORDINANCE 15.054

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING
CHAPTER 345 (ZONING) ARTICLE IV (FEES, DEPOSITS AND INSPECTIONS),
SECTION 345-32 (NON-REFUNDABLE APPLICATION FEES) OF THE JERSEY CITY
MUNICIPAL CODE

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY HEREBY ORBAINS:

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40;55D-62, the Municipal Council adopted the Land

Development Ordinance, Chapter 345 of the Jersey City Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 01-
042), on April 11,2001, as amended thereafter; and

WHEREAS, Article TV, Section 345-32 sets forth the fees to apply for approvals from the
Planning Board, fhe Zoning Board of Adjustment, and the Historic Preservation Commission;
and

WHEREAS, presently, affordable housing projects that are entirely affordable housing are
exempt from fees; and

WHEREAS, in. the case of mixed-income or nuxed-use projects that only contain some
affordable housing, fees should be pro-rated so that only the affordable housing portion of the
project is exempt; and

WHEREAS, the clarification of this fee, as well as the definition of what constitutes affordable
housmg is necessary, appropriate and in the best interests of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to N.J.SA. 40:55D-64, sought and received the

recommendations of the Jersey City Planning Board relative to these issues and voted at its

meeting of March 24, 2015, to recommend that the Municipal Council amend the Fees of the
Land Development Ordinance to clarify the affordable housing project fee exemption; and

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made
a part hereof, and are available for public inspection in the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall,
280 Grove, Jersey City, NJ;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:

A. The following amendments to Chapter 345 (Zoning) Article I (General Provisions) are
hereby adopted:

ZONING

ARTICLE W
Fees, Deposits and Inspections

§345-32. Non-refundable application fees.



Continuation of City Ordinance
15.054

..•paas_

A. There shall be a non-refundable fee for applications to the Jersey City Planning Board,

Zoning Board of Adjustment, and Historic Preserva.ti.on Commission as provided by law
and established herein. The fees provided for shall be non-refundable and are for

purposes of offsetting the admuiisfaative and clerical costs of running these Boards.

B, The City of Jersey City and its agencies, such as the Housing Authority, Parking
.Authority and Board of Education, as well as applications for' affordable housing

:[de¥elepfflefi:te-|- (affordable housing_bemg defined, pursuant to NJ.S^A. 52:2ZD-3Qli et

seg^ or fhy U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development)^ and applications for
Certificates of Appropriateness and Certificates of No Effect submitted by non-profit

entities for property within a designated Historic District, are exempt from the fees
described herein.

C,. Asjor p_rpiectsj3y non-City entities that propose a mix of affordable housing and market
rate housing, the fees shallbe_i5ro-rated_sp that only affordable housing_units and fheir'

associated buildmg components, shall be exempt from the fees. All market rate housing
units and their associated 'bmldmg cqmponents^as well.^s non-residential (commercial or

mdustrial) units,_shall_remam subject to tiie fees described herein.

B. All ordinances and parts of ordinances mconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. ,

C. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies
of the Jersey City Code.

D. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided, by law.

E. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers, article
numbers and section numbers if codification, of this ordinance reveals a conflict between.

those numbers and the existing code, m order to avoid confusion, and possible accidental

repealers of existing provisions.

F. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the
hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board, and to
all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40:55D"15 and N.J.S.A. 40:55D"63

(if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing fhereon, the City
Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a. copy of'the

Ordinance as frnaUy adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by
N.J.S.A. 40;55D-al6. The Clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance
after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.J.S.A. 40:49-2.1,

Note: All new material is underlined; words in [brackets] are omitted.

For purposes of advertising only, new matter is boldface and
repealed matter by italics.

4/02/15

Robert D. Cotter, FAICP, PP, Du-ector

Division of City Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED;,

APPROVED:_
Corpora lion Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required D

Not Required Q



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET- NON-C_ONTRACT_UAL
This summary sheet Is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration,

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE APPLICATION FEE REGULATIONS OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE

Initiator

Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/email

HEDC
Robert Cotter, PP, AICP

201-547-5010

City Planning.

Director

bbbbyc@jcnj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meetmg @ 4:00 p.m,)

Resolution Purpose

The proposed amendment clarifies the fees required for affordable housing projects; specifically, fees for any
mixed-income or mixed-use projects will be calculated on a pro-rated basis and only the affordable

component(s) will be exempt.

I ceykSy that a^'the ^efs'prg^enfed herein are accurate.

lA C

Signature of^fepartmenyEftrector

Signature of Division Director

jW/^1
Date

t^&'/€

Date

G;\Land Development Ordinance Amendments\Article IV - Fees, Deposits, Inspect;ons\2015 Prorateci fees\Council\I?act Sheet.docx



Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

Division of City Planning

Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE: March 25, 2015

TO: Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Bob Cotter

FROM: Kristin J. Russell, PP, AICP \^"^C\/L^

SUBJECT: Application Fees -Affordable Housing

The amendments before you pertain to Application Fees for affordable housing.

Presently, affordable housing development is exempt from application fees. This
amendment clarifies that any mixed housing developments (partially affordable, partially
market rate) will be subject to fees for the market rate and non-residential cojnponents
for the project on a pro-rated basis.

Previously, there was some confusion as to whether fees would be waived for mixed
income housing, and this amendment affirms that only the affordable housing
component is exempt.



Summary Sheet:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE APPLICATION FEE
REGULATIONS OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

s •

The proposed amendment clarifies the fees required for affordable housing projects^
specifically, fees for any mixed-income or mixed-use projects will be calculated on a pro-

rated basis and only the affordable component(s) will be exempt.

G:\Land Development Ordinance AmendmentsVArticle TV - Fees, Deposifs, Inspections\20l5 Prorated fees\Council\Suirmnary
Sheet.doc



City Clerk File No..

Agenda No.

Agenda No.

Ord. 15.055

3.F 1st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.055

ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER A351 (EXECUTIVE ORDERS AND
ORDINANCES) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE TO CREATE A NEW CLASSIFIED
POSITION FOR ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEER 1

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

A. The following supplements to Chapter A351 (Executive Orders and Ordinances) of the
Jersey City Code are adopted:

Labor Grade Title

Environmental Engineer 1

B. All ordinances and parts of ordinances iaconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

C. Tliis ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set
forth therein. The City shall have this ordinance codified and mcorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code.

D. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

E. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event

that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers

and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of

existmg provisions.

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words in [bracfeets] are omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by boldface and

repealed matter by Ualic.

^Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:69A-43a.

JF/he
4/10/15

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:,

APPROVED:.
Corporation Counsel Business Admlrilsiralor

Certification Required Q

Not Required Q



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACJUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

0?INANCE SUPPLEMENTmG CHAPTER A351 (EXECUTIVE ORDERS AND ORDINA^CBS) OF
THE JERSEY CITY CODE TO CREATE A NEW CLASSIFIED POSITION FOR ENVIROMENTAL
ENGINEER 1

Initiator
Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/emaU

Human Resources

Nancy Rainos

(201)547-5224

Workforce Management

Human Resources Du-ector

nancyr@jcnj.org

Note: [nitiator must be available by piione during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to comicif meeting @ 4;00 p.ui.)

Resolution Purpose

To establish a new title for Justlna H. Cheng in accordance with New Jersey Department of Civil Services
Commission Rules and Regulations,

Lpertify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

^^_ ._.___ .._ .. IkihS

Signatm^ of Department Director Date



STEVEN M.FULOP
MAYOR OF JERSEY CITY

CITY OF JERSEY CITY
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

CITY HALL | 280 GROVE STREET | J ERSEY CITY, NJ 07302
P: 201 547 5500 I F: 201 547 5442

STEVEN M.FULOP
MAYOR OF JERSEY CITY

E.0._ ,2015

EXECUTIVE ORDER OF THE MAYOR
OF THE

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

CLASSIFIED POSITIONS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to the Faulkner Act, N.J.S.A. 40:69A-48, as amended by L.1985, c.374, the Mayor is now

authorized to set the salaries, wages or other compensation of all employees of administrative departments
except department directors and employees whose salaries are required to be set by ordinance.

Pursuant to this authorization, I issue the following Executive Order establishing guidelines for
salaries and wages of those employees whose salaries are set by the Mayor:

Labor Grade

21

This order shall take effect immediately.

Title

Environmental Eneineer 1

Very truly yours/

STEVEN M. FULOP/ MAYOR

SHF/he

ec: Robert J. Kakoleski, Business Administrator
Jeremy Farrell, Corporation Counsel
Robert Byrne, City Clerk
Donna Mauer, Chief Financial Officer
Nancy Ramos, Personnel Director

WWWJ EPS EYCITYNJ.GOV



City Clerk File No..

Agenda No.

Agenda No.

Ord. 15.056

3.G 1 st Reading

2nd Reading & Finaf Passage

ORDINANCE

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.056

TITLE: ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY TO LEASE CITY-
OWNED PROPERTY AT 13-15 LINDEN AVENUE TO THE JERSEY CITY
INCINERATOR AUTHORITY

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the Jersey City Incinerator Authority ("JCIA") did formerly own. and occupied property
located at 501 Route 440, Jersey City, New Jersey 07305; and

WHEREAS, onApril 21,2008, theJCIA entered into a Settlement Consent Order ("SCO") with the
City of Jersey City ("City"), the Jersey City Municipal Utilities Authority, the Jersey City
Redevelopment Authority, and Honeywell International, Inc., which resolved certain litigation

between those parties and provided for the sale and eventual redevelopment of several adjacent

properties, including the JCIA's former property; and

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the JCIA's former property, as contemplated by the SCO, requires

the permanent relocation of the JCIA's operations, equipment, materials, and personnel; and

WHEREAS) the City owns the real property located at 13-15 East Linden Avenue, Jersey City, New
Jersey (the "Property ) upon which it has constructed a new Municipal Services Complex, which
premises are fit up and suitable for the operations, equipment, materials, and personnel of the JCLA;
and

WHERAS, the JCIA desires to relocate its operations, equipment, materials, and personnel to the

Property, and the City wishes to lease a portion of the Properly to the JCIA which includes the entire
third floor of the Municipal Services Complex; and

WHEREAS, the City agrees to lease the Property to the JCIA for the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) a
year; and

WHEREAS, the term of the Lease Agreement shall continue until such time as the JCIA's operations
are either relocated to another property or premises sufficient to conduct all of its operations, or that

the City formally dissolves the JCIA, or until twelve (12) months after Ae adoption ofaresolutionby
the City Comcil determining the Property is needed for another public purpose; and

WHEREAS, NJ,S.A. 40A;12-14(b) provides that a mumcipality may convey an interest mproperty
to a public body corporate and politic for nommal consideration,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:

1. The Mayor or Business Administrator is authorized to execute the attached Lease Agreement

with the JCIA for the Property located at 13-15 Linden Avenue subject to the following terms
and conditions;



Continuation of City Ordinance _____ i^-Q^ __ , ___ _ , _ , page

(i) the term. of the Lease Agreement shall continue until such time as the JCIA's

operations are either relocated to another property or premises sufficient to conduct all

of its operations, or that the City formally dissolves the JCIA, or until twelve (12)
months after the adoption of a resolution by the City Council determining the Property

is needed for another public purpose;

(it) the annual rent shall be $1.00;

(iii) the City shall be responsible for paying the cost of all utilities;

(iv) the JCIA shai\ indenuufy, defend, and hold the City and its officers, agents and
employees harmless from any and all claims of personal injmy and property damage

arising out of the JCIA's occupancy and use of the Property; and

2. The Lease Agreement shall be substantially in the form of the attached, subject to such
modifications as the Corporation. Counsel or Business Administrator deems necessary or

appropriate.

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

B, Tliis ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City shall have this ordmaace codified and mcorporated m the official copies of
the Jersey City Code,

C. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to

change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the

codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a. conflict between those numbers and the

existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing

provisions,

RR
3-30-15

NOTE: All new material is underlined; words
m{b¥aefeets^ are omitted. Forpurposes

of advertising only, new matter is

mdicated by boldface and repealed
matter by italic.

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required Q

Not Required D



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - CONTRACT AWARD
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY TO LEASE CITY-OWNED
PROPERTY AT 13-15 LINDEN AVENUE TO THE JERSEY CITY
INCINERATOR AUTHORITY

Project Manager

Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/email

Administration

Gregory Corrado

547-5561
Asst. Business Administrator

gcorrado@jcnj.org

Note: Project Manager must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Contract Purpose

The redevelopment of the Jersey City Incinerator Authority's (JCIA) former property at Rt. 440 requu-es the

p.ennanent relocation of the JCIA's operations, equipment, materials, and personnel. The City owns the real

property located at 13-15 East Linden Avenue, Jersey City (the "Property") upon which it has constructed a
new Municipal Services Complex, which premises are fit up and suitable for the operations, equipment,

materials, and personnel of the JCIA. The JCIA desires to relocate its operations, equipment, materials, and
personnel to the Property, and the City wishes to lease a portion of the Property to the JCIA.

Cost (Identify all sources and amounts) Contract term (include all proposed renewals)

Annual rent payable by the JCIA is $1.00. Not a fDced term lease. Please see Additional

Information below.

Type of award Leasing of property to a public entity

If "Other Exception", enter type

Additional Information

The term of the Lease Agreement shall continue until such time as the JCIA's operations are either relocated
to another property or premises sufficient to conduct all of its operations, or that the City formally dissolves

the JCIA, or until twelve (12) months after the adoption of a resolution by the City Council determining the
Property is needed for another public purpose.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director Date
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LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY AND

THE JERSEY CITY INCINERATOR AUTHORITY

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the "Lease") is made and entered by and among the City
of Jersey City (the "City" or "Lessor"), a municipality of the State of New Jersey, and the Jersey

City Incinerator Authority (the "JCIA" or "Lessee"), a body corporate and politic of the State of
New Jersey (each individually a "Party", collectively the "Parties").

WHEREAS, the JCIA did formerly own and occupy the property located at 501 Route
440, Jersey City, New Jersey 07305;and

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2008, the JCIA entered into a Settlement Consent Order
("SCO") with the City, the Jersey City Municipal Utilities Authority, the Jersey City
Redevelopment Autlaority, and Honeywell International, Inc., which resolved certain litigation
between those parties and provided for the sale and eventual redevelopment of several adjacent

properties, including the JCIA's former property; and

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the JCIA's former property, as contemplated by the
SCO, requires the permanent relocation of the JCIA's operations, equipment, materials, and

personnel; and

WHEREAS, the City owns the real property located at 13-15 East Linden Avenue,
Jersey City, New Jersey (the "Property") upon which it has constructed a new Municipal

Services Complex, which premises are fit up and suitable for the operations, equipment,

materials, and personnel of the JCIA; and

WHERAS, the JCIA desires to relocate its operations, equipment, materials, and
personnel to the Property, and the City wishes to lease a portion of the Property to the JCIA.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties to this Lease, in consideration of the covenants and
stipulations set forth herein, agree as follows:

1. Lease of Premises, hi consideration of the rents and covenants herein stipulated

to be paid and performed by the JCIA and upon the terms and conditions herein specified, the
City hereby leases to JCIA, and the JCIA hereby leases fi'om the City the following premises on
the Property, together with the improvements located thereon (the "Leased Premises"): (a) the

entire third floor of the Municipal Services Complex; (b) certain designated office, storage,
and/or work spaces on the first floor of the Municipal Services Complex; and (c) certain
designated parking areas for employee vehicles, operational vehicles or equipment (see diagrams

depicting Leased Premises attached hereto as "Schedule A"). The JCIA shall have exclusive
control over and use of the Leased Premises during the Term of this Lease, as defined herein. In

addition to the Leased Premises, the JCIA shall have full access to certain common or shared
areas of the Property, which are intended to be used by the JCIA and certain designated

departments of the City, including, but not limited to automotive/mechanic bays, fuel storage and
dispensmg facilities, and salt storage facilities.



2. Use of Leased Premises. The JCIA is hereby authorized to exclusively use the
Leased Premises for any and all operations and activities which it performs on behalf of the City
and its residents, pursuant to the Incinerator or Environmental Services Authorities Law,

NJ.S.A. 40:66A-1 et sea., including but not limited to all services relative to the collection,

treatment or disposal m a sanitary manner of garbage and refuse, sanitation, recycling, park and

other recreation area maintenance, demolition, repair or maintenance of unsafe, unsanitary, or
unsound stmctures, automobile towing and impound, municipal vehicle maintenance and repair

and services related thereto, street and road safety services, snow removal, environmental
compliance and education, services necessary or appropriate for neighborhood beautification or

environmental improvement, and any other service relative to maintaining a sanitary, safe, and

healthy environment within a municipality.

3. Term. This Lease shall become effective upon the first date upon which JCIA
shall relocate its operations, personnel, equipment or other property to the Property, and shall
continue in full force and effect until such time as the JCIA's operations are either relocated to

another property or premises sufficient to conduct all of its operations, or that the City formally

dissolves the JCIA, by properly complying with the prerequisites ofNJ.S.A. 40A:5A-20 and

obtaining approval for such dissolution from the Local Finance Board, or until twelve (12)
months after the adoption of a resolution pursuant to Section 25 hereof (the "Term"),

4. Rent. The JCIA shall pay to the City as fixed rent for the Leased Premises, One
Dollar ($1.00) per year (the "Rent") at the City's address as set forth above, or at such other

address or to such other person as the City may from time to time designate. The first such rent
payment shall be made on the commencement date of this Lease. Thereafter, payments shall be

made by or before the tenth day of January of each year.

5. Taxes, Assessments and Utilities. The Rent paid as provided herein shall be
deemed to include all county, municipal, or local taxes, assessments, levies, fees, electric and gas
utility fees, water and sewer fees, telephone and internet charges, permit fees, and all other
governmental charges or assessments, which accrue with respect to the Lease Premises at any

time during the Term of this Lease.

6. Compliance with Laws. The JCIA shall at its sole cost and expense comply with

and cause the Leased Premises to comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders now
or hereafter enacted, made or issued, whether or not presently contemplated (collectively
"Laws"), applicable to the Leased Premises or the JCIA's use thereof.

' a. Underground Fuel Storage Tanks. The provisions of this Paragraph shall not

apply to the ownership, permitting, registration, regulation, operation, or
closure, of any underground gasoline or fuel storage tanks, associated piping,
equipment and/or fuel dispensing facilities, except that the JCIA, including all
JCIA employees, agents, representatives, consultants, or contractors, shall at

all times exercise its reasonable best efforts to use any fueling equipment on
the Property in such a manner as to avoid the spilling, dripping, or direct

discharge of any gasoline or fuel onto the ground surface.



b. Permitted Contests. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Paragraph or any

other provision of this Agreement, the JCIA shall not be required, nor shall
the City have the right, to pay, discharge or remove any tax, assessment, levy,
fee, penalty, charge, lien or encumbrance, or to comply with any Laws, as

long as the JCIA is diligently and in good faith contesting the existence,
amount or validity thereof by appropriate proceedings which operate to
prevent sale, forfeiture or loss of the City's interest in the Property or any part

thereof or materially adversely affect the City or any of its rights hereunder,
and provided that such contest shall not subject the City to the risk or any
criminal or civil liability. The JCIA further agrees that each such contest shall
be promptly prosecuted to a final conclusion, that it will hold and save the
City harmless against any and all losses, judgments, and decrees in connection

therewith, and that it will, promptly after the final determination of such
contest, fally pay and discharge -the amounts which shall be levied, assessed,

charged or imposed or be determined to be payable therein, together with all
penalties and fines thereon or in connection therewith, and perform all acts the
performance of which shall be finally ordered or decreed as a result thereof.

The City agrees, at its sole expense, to cooperate with the JCIA. in any contest
permitted hereby, to execute any documents relating thereto that are
reasonably requested by the JCIA and that do not materially and adversely
affect the City or any of its rights hereunder.

7. Maintenance and Repair. Subject to Paragraphs 2 (Use of Leased Premises)
and 8 (Alterations and Additions), the JCIA, at its own expense, will maintain the Leased
Premises in compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances and in good repair and
condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and will take all action and will make all non-
structural repairs (e.g. plumbing fixtures, electrical outlets, lighting fixtures, etc.) that may be
required to keep the Leased Premises in good repair and condition, ordinary wear and tear

excepted. If non-stmctural repairs or maintenance of the Leased Premises is required during the

Term of the Lease, the JCIA will assume the costs and expenses related to same. The City shall
retain responsibility for any necessary structural repairs or necessary capital improvements to the

Property and the Leased Premises. Should structural repairs or capital improvements to the
Leased Premises become necessary, the JCIA shall provide the City with written notice pursuant

to Paragraph 12 (Notice).

a. Garbage Removal. The JCIA shall at its own cost and expense dispose of all

garbage and debris generated each day during the Term of the Lease and
deposit such garbage m the area designated for disposal at the Property.

8. Alterations and Additions by JCIA. The JCIA may, at its sole expense,
improve, or make any additions and/or alterations or substitute improvements necessary for the
perfonnance of its operations (collectively "Alterations"). JCIA shall submit plans and
specifications for Alterations to Lessor. Lessor shall review the plans and specifications and

notify of JCIA of its approval or disapproval within fifteen (15) days after submission. In the
event Lessor shall not approve JCIA's plans and specifications. Lessor shall notify JCIA in



writing of any changes required by Lessor and JCIA shall incorporate any such reasonable
changes therein and deliver the JCIA^s plans and specifications, as revised, to Lessor, for

Lessor's approval. Such Alterations, if permanent, shall belong to the JCIA until the end of the
Term, at which time they shall become, in their then-existing condition, the property of the City.
If, at the end of the Term of the Lease, the JCIA is to be relocated to another property, all non-
permanent Alterations shall remain the property of the JCIA and shall be removed and relocated
by the JCIA. Any non-permanent Alterations left in place after the JCIA's relocation shall

become the property of the City.

9. Equipment & Materials. The JCIA shall, at its own cost and expense, supply all
equipment and materials necessary for the conduct of any of its operations whether conducted on

or off the Leased Premises. Any equipment or materials installed, used, or stored on the Leased

Premises by the JCIA in connection with its operations shall be deemed to be the property of the
JCIA. Neither the City nor any of its departments, employees, agents, representatives, or
contractors shall handle, borrow, or utilize any of the JCIA's equipment or materials without the
express permission of the JCIA. If, at the end of the Term of the Lease, the JCIA is to be

relocated to another property, all such equipment or materials shall be removed by the JCIA. In

the event that any such equipment or materials are not so removed within thirty (30) days of the
JCIA's relocation to another property, such equipment and materials shall be deemed abandoned,

and the City shall have the right to dispose of the equipment and materials and charge the costs
of such disposal to the JCIA.

a. Shared Materials or Resources. The provisions of this Paragraph shall not

apply to gasoline or diesel fuel, which the JCIA shall purchase from the City,
pursuant to the Agreement for the Resale of Gasoline and Diesel Fuel as Part

of a Commodity Resale System, which is attached hereto as "Schedule B"
and incorporated into the terms of this Lease as if fully set forth herein.

10. Indemnification by JCIA. The Lessee agrees to assume any and all risk of loss

or damage of any kind whatsoever to property or injury to or death including wrongful death of
persons arising out of the Lessee's use of the Leased Premises permitted herein. The Lessee

further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, directors, employees or

agents from and against any and all claims, suits and demands based upon any of the risks so

assumed, whether just or unjust, fraudulent or not, and for all costs and expenses incurred by
them in the defense, settlement or satisfaction of any such claims, including attorney's fees and

costs of suit. If so directed, the Lessee shall, at no cost or expense to the City, defend against
such claims, in which event the Lessee shall not, without obtaining express permission in

advance from the Corporation Counsel of the City, raise any defense involving in any way the
immunity of the City, or the provisions of any statutes respecting suits against the City. The

Lessee's liability under this Lease shall continue after the termination of it with respect to any
liability, loss, expense or damage resulting from acts occurrmg prior to termination.

a. Underground Fuel Storage Tanks^ The provisions of this Paragraph shall not

apply to the ownership, permitting, registration, regulation, operation, or
closure, of any underground gasoline or fuel storage tanks, associated piping,

equipment and/or fuel dispensing facilities or any claims, demands, liabilities,



debts, penalties, or obligations related to same, unless such claims relate to the

negligent or grossly negligent acts or omissions of the JCIA, its employees,
agents, representatives, contractors, or invitees.

11. Insurance.

a. The JCIA shall obtain and maintain insurance for its own benefit and the
benefit of the City from an "A" rated carrier, throughout the Term of this

Lease, of the following types and amounts:

i. Comprehensive General Liability . $1,000,000.00 per occurrence

and $2,000,000.00 aggregate

ii. Auto Liability $1,000.000.00

iii. Fire & Casualty $300,000.00

iv. Excess Liability $5,000,000.00

b. Upon the commencement date of this Lease, the JCIA shall supply the City
with a certificate of insurance evidencing that the insurance coverage above is

in full force and effect aad naming the City as an additional insured.

c. If the Leased Premises or any part thereof are damaged or destroyed by fire,

action of the elements, catastrophe, casualty, or other physical causes, all

insurance proceeds with respect to any personal property belonging to the
JCIA or third parties claiming under the JCIA shall belong to the JCIA.

d. The JCIA must show proof of workers' compensation insurance in the amount

requu'ed by statute. The JCIA must show proof of employee liability of at
least $500,000.00/$500,000.00/$500,000.00.

12. Notice. All notices, consents, and other instruments required to be given pursuant

to this Lease shall be in writing and shall be mailed by prepaid registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, to either party at the address provided below:

To the City:

Robert Kakolesld, Business Administrator
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, NJ 07302

To the JCIA:

OrenK.Dabney,Sr.,CEO



Jersey City Incinerator Authority
13-15 East Linden Avenue

Jersey City, New Jersey

with a copy to:

Eric E. Tomaszewsld, Esq.
Golub, Isabel & Cervino, P.C.
160 Littleton Road, Suite 300
Parsippany, New Jersey 07054

Notices shall be deemed effective upon receipt and, if mailed, shall be presumed received

three business days after being deposited, postage paid, in the United States mail. Both Parties
shall notify the other of any changes to the notification recipients and addresses listed above.

13. Right of Entry by City. The City reserves unto itself the right to enter the
Leased Premises for any and all purposes. Such entry, however, shall not interfere with or
impede the operations, functions, or work to be performed by the JCIA. In all but emergent

circumstances, the City shall provide the JCIA reasonable advance notice of the need to enter the
Leased Premises and shall afford the JCIA the opportunity to provide a representative to escort

any City representatives on the Leased Premises.

14. Unavailability of Leased Premises. If by reason of fire, action of elements,
catastrophe, casualty, or any other physical causes, the Leased Premises are deemed by City

officials to be unavailable for public use, this Lease shall terminate. If the fire or other casualty
and damage shall be a result of the carelessness, negligence or improper conduct of the Lessee or

the Lessee's agents, employees, guests, licensees, invitees, subtenants, assignees or successors,
Lessee shall be liable to the Lessor for the damage and loss suffered by the Lessor. If the Lessee
shall have been insured against any other risks herein covered, then the proceeds of such

insurance shall be paid over to the Lessor to the extent of the Lessor's cost and expense to make

the repairs hereunder, and such insurance carrisr shall have no recourse against the Lessor for
reimbursements.

15. Assisnment The JCIA shall not assign this Lease or sublease any part hereof
without the express written permission of the City.

16. Surrender. Upon the expiration or termination of the Term of this Lease, the

JCIA shall surrender the Leased Premises to the City with the then existing structures and
improvements, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 8 (Altemations and Additions by JCIA)
and Paragraph 9 (Equipment and Materials).

17. SeverabiUty; Binding Effect; Amendments to be in Writing. Each provision

of this Lease shall be separate and independent and the breach of any such provision by either
Party shall not discharge or relieve the other Party from its obligations to perform each and every

covenant on its part to be performed hereunder. If any provision hereof shall, to any extent, be
found invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby,



and each provision hereof shall be valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law. Except
for the circumstances of termination set forth in Paragraph 3 (Term), this Lease may not be
modified or discharged except as agreed to in writing signed by both Parties.

18. Governmg Law. This Lease shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

19. Headines. The headings of various paragraphs herein have been inserted for

convenient reference only and shall not, to any extent, effect or modify the express terms and
provisions of this Lease.

20. Quiet Enjoyment. So long as the JCIA keeps and performs all of its covenants
and conditions under this Lease, it shall have quiet, undistirbed, and continued possession of the

Leased Premises, from all claims against the City and all persons claiming under, by, or through
the City.

21. Force Maj cure. If the City or the JCIA is delayed, hindered, or prevented from
performing any act required hereunder by reason of strikes, lookouts, labor troubles, inability to

procure materials, failure of power, restrictive government laws or regulations, riots,
insurrection, terrorism, the action or inaction of the other Party, war, or other reason beyond its
control, then performance of the act shall be excused for the reasonable period of the delay. In
that event, the period for the performance of the act shall be extended for a period equivalent to

the reasonable period of the delay.

22. Third Parties. Nothing herein contained shall be understood or constructed to

create or grant any third party benefits, rights or property interests unless the person claiming

such rights is identified herein and the rights claimed are expressly set forth herein.

23. This lease agreement is not intended to grant permission to use and occupy

property not under the jurisdiction of the City.

24. Default by Lessee. The following shall be deemed an event of default by Lessee

and a breach of this Lease:

a. A default in the performance of any covenant or condition ofUiis Lease on the

part of Lessee to be performed for a period of thirty (30) days after written

notice to Lessee. No default on the part of Lessee in performance of work

required to be performed or acts to be done or conditions to be modified shall

be deemed to exist if steps shall have been commenced by Lessee diligently

after five (5) days written notice by Lessor to Lessee to rectify the same and

shall be prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence, subject, however

to Force Majeure. If Lessee has not cured the default, the Lessor may

thereupon or at any time thereafter, elect to cancel this Lease by thirty (30)



days' written notice to Lessee and this Lease shall terminate on the day in

such notice specified.

25. Termination for Public Purpose. In the event that the City Council of the

City of Jersey City determines that the premises is needed for another public purpose, then this
lease shall terminate within twelve (12) months from the date of adoption of a resolution by the
City Council of Jersey City authorizing the use of the property for another public purpose.
Lessor shall deliver notice of such a determination to the Lessee. The Lessee covenants and

agrees to vacate the premises, remove all the Lessee's personal property therefrom and deliver up
peaceful possession thereof to the Lessor or to such other party designated by the Lessor in the

aforementioned notice by the expiration of the twelve (12) months followmg the adoption of the
Council resolution. Failure by the Lessee to comply with any provisions of this paragraph shall
cause the Lessee to be subject to such costs, expenses, damages and losses as the Lessor may
incur by reason of the Lessee's breach thereof.

26. Lessor's Remedies. If the Lessee shall fail or refuse to comply with and perform

any conditions and covenants of the within Lease, the Lessor may, if the Lessor so elects, to

carry out and perform such conditions and covenants, at the cost and expense of the Lessee, then

said cost and expense shall be payable on demand. This remedy shall be in addition to such

other remedies as the Lessor may have hereunder by reason of the breach by the Lessee of any of

the covenants and conditions in this lease contains.

27. Lessor's Right of Reentry. If there should occur any default on the part of the

Lessee in the performance of any conditions and covenants herein contained, or if during the

term hereof the Leased Premises or any part thereof shall be or become abandoned or deserted,

vacated or vacant, or should the Lessee be evicted by summary proceedings or otherwise, the

Lessor in addition to any other remedies herein contained or as may be permitted by law, may

either by force or otherwise come without being liable for a prosecution thereof, or for damages

reenter the said Leased Premises and again possess and enjoy the Leased Premises.

28. Non-Liabilitv of Lessor. The Lessor shall not be liable for any damage or injury

which may be sustained by the Lessee or any other person, as a consequence of the failure,

breakage, leakage or obstruction of the water, plumbing, steam, sewer, waste or soil pipes, roof,

drains, leaders, gutters, valleys, downspouts or the like or the electrical gas, power, conveyor,

refrigeration, sprinkler, air-conditioning or heating systems, elevators or hoisting equipment; or

by reason of the elements; or resultmg from the carelessness, negligence or improper conduct on

the part of any other lessee of the Lessor or this any other lessee's agents, employees, guests,

licensees, invltees, subtenants, assignees or successors; or attributable to any interference with,

interruption of or failure, beyond the contTol of the Lessor, of any services to be fm-nished or

supplied by the Lessor.



29. Non-Waiver by Lessor. The various rights, remedies, options and elections of

the Lessor, expressed herein, are cumulative, and the failure of the Lessor to enforce strict

performance by the Lessee of the conditions and covenants of this Lease or to exercise any

election or option or to resort or have recourse to any remedy herein conferred or the acceptance

by the Lessor of any instalhnent of rent after any breach by the Lessee, in any one or more

instances, shall not be construed or deemed to be a waiver or a relinquishment for the future by

the Lessor of any such conditions and covenants, options, elections or remedies, but the same

shall continue in full force and effect.

30. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire contract between the Parties.

No representative, agent or employee of the Lessor has been authorized to make any

representations or promises with reference to the within letting or to vary, alter or modify the

terms hereof. No additions, changes or modifications, renewals or extensions hereof, shall be

binding unless reduced to writing and signed by the lessor and the Lessee.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS
OF THE LAST DATE WRITTEN BELOW:

THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY JERSEY CITY INCINERATOR AUTHORITY

Robert Kakoleski

Business Administrator

OrenK,Dabney,Sr.CEO

DATE DATE

WITNESS: WITNESS:

DATE DATE



"Schedule A"

(Diagrams of Leased Premises)
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"Schedule B"

(Aereement for tM Resale of Gasoline and Diesel Fuel as Part of a Commodity Resale

System)



AGREEMENT FOR THE RESALE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL
AS PART OF A COMMODITY RESALE SYSTEM

This Agreement for the Resale of Gasoline and Diesel Fuel as Part of a Commodity Resale
System (the "Agreement') is made by and between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (the "City") and the
JERSEY CITY INCINERATOR AUTHORITY (the "JCIA") (each individuaiiy a "Party", collectively the
"Parties") and entered into pursuant to the Commodity Resale Provisions of the Cooperative Purchasing
Rules (N.J.A.C. 5:34-7,1 eiseq.).

WHEREAS, the City owns and operates a fuel storage and dispensing facility for its own needs,
which is located on the premises of the Jersey City Municipal Services Complex, 13-15 East Linden
Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey (the "Property"); and

WHEREAS, the JCSA is desirous of making use of the motor fuel system owned by the City located
at the Property.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration for the promises and of the mutual covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Supply of JVIotor Fuel. The JCiA requires an estimated 2000 gallons of regular
unleaded and 7000 gallons of diesel fuel per month for use in its regular operations. The City agrees to
supply the JCiA with such gasoline and diesel fuel (coitectively "Motor Fuel") through the motor fuel storage
and dispensing system located on the Property and to bil! the JCiA for the actual amount of fuel consumed.
The City sha!! use its reasonable best efforts to ensure that its Motor Fuel storage and dispensing system
contains, at a minimum 9000 gallons, the estimated amount of gasoline and diese] fuel used by the JCIA
per month.

2. Effective Date and Term. This Agreement shal! be effective upon the date of last
approval and execution by the governing bodies of each of the Parties below. Unless terminated pursuant
to Section 10 hereto, this Agreement shall be in effect for a period of three (3) years commencing on the
date of execution of this Agreement by City officials.

a. Renewal of Commodity Resale System Reciistration. The City shall be responsible, at
its sole cost and expense, for securing the renewal of the required registration of a
commodity resale system from the Division of Local Government Services in the
Department of Community Affairs, pursuant to N.JAC. 5:34-7.16, prior to its expiration
for so long as this Agreement shall be in effect.

3. Motor Fuel Rate, The JCIA shall pay for the Motor Fuel provided pursuant to this
Agreement at the base contract cost which the City pays for each of those commodities.

4. Payment, The City shall provide the JCiA a monthiy invoice for the previous month's
Motor Fuel usage on or before the fifteenth (15th) of each month. JCIA shall make payment within thirty
(30) days from receipt of each monthly invoice.

5. Fuel Dispensing. A!) Motor Fuei to be supplied by the City to the JCiA shali be dispensed
by metering pumps at the Property.



6. Motor Fuel Dispensina System, The City wiii maintain the Motor Fuel storage and
dispensing system at the Property at its sole cost and expense. The JCIA shall have the right to-verify the
accuracy of the dispensing system at its own expense. The JCIA shall give the City at least five (5) days
notice prior to conducting any test. The JC1A shall be assigned access keys to the motor fuel dispensing
system, which shall remain the property of the City.

7. Hours of Service. The JC!A shall have access to the Motor Fuel storage and dispensing
system at the Property, twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, three hundred and sixty-
five (365) days per year, during the Term of this Agreement.

8. Emergencies. In the event of an emergency, which renders the Motor Fuel storage and
dispensing system inactive or insufficient to meet the JCIA's Motor Fuel needs, the City wiil use its best
efforts to provide all Motor Fuel that the JCIA requires from alternative sources,

9. IVIotor Fuel Rate Changes, The Parties to this Agreement acknowledge and understand
that the base contract cost for Motor Fuels referenced in Paragraph 3 fluctuates based upon the rate the
City must pay for the delivery of motor fuel to its storage and dispensing facility, When the City seeks
reimbursement for fuel supplied to the JC!A, the City shall provide the JCIA with the usage/cost
documentation that indicates the rate(s) in effect at the time of each fill up.

10. Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement with forty-five (45) days advance
notice by certified mail, to the official address of the other-party as provided below.

11. Govermno Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State of New Jersey.

12. Excused Performance. The City agrees to use its best efforts to provide a continuous and
regular and uninterrupted supply of motor fuel, subject to the terms of this Agreement.

13, Inciemnification. The JCIA hereby covenants and agrees that it will defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, loss, damage,
daim or expense of any kind whatsoever, including without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees and costs,
arising out of or in connection with the negligent or grossly negligent acts or omissions of the JCIA, its
employees, agents, representatives, contractors, or invitees. The provisions of this Paragraph shall not
apply to the ownership, permitting, registration, regulation, operation, or closure, of any underground
gasoline or fuel storage tanks, associated piping, equipment and/or fuel dispensing facilities or any liability,
loss, damage, claim or expense related to same.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS OF THE LAST
DATE WRITTEN BELOW:

THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY JERSEY CITY INCINERATOR AUTHORITY

Robert J. Kakoleski, Oren K. Dabney, Sr. CEO
Business Administrator

DATE DATE

WITNESS: WITNESS:

DATE DATE



City Clerk File No. Ord. 15.057

Agenda No._3J1 _ 1st Reading

Agenda No._ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

Gin ORDINANCE 15.057

TITLE: ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JERSEY CFTY TO EXECUTE A
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH HARWOOD CORPORATION FOR 20 PARKING
SPACES LOCATED AT 808 PAVONIA AVENUE.

TIEE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City needs 20 parking spaces for the Depai-tment of Public Safety personnel
working at 1 Journal Square Plaza; and

WHEREAS, Harwood Corporation agrees to provide twenty (20) unreserved parldng spaces at
its facility located at 808 Pavoma Avenue, Jersey City for $120.00 per space per month for a
total monthly cost of $2,400.00; and

WHEREAS, the City shall have the option to increase or decrease the number of parking spaces
as needed at $120.00 per space; and

WHEREAS, Hat'wood Corporation and the City of Jersey City shall have the right to terminate
the lease without cause by providing thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination

WHEREAS, the parking spaces rented by the City will be exempt from tlie City's tax on parking
lot spaces pursuant to section 304-1 et seq, of the City Code; and

WHEREAS, the lease tenn shall be effective June 1,2015 and-endmgMay31, 2016 subject to
the City's option to renew the lease for an additional two (2) years; and

WHEREAS, funds will be made available m account #01-201-31-432-304 in the 2015
temporary, permanent and future Calendar Year budgets.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that;
1. Subject to such modifications as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by Corporation

Counsel, the Mayor or Business Administrator is autfaorized to execute the Lease
Agreement attached hereto with Harwood Corporation for twenty (20) uureserved
parking spaces at 808 Pavonia Avenue, Jersey City.

2. The term of the lease shall take effect as of June 1, 2015 and shall end on May 31, 2016
subject to fhe Cityss option to renew the lease for aud additional two (2) years,

3. Harwood Corporation and the City of Jersey City shall have the right to terminate the
lease without cause by providing (30) days notice prior to the effective date of

termination.

4. Themonthly rent for twenty (20) um'eserved parking spaces shall be $120.00 per space
for a total monthly amount of $2,400.00.

5. The City shall have the option to increase or decrease the number of parking spaces as
needed at $120.00 per space.

6. The parking spaces rented by the City shall be exempt from the parking tax authorized
pursuant to Section 304-1 etseq^Ofthe City Code.
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7. Funds wili be made available in Account No. 01-201-31-432-304 in the 2015 temporary,
permanent and future Calendar Year budgets,

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

B. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set
forth therein. The City shall have this ordmance codified and mcorporated in the official
copies of the Jersey City Code,

C. This ordinance shall take effect in the manner as prescribed by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the

event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those
numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental
repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE; All new material is underlined ;, words in (brackets)
Are omitted. For purposes of advertising only, new
matter is indicated by boldface aud repealed matter
by italic.

I hereby certify that there are sufficient funds available in Municipal Rent Account # 01-201-31-
432-304 for Requsition #0169823 P.O. #_,

Donna Mauer, Chief Financial Officer

AMM/pr

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

Corporation Counsel

Certification Required 1-1

Not Required D

APPROVE D:_

APPROVED:
Business Administrator



This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council

consideration. Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE AUTHOmZING THE CITY OF .
AGREEMENT WITH HARWOOD CORPORATION
SPACES AT 808 PAVONIA AVENUE, JERSEY

Pep artment/Divisson

Name /Title

Phone/E-MaiI

Adminisfratson

Steve Miller

(201) 206-9531

Real Estate

ConfidcEstial Assistant

SteveM(%icnj.org
Note initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to

council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

TO PROVIDE 20 PARKING SPACES FOR POLICE LOCATED AT ONE JOURNAL
SQUARE AT $120.00 PER SPACE TOTALLING $2,400.00 PER MONTH/ANNUAL
RENT $28,800.00
THE TERM OF THE LEASE SHALL TAKE EFFECT AS OF JUNE 1, 2015 TO
MAY 31,2016 SUBJECT TO THE CITY'S OPTION TO RENEW THE LEASE FOR AN



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT made this _ day of_, 201 between
HARWOOD CORPORATION located at 26 Journal Square Suite 804, Jersey City, New
Jersey 07306 and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY (City), having its principal place of business at
City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

WHEREAS, the City requires twenty (20) parking spaces for employees working at the
Department of Public Safety located at 1 Journal Square Plaza, Jersey City, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, Harwood Corporation agrees to lease the City twenty (20) parking spaces
located at 808 Pavonia Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth

herein, the parties agree as follows:
ARTICLE I

Premises

Harwood Corporation does hereby lease to the City and the City does hereby rent from

Harwood Corporation the following described premises :A total twenty (20) parking spaces
located at 808 Pavonia Avenue. During the lease term, the city shall have the right to increase or
decrease the number of parking spaces that it leases by as many as ten (10) parking spaces.

ARTICLE II
Term

For a term of effective as of June 1, 2015 and endmg May 31, 2016 unless otherwise

extended for up to an additional two (2) years.

ARTICLE III
Use

Under the terms of this lease, the City shall have the right to use and occupy twenty
parking spaces located at 808 Pavonia Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey.

ARTICLE IV
P avmenf of Rent

The City covenants and agrees to pay the Harwood Corporation rent for and during the

term hereof the sum of Two Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($2,400.00) per month during the
term of this Lease. The sum of Two Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($2,400.00) represents the

monthly rent due for twenty(20) parking spaces at One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($120.00) per
parking space per month. If the City increases or decreases the number ofpaiicmg spaces, it will

be by the amount of $120.00 per space. The parking spaces rented by the City will be exempt
from the City's tax on parking lot spaces pursuant to section 304-1 et seq. Of the City Code.



ARTICLE V
Assignment Sub-Ijease

The City shall not, wiUiout the prior written consent ofHarwood Corporation, assign
mortgagor hypothecate this Lease, or sublet or sublease the premises or any part hereof.

ARTICLE VI
Termination

The City shall have the right at its convenience to terminate the lease at any time during
its term by giving thirty (30) days notice prior to the date of termination.

ARTICLE VII
Validity ofj^ease

The terms, conditions, covenants and provisions of this Lease shall be deemed to be
severable. If any clause or provision herein contained shall be adjudged to be invalid or

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, it shall
not affect the validity or any other clause or provision herein, but such other clauses or
provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE VUI
Notices

All notices required under the terms of this Lease shall be given and shall be complete by
mailing such notices by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by hand delivery
to the address of the parties as shown at the head of this Lease, or to such other address as may
be designated in writing notice of change of address shall be given in the same manner.

ARTICLE IX
Entire Contract

This Lease contams the entire contract between the parties. No representative, agent or

employee ofHarwood Corporation has been authorized to make any representations or promises

with reference to the within letting or to vary, altar or modify the terms hereof. No additions,

changes or modifications, renewals or extensions hereof, shall be binding unless reduced to

writing and signed by Harwood Corporation and the City.

ARTICLE X

This Lease may not be filed by the City without the prior written consent of the Harwood
Corporation.



Hanvood Corporation may pursue the relief or remedy sought in any invalid clause, by

conforming the said clause with the provisions of the status or the regulations of any
governmental agency in such case made and provided as if the particular provisions of the

applicable statutes or regulations were set forth herein at length.

In all references herein to any parties, persons, entities or corporation the use of any
particular gender or the plural or singular number is intended to include the appropriate gender

or number as the text of the within instrument may require. All the terms, covenants and
conditions herein contained shall be for and shall inure to the benefit of and shall bind the
respective parties hereto, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal or legal
representatives, successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals, or

caused these presents to be signed by their proper corporate officers and theu" proper corporate

seal to be hereunto affixed, the day and year fast above written.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT J. KAKOLESKE
City Clerk Business Administrator

WITNESS: HARWOOD CORPORATION

BY: _ _ BY:



Requisition #

0169852

Vendor
HARWOOD CORP.
26 JOURNAL SQUARE, STE 804
JERSEY CITY NJ 07306

HA262477

CITY OF JERSEY CITY
394 CENTRAL AVE.

2ND FLOOR
JERSEY CITY NJ 07307

Requisition
Dept. Bill To
DIVISION OF REAL ESTATE
MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING
365 SUMMIT AVENUE
JERSEY CITY NJ 07306

Assigned PO #

Dept. Ship To
DIVISiON OF REAL ESTATE
MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING
365 SUMMIT AVENUE
JERSEY CITY NJ 07306

Contact Info
PEGGY RAUSCH X5234
0000000000

Quantity UOM Description Account Unit Price Total

1.00 EA ENCUMBRANCY 01-201-31-432-304 7,300.00 7,300.00

THIS PURCHASE ORDER tS FOR ENCUMBRANCY
PURPOSES ONLY TO ESTABLISH FUNDING FOR
POLICE PARKING AT 808 PAVONIA AVENUE
NAME OF CONTRACT: HARWOOD CORP.
TOTAL CONTRACT; $28,800,00
TEMPORARY ENCUIVIBRANCY: $7,300.00
TO COVER FROM 6/1/15 THRU 8/31/15
PAYMENTS WILL BE MADE FROM TIME TO TIME
ON PARTIAL PAYMENT VOUCHERS,

Requisition Total 7,300.00

Req. Date: 04/09/2015

Requested By: PEGGYR

Buyer Id:

Approved By:



City Clerk File No._Ord. 15.058

Agenda No.__^ _1st Reading
Agenda No._ _ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF

JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.058

TITLE: ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR A
SENIOR CITIZEN RENTAL HOUSING PRO|ECT CONSTRUCTED BY PADUA COURT
URBAN RENEWAL, L.P., AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM
TAX EXEMPTION LAWNJ^A. 40A:20-1 ETSEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OP THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, Padua Court Urban' Renewal, L,P., is an urban renewal entity, formed and
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992,
as Amended and Restated and supplemented, IMJ.S.A. 40A:20-letseQ. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity owns certain property known as Block 9907, Lot 1 [formerly known
as.Lot 390, Lot 17A), on the City's Official Tax map, and more commonly known by the
sb-eet address of 184-190 Brunswick Street/350 Sixth Street, and more specifically
described by metes and bounds, in the application [Property]; and

WHEREAS, on November 22, 1994, pursuant to Ordinance 94-110, the City granted the
Applicant a.30 year long term tax exemption for the renovstion of an existing vacant
buiidmgto create 39 units of affordable housing for senior citizens [Property]; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Entity entered into a Financial Agreement dated as of June 20th,
1995, for the Property, which required the Entity to pay 15% (Fifteen percent) of its Gross
Annual Revenue;and

WHEREAS, it had been the practice of the parties to allow the Entity to deduct utilities from
Annual Gross Revenue from its annual audited financial statement each year since the tax
exemption was awarded; and

WHEREAS, the Original Financial Agreement is silent as to the issue of the deduction of the
utilities from Annual Gross Revenues; and

WHEREAS, by agreement of the parties, on January 13, 2015, the Entity filed an Application
with the City to amend both Section 1.2 (ui), Annual Gross Revenue, to expressly incorporate
the deduction of utilities, and Section ll.l(b), to substitute a new contact address for the
Entity in its Financial Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the amendment.to Section 1.2(in] will redefine Annual Gross Revenue, to allow
the Entity to deduct any utility expenses or charges of the Project paid by the Entity from its
Gross Revenue, to memorialize the parties' practice; and

WHEREAS, the Entity is also seeking to amend Section ll.l(b) to acknowledge Siiverman
Building, LLC, 279 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, as its new contact under the
Financial Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City
that:
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ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR A SENIOR CITIZEN RENTAL
HOUSING PROJECT CONSTRUCTED BY PADUA COURT URBAN RENEWAL, L.P,, AN URBAN RENEWAL BNTITY,
PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAWN4AA. 40A;20-1 £1 SEQ.

A. The application for an Amended and Restated Financial Agreement of Padua Court
Urban Renewal, L.P,, an urban renewal company, formed and qualified to do business under
the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as Amended and
supplemented, N_.J.S.A, 40A:20-1 et s eg. a copy of which is on file in the office of the City
Clerk, for Block 9907, Lot 1 [formerly known as Lot 390, Lot 17A}, more commonly known
by the street address of 184-190 Brunswick Street/350 Sixth Street, more specifically
described by metes and bounds in the application, is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax
exemption Amendment to the Financial Agreement. The Amended and Restated Financial
Agreement shall include the following amendments to its terms and conditions:

1. Section 1.2(iii), Annual Gross Revenue, of the original Financial Agreement is hereby
amended to allow the Entity to deduct any annual utility expenses or utility charges
of the Project paid by the Entity, from Annual Gross Revenue;

2. The contact set forth in Section ll.l(bj is hereby deleted in its entirety and
Silverman Building, LLC, 279 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, is substituted as
the Entity s contact.

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of this. Ordinance and the Amended
Financial Agreement to the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government
Services.

D. The application to amend the tax exemption Financial Agreement is on file with the
office of the City Clerk. The Amended Financial Agreement shall be in substantially the form
on file in the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business
Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary.

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set
forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the
official copies of the Jersey City Code.

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law.

]. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and
directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event
that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers
and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of
existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. For purposes of
advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and repealed matter
by itaHc.

DJ/JM/he
4/13/15

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED;,

APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required f-3

Not Required Q



KESOLUTIQN FACT_SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to fhe front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/ResoIution

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR A SENIOR CITIZEN
RENTAL HOUSING PROJECT CONSTRUCTED BY PADUA COURT URBAN RENEWAL, L.P,, AN URBAN
RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.T.S.A. 40A:20-1 KESEfi.

Initiator
Department/Divlsion
Name/Title
Phcme/email

Tax Collections

Maureen Cos grove

(201)547-5120

Tax Collections

Tax Collector

Maureen@jcnj .org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

The Entity filed an Application with the City to amend both Section 1.2(m), Annual Gross Revenue, to expressly
incorporate the deduction of utilities, and Section ll.lCb], to substitute a new contact address for the Entity and
to acknowledge Silverman Building, LLC, 279 Grove Street, Jersey City, N] 07302, as its new contact under the
Financial Agreement.

The amendment to Section 1.2(iu) will redefine Annual Gross Revenue, to allow the Entity to deduct any utility
expenses or charges of the Project paid by the Entity from its Gross Revenue, to memorialize the parties'practice.

I certify that all the facts presented herein arc accurate.

Signature of Department Director Date



AMENDMENT TO FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (the "Financial
Agreement Amendment No. I"), dated as of ___ _, 2015, by and between
THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a municipal corporation of the State of New Jersey
with offices at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 (the "City"), and
PADUA COURT URBAN RENEWAL, L.P., a limited dividend urban renewal entity,
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of

1992, codified in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its priacipal office at 279 Grove
Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 (the "Entity" and, together with the City, the
"Parties"). Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined herein shall have the

meaning as set forth in the hereinafter defined Original Fmancial Agreement.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain Financial Agreement, dated June
20, 1995, with regards to a long term tax exemption granted for the Project (the "Original
Financial Agreement" and, together with Financial Agreement Amendment the

"Financial Agreement Amendment"); and

WHEREAS, it had been the practice of the Parties during the term of the Original
Financial Agreement to deduct utilities paid by the Entity from Annual Gross Revenues,
as reflected in its annual audited financial statement; and

WHEREAS, the Original Financial Agreement is silent as to the issue of the
deduction of the utilities from Annual Gross Revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Original Financial Agreement to
expressly incorporate the deduction of utilities paid by the Entity from Annual Gross
Revenues in accordance with the parties practice; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contamed, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as

follows:

Section 1. SECTION 1.2fiii) - Annual Gross Revenue of the Origmal
Financial Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"iii. Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from

or generated by the Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received
as rent from any tenants (not including tenant security deposits) or income

or fees from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid
or received for parking, or as user fees or for any other services. No

deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including,
but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, garbage removal and

Amendment to Financial Agreement.docx



insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party,

provided however, any utility expenses or charges of the Project that are

paid by the Entity shall be deducted from Gross Revenue."

Section 2. Section ll.l(b) of the Notice provisions of the Original Financial
Agreement is hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"(b) When sent by the City to the Entity

Padua Court Urban Renewal Entity, L.P.
c/o Silverman Building, LLC
279 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Attn: Eric Silverman

with copy to:

DeCodis, FitzPatdck and Cole, LLP
500 Frank W. Burr Boulevard

Suite 31
Teaneck, New Jersey 07666
Attn: Matthew C. Karrenberg, Esq."

Section 3. Other than as set forth in Section 1 and Section^ hereof, nothing
contained herein shall alter, modify or amend any other provision of the Original
Financial Agreement and the Financial Agreement Amendment, including each and every

other such provision therein, shall remain in fall force and effect.

Section 4. This Financial Agreement Amendment may be executed in one or

more counterparts and when each Party has executed and delivered at least one
counterpart, this Financial Agreement Amendment shall become binding on the Parties

and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Amendment to Financial Agreement.docx



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Financial
Agreement Amendment to be executed, all as of the date first above written.

ATTEST: PADUA COURT URBAN RENEWAL, L.P.

By:.

Eric Silverman, Managing Member

ATTEST: THE CITV OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne, City Clerk
By:

Robert J. Kakoleski
Business Administrator

Amendment to Financial Agreement, do ex



City Clerk File No. ord- 15.059

Agenda No._3-'3

Agenda No..

1 st Reading

2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

Cin ORDINANCE 15.059

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FIVE (5) YEAR TAX EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF N.T.S.A, 40A:21-1, KE SEQ,, AND SECTION 304-12 OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE FOR PROPERTY DESIGNATED AS BLOCK 5302, LOT 2, ON
THE CITY'S TAX MAP AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY THE STREET
ADDRESS OF 319 TONNELE AVENUE

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, the City of Jersey City as an area in need of rehabilitation, is authorized
to adopt an ordinance to utilize tax exemptions pursuant to N.LS.A. 40A:21-1, et seq.,

the Five [5) Year Exemption and Abatement Law; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.I.S.A. 40A;21-1 et seq., the City of Jersey City adopted

Ordinance 05-060, Section 304-6 etsec^ of the Municipal Code/ to allow Five (5) Year
. Tax Exemptions which allows the Tax Assessor to regard the full and true value or a.

portion thereof of certain improvements as not increasing the full and true value of

certain property for a period of five (5) years, provided the owner's application is
approved by the Tax Assessor and by Ordinance of the Municipal Council; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.1.S.A. 40A:21-9 and Section 304-12 of the Municipal Code,

a tax exemption for the proposed construction of a commercial building with
approximately 151,500 square feet of commercial space, and sixteen [16'} on-site

parking spaces approximating an additional 9,181 square feet on the Property, is
permitted for a period of five (5) years; and

WHEREAS, 319 Tonnele SP, LLC, is the delegate of contract purchaser, the William
Warren Group, for the construction of a three (3) story building with approximately
151,500 square feet of commercial space located on the ground floor, and sixteen

(16) on-slte parking spaces equaling 9,181 square feet on the Property, located in
Block 5302, Lot 2, on the City's Tax Map and more commonly known by the street
address of 319 Tonnele Avenue, Jersey City, NJ.; and

WHEREAS, the William Warren Group will assign the contract for sale to 319
Tonnele SP, LLC at closing, and 319 Tonnele SP, LLC will take title to the property, as
certified to in Exhibit A-5 of the Application; and

WHEREAS, the closing shall take place within thirty (30) days of the adoption of the
within ordinance; and

WHEREAS, construction has not commenced on the Property; and

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2015, 319 Tonnele SP, LLC, the conlTact purchaser's

delegate, filed an application with the Tax Assessor to tax exempt the proposed
construction of the commercial space, a copy of which application is attached hereto;

and
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AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FIVE (S) YEAR TAX EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
N4A&. 40A:21-1, EE SiEQ.. AND SECTtON 304-12 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR PROPERTY
DESIGNATED AS BLOCK S302, LOT 2, ON THE CITV'STAX MAP AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY
THE STREET ADDRESS OF 319 TONNELE AVENUE

WHEREAS, 319 Tonnele SP, LLC, proposes to pay the City [in addition to the full
taxes on the land, which shall continue to be conventionally assessed and taxed] a

tax payment for the new improvements on the property, estimated as follows:

(a) Year 1: the tax year in which the structure will be completed. $0 taxes;

(b) Year 2: the second tax year, 20% of actual full taxes, estimated to be
$79,725;

(c) Year 3: the third tax year, 40% of actual full taxes, estimated to be
$159,450;

(d) Year 4: the fourth tax year, 60% of actual full taxes, estimated to be
$239,176; and

[e) Year 5: the fifth tax year, 80% of actual full taxes, estimated to be
$318,901;

WHEREAS, the Tax Assessor has determined that the full and true value of the new
construction will generate an additional tax payment of $398,626 a year; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has agreed that in the event the Citywide revaluation
results in a decrease in the estimated amount of actual taxes otherwise due, then for

purposes of calculating a tax payment hereunder and for the five [5} year period, the
amount shall be calculated on the hieher of the amount estimated hereunder or the

actual taxes otherwise due; and

WHEREAS, the application for tax exemption was complete and timely filed; the
application was approved by the Tax Assessor and the newly constructed multiple
dwelling and commercial space are eligible for tax exemption pursuant to N.J.S.A.

40A:21-9 and Section 304-12 of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, upon the expiration of the tax exemption, the total assessment will
generate a total tax payment of $398,626; and

WHEREAS, 319 Tonnele SP, LLC has agreed to pay the sum of $241,022 to the City's
Affordable Housing Trust Fund; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey
City that:

1. The application, attached hereto, for a five (5) year tax exemption for the full
and true value of the newly constructed three (3) story building located in Block
5302, Lot 2, and more commonly known by the street address of 319 Tonnele
Avenue, Jersey City, N.J,, is hereby approved.

2. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax

exemption agreement which shall contain at a minimum, the following terms and

conditions:

(a) estimated tax payment on the new improvements shall be:

(i) Year 1: the tax year in which the structure will be completed.
$0 taxes;
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AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FIVE [5] YEAR TAX EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
NJ.S.A. 40A;21.1, El SEQ,. AND SECTION 304-12 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR PROPERTY
DESIGNATED AS BLOCK S302, LOT 2, ON THE CITY'S TAX MAP AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY
THE STREET ADDRESS OF 319 TONNELBAVENUE

(ii) Year 2: the second tax year, 20% of actual full taxes, estimated

to be $79,725;

(iii) Year 3: the third tax year, 40% of actual full taxes, estimated to
be $159,450;

pv) Year 4: the fourth tax year, 60% of actual full taxes, estimated
to be $239,176; and

(y) Year 5: the fifth tax year, 80% of actual full taxes, estimated to
be $318,901.

The applicant has agreed that in the event the Cifcywlde revaluation results in
a decrease in the amount of actual taxes otherwise due for purposes of calculating a

tax payment hereunder; during this five [5) year period, the amount due hereunder
shall be calculated on the higher of the amount estimated above or the actual taxes

due after the revaluation; and

(b) The project shall be subject to all federal, state and local laws, and
regulations on pollution control, worker safety, discrimination in employment,

zoning, planning, and building code requirements pursuant to I'LLSA40A:21-llCbJ.

(c] If, during any tax year prior to the termination of the tax agreement,
the property owner ceases to operate or disposes of the property, or fails to meet the

conditions for qualifying, then the tax which would have otherwise been payable for
each tax year shall become due and payable from the property owner as if no
exemption and abatement had been granted. The collector forthwith ad the tax

collector shall, within 15 days thereof, notify the owner of the property of the
amount of taxes due.

(d) With respect to the disposal of the property, where it is determined
that the new owner of the property will continue to use the property pursuant to the
conditions which qualified the property, no tax shall be due, the exemption shall
continue, and the agreement shall remain in effect

(e) At the termination of a tax exemption agreement, the new

improvements shall be subject to all applicable real property taxes as provided by
State law and regulation and local ordinance; but nothing herein shall prohibit a
project, at the termination of an agreement, from qualifying for, an receiving the full

benefits of, any other tax preferences provided by law.

(f) Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1.50 per square foot x 151,500
square feet for retail commercial and 9,181 square feet for parking or for a total of
$241,022.

3. The form of tax exemption agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit B, subject

to such modification as the Corporation counsel or Business Administrator

deems necessary.

4. The Tax Assessor shall send a copy of the fully executed Financial Agreement

will be sent to the Director of the Division of Local Government Services in

the Department of Community Affairs within thirty (30) days of execution
pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40a:21-llCd).

A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby
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repealed.
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FIVE (5) YEAR TAX EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
MJ.SA 40A:21-1, EE SEQ.. AND SECTION 304-12 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR PROPERTY
DESIGNATED AS BLOCK S302, LOT 2, ON THE CITY'S TAX MAP AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN BY
THE STREET ADDRESS OF 319TONNELEAVENUE

B. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and
fully set forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and
incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. The closing of sale shall take place within thirty (30) days of the date of
adoption of the within Ordinance. Failure to comply shall result in the Ordinance
being repealed and the tax exemption rescinded, unless otherwise extended by the
City at its sole discretion.

D. The applicant shall execute the tax exemption Tax Agreement within ninety
(90) days of the date of adoption of the within Ordinance. Failure to comply shall
result in the Ordinance being repealed and the tax exemption rescinded, unless

otherwise extended by the City at its sole discretion.-

E. The actual date of execution of the tax exemption agreement shall not affect,

alter or amend the Applicant's obligation to make payments according to the

intervals set forth in Section 304-28 of the Municipal Code and the tax exemption

agreement. Should the Applicant fail to make timely payments, interest shall begin

to accrue at the rate set forth in the tax exemption agreement

F. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by
law.

G. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized
and directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers

in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict

between those numbers and the existing code, In order to avoid confusion and

possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underllnine has been omitted. For
purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face and

repealed matter by italic,

DHJ/he
4/9/1S

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:_

APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel Business Admtnistrator

Certification Required D

Not Required D



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution*

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

An Ordinance Approving A Five-Year Tax Exemption for a Market Rate Public Storage Facility to be
Constructed by 319 Tonnele SP, LLC. It is known as 319 Tomiele Avenue, Block 5302, Lot 2, Under the
Short-Term Tax Exemption Law NJ.S.A. 40A:21-1 et. seq.

Initiator
Department/Division

Name/Title
Phone/email

Mayor's Office

Marcos Vigil
(201) 547-6542

Deputy Mayor

vigilm(5)/icni-.,org
Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

The applicant, 319TonneIeAvenue, is applying for a five (5) year tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 40 A: 21-1 et
seq. It will be new construction of a three (3) story plus basement public storage warehouse. The application
fee of $3,500 was paid. The property, known as 319 Tonnele Avenue, is currently a vacant lot. Consisting of
Block 5302, Lot 2, it is at the intersection ofTonnele Avenue and Utica Street. It is adjacent the Penhom Creek
Branch Main Line Raih'oad Tracks. The property is approximately 3.05 acres. The proposed project is a
151,500 square foot tb:ee (3) story plus basement building self storage facility with approximately 118,700
rentable square feet of self storage space. In addition there will be sixteen (16) parking spaces.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Signature of Department Director Date



TIER ONE (5 YEAR)
4-09-15

NJSA40A:21-letseq
(Multiple Dwelling, Industrial, Commercial)

TAX AGREEMENT
EBTSYEAR/NEW CONSTRUCTION

THIS AGREEMENT made on this _day of_,2015, by and.
between the CITY OE JERSEY CITY [City], a municipal corporation organized under
the Laws of the State of New Jersey and having its principal place of business at 280
Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, and 319 TONNELE SP, LLC, [Applicant
/Owner], whose principal place of business is 201 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 102, Santa
Monica, CA 90401.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council has indicated by its intention to utilize the
five year tax exemption provisions authorized by Article VIII, Section I, paragraph VI of

the NJ State Constitution and the Five Year Exemption Law, NJ.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq.
for improvements and projects by the adoption of Ordinance 05-060, as amended by
Ordinances 07-146 and 14-027; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is the delegate of contract purchaser/ the William
Warren Group, of certain property located at 319 Tonnele Avenue, in the City of Jersey
City, County of Hudson and State of New Jersey, designated as Block 5302, Lot 2, on the
Tax Assessor's Map, more commonly blown by the street address of 319 Tonnele

Avenue, and more particularly described in the metes and bounds description attached

hereto as Exhibit A [Property] and Exhibit A-5;

WHEREAS, the William Warren Group will assign the contract for sale to 319
Tonnele SP, LLC at closing, and 319 Tonnele SP, LLC will take title to the property, as
certified to in Exhibit A-5 of the Application; and

WHEREAS, on or about March 20, 2015, the Applicant applied for a five year
tax exemption to construct a new Commercial structure on Ihe Property consisting of a

three (3) story plus basement self-storage facility to contain approximately 151,500
square feet of retail commercial space and 9,181 square feet of parking space
[Improvements] pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:21-1 et seq and Section 304-12 of the

Municipal Code [Law], and

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the application, approved the construction of
the Improvements and authorized the execution of a Tax Exemption Agreement by the

adoption of Ordinance_on _.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and
covenants heremafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:



ARTICLE I:_AP_PRQYALOF_TAX EXEMPTION

The City hereby' agrees to a tax exemption for the construction of a new

Commercial structure consisting of a three (3) story plus basement self-storage facility to

contain approximately 151,500 square feet of retail commercial space and 9,181 square

feet of parking space [Improvements] on the Property, as further described in the
Application, attached hereto as Exhibit B, pursuant to the provisions ofNJ.S.A. 40A:21-
1 et seq. and Ordinance_which authorized the execution of this Tax Agreement

[Law], subject to the terms and conditions hereof.

ARTICLE II: IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENT^

The Applicant agrees to make estimated payments on the new Improvements,

(separate and apart from taxes on the land and existing improvements which shall
continue to be subject to conventional assessment and taxation and for which the

Applicant shall receive no credit against the in lieu of tax payment) in lieu of full
property tax payments according to the following schedule:

1, For the full calendar of Year 1, no payment in lieu of taxes;

2. For the full calendar of Year 2, twenty (20%) percent of the actual taxes
otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of $79,725;

3. For the full calendar of Year 3, forty (40%) percent of the actual taxes
otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of $159,450;

4. For the full calendar of Year 4, sixty (60%) percent of the actual taxes
otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of $239,176; and

5. For the full calendar of Year 5, eighty (80%) percent of the actial taxes
otherwise due, currently estimated to be the sum of $3 18,901.

/

In the event a City-wide revaluation results m decrease in the amount of taxes
otherwise due, payment hereunder shaU be the higher of either the taxes estimated above

or the amount of actual taxes after the City-wide revaluation.

ARTICLE III: APPLICATION FEE

The Applicant has paid the sum of $3,500 to the City as an application fee.
Failure to make such payment shall cause the tax exemption to termmate.

ARTICLES IV: FEDERAL, STATEAND LOCAL LAW

The construction of the Improvements is subject to all applicable federal, State
and local laws and regulations on pollution control, worker safety, discrimination in

employment, housing provision, zoning, plaaamg and building code requirements.



ARTICLE V: TERM OF EXEMPTION

The Tax Exemption granted shall be valid and effective for a period of five (5)
full years begiiming the first day of the month after the date of Substantial Completion of
the Project, which shall ordinarily mean the date on which the City issues, or the Project
is eligible to receive, a Certificate of Occupancy, whether temporary or final, for part or

the whole of the Project. During the term of the tax exemption, the Applicant shall make
an in lieu of tax payment to the City in accordance with the schedule set forth above.

Prior to the commencement of the tax exemption, and upon expiration thereof, the
Applicant shall pay full conventional taxes on the Improvements.

ARTICLE VI: REVALUE

The applicant has agreed that m the event the revalue results in a decrease in the

amount of actual taxes otherwise due, for purposes of calculating a tax payment
hereunder during the five (5) year period, the amount shall be calculated on the higher of
the amount estimated hereunder or the actual taxes.

ARTICLE YXL: NQ_COUNTY EQUALIZATION AND SCHOOI^AID

Pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:21-1 l(c), the percentage, which the payment m lieu of

taxes for the tax exempt property bears to the property tax which would have been paid

had an exemption not been granted for the property under this Agreement, shall not be
applied to the valuation of the property to determine the reduced valuation of the property

to be included in the valuation of the City for determining equalization for county tax
apportionment and school aid, during the term of the tax exemption agreement covering
this property. At the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the reduced valuation

procedure required under the Law shall no longer apply.

ARTICLE Vffl: OPERATION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

If during any year prior to the termination of this Agreement, the Applicant ceases

to operate or disposes of the Property, or fails to meet the conditions for qualifying for
tax exemption under this Agreement or pursuant to Law, then the tax which would have
otherwise been payable for each and every year, shall become due and payable from the

Applicant as if no exemption had been granted. The Tax Collector shall, within 15 days
thereof, notify the owner of the Property of the amount of taxes due.

However, with respect to the disposal of the property, if it is determined that the
new owner will continue to use the property pursuant to the conditions which qualify the

property for exemption, the tax exemption shall continue and this Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE IX: AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND



CONTRLBUTIONREQUII^D

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $241,022 or [$1.50
per square foot of retail commercial space x 151,500 square feet, plus 9,181 square feet

of parking] as a contribution. The sum shall be due and payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax

exemption;

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project,

but no later than six months after the date of the Tax Agreement; and

lii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the

Project, but no later than. twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Tax
Agreement.

ARTICLEX: TERMINATION/ELIGIBILITY
FOR ADDITIONAL TAX EXEMPTION

Upon the termination of this Agreement for tax exemption, the Project shall be

subject to all applicable real property taxes as provided by State Laws and Regulations
and City Ordinances. However, nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the Project, at

the termination of this Agreement, from qualifying for and receiving the full benefits of
any other tax preferences allowed by law. Furthermore, nothing herein shall prohibit the

Applicant from exercising any rights under any other tax provisions of State law or City

Ordinances.

In the event fhe owner elects to terminate this tax abatement after the revalue, the

owner shall pay the City the difference of 100% of the full amount of the taxes otherwise
due from the 1 year of this agreement to the date of termination.

ARTICLE XI: PROJECT EMPLOYMENT
AND^ON^TRACTING AGREEMENT

In order to provide City residents and businesses with employment and other
economic opportunities, the Applicant agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of

the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

ARTICLE XIII: NOTICES

All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing. Each notice
shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return- receipt requested, to
the party to be notified at the addresses set forth below or at such other address as either

party may from time to time designate in writing:



Notice to City: Business Admuiistrator
City Hall, 280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

Notice to Applicant: 319 Tonnele SP, LLC
201 WUshire Blvd.-Suite 102
Santa Monica, CA 90401

ARTICLE XIV: GENERAL PROVISIONS

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties and cannot be
amended, changed or modified except by written instrument executed by the parties

hereto.

In the event that any provisions or term of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other provision hereof; provided, however, that the City

continues to receive the full benefit of any economic term hereunder.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws

of the State of New Jersey.

This agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall

constitute but one and the same mstmment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Applicant have caused this
Agreement to be executed on the date and year first above written.

WITNESS: 319 TONNELE SP, LLC

BY;
, Member

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

BY:
Robert Byrne Robert J. Kakoleski
City Clerk Business Administrator



New & Revised as of August 29,2014
(Including Construction Jobs, for Projects with no PLA)
4/06/15

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made as of the _day of_
2015, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] having its principal office at 280 Grove
Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, and 319 TONNELE SP, LLC [Recipient], having its principal
office at 201 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 102, Santa Monica, CA 90401.

I. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used m this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Admmistrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,

including any person or entity which enters iato an agreement with the City to
implement, in whole or in part, this agreement.

2. . Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on

behalf of the Recipient.

3. Construction Contract means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway or other improvement on a Project
Site.

4. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of

Administration, located at 280 Grove Street. DEO is in charge of Project Employment &
Contracting coordination and monitormg on projects receiving abatements.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or tax exemption for a property or project
which requires approval of the Municipal Council.

6. Employment includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations,

or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees.

However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work
force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. Jersey City Employment and Training Corporation or "JCEPT" means the non-profit

quasi public Entity with whom the City has an operating agreement to undertake certain
employment sei-vices.

8. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

9. "Minority" means a person who is defined as such under federal or state law.



10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located, in

Jersey City which is flfty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce

Development, Division of Labor Market, and Demographic Research for Jersey City,
which report shall be on file with the City Clerk.

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,

temporary, part time or seasonal.

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

contract.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" or "Coordinator" is the employee

in the Department of Administration presently, the Executive Director of the Jersey City
Employment & Training Program, Inc., who is in charge of coordinating Project
Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects
covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the
Coordinator. The Coordinator may refer a developer to the JCEPT or its one-stop career

center so long as the City and JCEPT agreement is in full force and effect.

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is the employee in the

Department of Administration who is m charge of monitoring the site, collecting the
reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting
administration as stipulated by this agreement.

16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Officer" is an employee of the

Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is m compliance
with the Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

17. Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or
other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent
of the Recipient.

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a data base maintained by

the City or its designee, of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local
Businesses, including Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that

is part of a prime contract.

20. "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform

under a subcontract all or part of the work mcluded in an original contract.



21. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of
the Project.

II. Purpose: Construction Jobs, Business Contracting, Permanent Jobs

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Mmorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses,

especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or

relocatmg to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good

Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent
mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under this agreement, the City aclmowledges that the Recipient and its contractors

are free to hire whomever they choose.

Because this project is not subject to the terms of a Project Labor Agreement during
construction, this agreement shall apply to all Construction Jobs, Business Contracts aud hon-
construction Permanent Jobs. Recipients are also required to notify aay commercial tenants of

employment services available from the City.

III. Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal o£Gcer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City m order to
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defmed in this agreement. This officer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

The Recipient shall send a letter designating its "Project Employment & Contracting

Compliance Officer" to the Project Bmployment & Contractmg Coordmator prior to any
preconstmction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix 1. This Officer
should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer" to the employees of the Recipient's company. An example of this letter

can be found in Appendix 2.

TV. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-termmus with the effective period of the

tax exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council

adopted Ordinance _ approving the tax exemption and terminate 5 years from the date of
Substantial Completion of .the Project.

V. Good Faith Goals:



In the event the Recipient is able to demonsb'ate that its work force akeady meets the
goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the

Recipient shall only be requu-ed to submit the periodic certified manning and certified payroll
reports described below to confirm ongoing compliance. All other Recipients must comply with
the following Good Faith goals.

1. Employment (Construction and Permanent Jobs): The Recipient shall make a Good

Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City
residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom are residents who are Minorities and, in Non-
Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom are residents who are women, it

being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one category.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal

of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local

Businesses, fifty-one (51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local
Businesses. Iffiffcy-one (51%) percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses
cannot be obtained, that percentage of contracts must still be applied to local vendors.

VI. Good -Faith Defined. Construction Jobs:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Initial Manning Report:

1) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor

/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Maiming Report.

ii) The Initial Manning Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each
construction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked by City

residents, including a list of the number of minority residents and women
residents that will work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to -be

performed by such employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors.

Attached hereto as Appendbc B is the Recipient's Initial Manning Report.

iii) The Initial Manning Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and
Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipiept entering

into any construction -contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in

Appendix C.

B. Developer's Contracting Obligations

i) Once the developer submits the project's initial manning report, he/she must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Steven M. Fulop's

Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any



construction or building operating goods, services and sub-cont'actmg
opportunities. An example of this letter is given in Appendix D.

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and
individuals who submit bids. TMs effort must be documented by letter, which will
be sent to Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program at DEO under

the Department of Administration. An example of this letter can be foimd in

Appendix D2.

C. Contractor's/Subcontractor's Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor
must agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor

must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective

bargaining agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular
union to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting
agreement. This compliance statement is detailed In Appendix F. A copy of the

signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &

Contracting Monitor m DEO under the Department of Administration before
work starts in order for a developer to be in compliance.

$

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refasal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union
refases to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and

submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor m
DEO under the Department of Administration.

E, Sub-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance
of his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting

requirements during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a

portion of the work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained in these supplemental conditions to the fall extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Appjentices



The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account

for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on thejob in each
trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-joumey-worker

ratio contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold
each of his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or

subcontractor to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and

minority apprentices.

G. Monthly Manning Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project
Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO
under the Department of Administration by the seventh day of the month
followmg the month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the
coirtract.

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number
of minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will

list separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and

each of its Subcontractors during the previous month. The Monthly Manning
Report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaming or causing the Contractor to maintain
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors.

H. Monthly Certified Payroll Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The
reports will specify the residence, gender and ethrdc/racial origin of each worker,
work hours and rate of pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report

shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

ii.) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with fhe Monthly Manning
Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

I. Equal Employment Opportunity Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the

most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2)
which are required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission by the collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project
Employment & Contracting Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment
& Contracting Agreement.

J. Other Reports



In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other

documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order .to carry out the

purposes of this agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify
the accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed

reasonably necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report." An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in

Appendix I.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with

the City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are
working at the Project site. This includes specifically instmctmg the on-site
construction manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that
the monitor will contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of

projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates
they are working at each site location(s) where they are working, in order to
facilitate the monitoring.

VII. Good Faith Defined. Permanent Jobs:

1. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hirmg of a Recipient's
permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient
will meet with the Coordinator, including the director of JCETP to discuss how the
Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. The following issues should be covered
in this meetmg:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process.
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.

iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
iv) possible framing programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient's goals and how it plans to meet these goals.

vi) any other issues which need to be addressed.



B. Subcontractor Notification - If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of
its permanent workforce, fhen the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from

the subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting
Agreement before said subcontractor begins staffmg permanent employees. The

Recipient must forward a copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment
& Contracting Monitor. An example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in

Appendix 3.

C. Subconb'actor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting — Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to
meet with tiie head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above m VI

l.A.(i)-(vi) and notify the City.

D. Subcontractors of Subcontractors—Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the
same requirements for the initial subcontractors.

E. Documentation of Hiring Plan—Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken

place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future

permanent employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the
Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and
minority employment goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contractmg

Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this

plan is found in Appendix 4.

F. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the DEO and the

JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum
qualifications, rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled,
m qualitative and objective tenns which will enable the referral of qualified applicants to
the Recipient.

G. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified

applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs
in a newspaper which is regularly published m Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish
the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.

H. Pre-HJring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it

pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the Recipient agrees to
interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement.

I. Monthly Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written employment reports to
the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form. to be provided by the City.
The report will be submitted on the 1 day of every month. It will describe each job and
state whether the job was filled or held by a City resident, minority resident or woman
resident and date of hire. The, report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified

referred applicant (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person
responding to the advertisement) was not hired and the reason therefore. The form of this



report shall be in substantially the form found in Appendix 5, subject to such revision as
the City deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-

annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

J. Record Access: The recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files
and records including payroll and personnel infonnation reasonably necessary to confirm

the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-aimual reports.

K. Work Place Access^ The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the
site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth

in the any reports.

L. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish

such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to
implement the purposes of this agreement,

M. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,

maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient

whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

VIIL Good Faith Defined. Business Contracts

A. Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

i) Solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before the solicitation for any goods or services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with a description of the goods or services to the Project

Employment and Contracting Coordinator;

b) The Recipient shall provide the City with a written Purchasing Report every
month. The form of this report shall be m substantially the form found in

Appendix 6.

c) Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for
any employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the

DEO and the JCEPT with a written notice, which shall state the job title, job
description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours of work and the hiring

date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which will
enable the referral of qualified applicants to the Recipient.

d) Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because "the City does not have

qualified applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an
advertisement for the jobs in a newspaper which is regularly published m Jersey
City. The Recipient must furnish the DEO with a copy of this advertisement.



e) Pre-Hirmg Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants
referred to it pursuant to the agreement. In the event advertisement is required, the
Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the

advertisement.

f) Monthly Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written employment
reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will be submitted on the 1 day of every month.
It will describe each job and state whether the job was filled or held by a City
resident, minority resident or woman resident and date of hire. The report will

explain in writing the reasons why any qualified referred applicant (or in the event
advertisement is required, any qualified person responding to the advertisement)
was not hired and the reason therefore. The form of this report shall be in

substantially the form found in Appendix 5, subject to such revision as the City
deems appropriate and reasonable. Monthly reports may be extended to semi-
annually reports once the initial workforce is hired.

g) Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all
files and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably

necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-annual

reports.

h) Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access
to the .site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the
information set forth in the any reports.

i) Other Reports. Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall
furnish such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to

time m order to implement the purposes of this agreement.

j) Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any

service, maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the
Recipient whose personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

B. The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for
vendors that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by Project Employment

and Contracting Monitor of a Recipient, using the masthead of a local or minority
owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should
not, will immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d)
below.

IX. Good Faith

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:
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A. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space, including retail space, within

the Project Site a Tenant Employment Services Guide m the form attached as Appendix
7.

B. The Recipient shall require tenants of commercial, mcludmg any retail space to complete

an annual questionnaire concerning the composition of the work force of each tenant. The
completed questionnaire be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor.

The questionnaire shall be in the form attached as Appendix 8.

C. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than December 1 of each year.

X. Notices of Violation:

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The

Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have 7 days to correct the violation.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City the City shall issue a Violation Notice to the
Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain m sufficient detail the basis of the alleged,
continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days to correct the
violation.

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and

so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice
may be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

If the City determines that the Recipient is in violation after the expiration of the cure
periods, the Recipient agrees that the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages
provided below.

XI. Liquidated Damages:

1. While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of

this agreement by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of

mathematical certainty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a
material breach of any of the above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration
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of any cure period, the City will be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in
the following amounts:

A. Failure to file Initial Manning Report (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring Notification
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business Contracts): an amount equal

to Five percent (5%) increase in the estimated annual service charge as set forth in the
Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient Is non compliant.

B. Failure to conduct Pre-hiririg Interviews or submit Compliance Statement (Submit

description of goods or services, (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three (3%)
percent of the estimated annual service charge as set forth in the Financial Agreement
for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non compliant.

B. Failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all

categories): an amount equal to Three (3%) percent increase service charge as set forth

in the Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof that the Recipient is non

compliant.

C. The use of the local or local minority business' masthead for labor or work supplied by a

non local or local minority vendor; An amount equal to Ten (10%) service charge as set
forth m the Financial Agreement for each quarter or part thereof, the Recipient is non

compliant.

XII. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:

319ToimeleSP,LLC
201 WilshireBlvd.-Suite 102
Santa Monica, CA 90401
Att:

and

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City
Department ofAdminisb'ation

Division of Economic Opportunity
Project Employment & Contracting Monitor
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
Att: Division Director

and
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Director of Jersey City Employment and Training Program, Inc
895 Bergen Avenue—2nd Floor

Jersey City, NJ 073 06
Alt: Executive Director

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator.

XHI. Appendix

These forms are examples only and shall be in substantially the form on file in the

Division of Economic Opportunity, subject to modifications from time to time by the City as
necessary or appropriate.

1. Letter designating Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting Officer

2. Letter from Recipient to Employees of Recipient's Company
3. Acknowledgment of PECA compliance of Subcontractor

4. Example of Hiring Plan
5. Example of Monthly Employment Report
6. Example of Monthly Purchasing Report
7. Tenant Employment Services Guide
8. Commercial Retail Annual Questionnaire

XIV. Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by
the Municipal Council.

XU. Controlling Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good
Faith obligations under this agreement, tlie City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective

bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides the
City wifh a copy of the offending provision m the collective bargaining agreement.

In the event there are any conflicts between this Agreement and any Project Labor Agreement,

then as it pertains to construction jobs covered by the PLA, the Project Labor Agreement shall govern.
Wherever possible, this Agreement shall be interpreted consistently with the Project Labor Agreement.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne Robert J. Kakoleski
City Clerk Business

Secretary President
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City Clerk File No. Ord. 15..06Q

Agenda No._ 3J<_ ___ __ ^__ __ 1st leading

Agenda No._ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.060

TITLE:

ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A FOUR-STORY,
FORTY-SIX (46) UNIT MARKET RATE RESIDENTIAL RENTAL "LIVE/WORK"
PROJECT LOCATED AT BLOCK 17301 LOT 11, AND KNOWN BY THE STREET
ADDRESS OF 170 LAFAYETTE STREET, TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY 170
LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT
TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.T.S.A. 40A:20-1 EX SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN;

WHEREAS, 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC is an urban renewal entity, formed
and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption
Law ofl992.N.T.S.A. 40A:20-1 gtse^. [Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Contract Purchaser of certain property known as Block
17301, Lot 11 on the City's Official Tax map, and more commonly known by the
street address of 170 Lafayette Street, and more specifically described by metes and
bounds, in the application [Property]; and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan
Area as required by N.T.S.A. 40A:20-4 and NJ.S.A. 40A:12A-5(;g).; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has applied for a 20 year long term tax exemption to
renovate and restore a four [4) story historical industrial building and two and one"
half [2 1/2} historical annex building, both of which were formerly used as a
warehouse/ and have been vacant for some time. The existing industrial building

was designated as a historical building/landmark pursuant to Ordinance 03-057;
and

WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the existing structures will convert the buildings
to a market residential work/live lofts project, containing forty-six (46) residential
rental units, and fifty (50) surface parking spaces, provided pursuant to an

easement agreement, recorded on August 1, 2001, and annexed to Exhibit 1 in the

Financial Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Entity has a contract to purchase the property dated December 19,
2014, from Fresh Pond, LLC d/b/a 170 Lafayette, LLC, seller; and the closing of the
sale shall take place within-nmety (90) days of the date of adoption of the herein
Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Project received initial final site plan approval from the Planning
Board on March 11, 2003, as amended on November 13, 2006;and

WHEREAS, the total cost of construction is estimated to be $7,000,000; and



Continuation of City Ordinance 15.060 _,page

ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A FOUR-STORY, PORTY-SIX (46) UNIT
MARKET RATE RESIDENTIAL RENTAL "UVE/WORK" PROJECT LOCATED AT BLOCK 17301 LOT 11, AND
KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESS OP 170 LAFAYETTE STREET, TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY 170
LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX
EXEMPTION LAW M.I.S.A. 40A:20-l El SEQ.

WHEREAS, 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC, has agreed to:

1. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or [ii] 10% of
Annual Gross Revenue each year, which sum is estimated to be $98,515.00,

and which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the

tax exemption; and

2. pay an annual sum equal to 1% of each prior year's Annual Service Charge as

an Administrative Fee; and

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents

and businesses;

4. pay to City for remittance to Hudson County, an equal to 5% of the Annual

Service Charge upon receipt of that charge; and

5. provide a contribution to the City's Affordable Housing Trust Fund, pursuant
to Ordinance 03-112, in the amount of $81,150.00, This payment is

nonrefundable and nontransferrable and shall be forfeited by the Entity
should either party terminate the tax exemption prior to the end of the
herein term.

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits of the project
outweigh the cost of the tax exemption, for the following reasons:

1. the current real estate taxes generate revenue of only $21,559, whereas, the

Annual Service Charge as estimated, will generate revenue of more than

$98,515 to the City and an additional sum of approximately $4,926 to
Hudson County;

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 40 jobs during
construction, and two [2] permanent part-time jobs after construction;

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of

businesses in the surrounding area;

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the Morris
Canal Redevelopment Plan area;

5. the City's impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates
that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in
obtaining development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of
probable occupants for the following reasons:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors needed to finance the Project;

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will
allow the owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will insure the

likelihood of the success of the Project; and
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ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A FOUR-STORY, PORTY.SIX [46) UNIT
MARKET RATE RESIDENTIAL RENTAL "LIVE/WORK" PROIECT LOCATED AT BLOCK 17301 LOT 11, AND
KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESS OF 170 LAFAYETTE STREET, TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY 170
LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE I,ONG TERM TAX
EXEMPTION LAW NJ^A. 40A:20-l EISgQ.

WHEREAS, 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC, has initially complied with Executive
Order 2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing
an appropriate letter in the Office of the City Clerk; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of
Jersey City that;

A. The application of 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC, an urban renewal

company, formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long
Term Tax Exemption Law of 2003, N.J.S.A, 40A:20-1 et s eg. a copy of which is on file

in the office of the City Clerk, for Block 17301, Lot 11, more commonly known by the
street address of 170 Lafayette Avenue, more specifically described by metes and
bounds in the application is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax

exemption Financial Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting

Agreement. The Financial Agreement shall include at a minimum the following

terms and conditions:

1. Term: the earlier of 25 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 20
years from the date the project is Substantially Complete;

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of:

(a) the Minimum Annual Service Charge equal to $21,559 upon Project
Completion, whether or not the Project is occupied; or

(b) 10% of Annual Gross Revenue, estimated at $98,513, which shall be
subject to statutory increases during the term of the tax exemption.

3. Administrative Fee: 1% of the prior year's Annual Service Charge;

4. County Payment: an additional 5% of the Annual Service Charge for
remittance by the City to Hudson County or $4,926;

6. Affordable Housing Trust Fund: provide a contribution to the City's
Affordable Housing Trust Fund/ pursuant to Ordinance 03-112, in the amount

of $81,150, which represents $1500 per unit at 46 units C$69,000) and $1.50
per approximately 8,100 square feet of parking ($12,150). This payment is
nonrefundable and nontransferrable and shall be forfeited by the Entity
should either party terminate the tax exemption prior to the end of the
herein term;

7. Project: a four (4) story building with a total of 46 market residential
work/Uve rental loft units, and approximately fifty (50) surface area parking
spaces;

8. An obligation to execute (i) a Project Employment and Contracting
Agreement to insure employment and other economic benefits to City

residents and businesses;
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ORDINANCE APPROVING A 20 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A FOUR-STORY, PORTY-SIX (46) UNIT
MARKiET RATE RESIDENTIAL RENTAL "UVE/WORK" PROJECT LOCATED AT BLOCK 17301 LOT 11, AND
KNOWN BY THE STREET ADDRESS OF 170 LAFAYETTE STREET, TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY 170
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9. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption will terminate unless

construction of the Project begins within two (2) years of the adoption of the
within Ordinance.

C. The closing of sale shall take place within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption
of the herein Ordinance and prior to the execution of the Financial Agreement.

Failure to comply shall result in the Ordinance being repealed and the tax
exemption rescinded, unless otherwise extended by the City at its sole discretion.

D, The applicant shall execute the tax exemption Tax Agreement within ninety (90)
days of the date of adoption of the herein Ordinance. Failure to comply shall result
in the Ordinance being repealed and the tax exemption rescinded, unless otherwise

extended by the City at its sole discretion.

E. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial
Agreement to the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government

Services,

F. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial
Agreement and Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in
substantially the form on file in the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such
modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems

appropriate or necessary.

G. The actual date of execution of the tax exemption agreement shall not affect,

alter or amend the Entity's obligation to make payments according to the intervals

set forth in Section 304-28 of the Municipal Code and the tax exemption agreement.
Should the Entity fail to make timely payments, interest shall begin to accrue at the
rate set forth in the tax exemption agreement

H. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby

repealed.

I. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and
fully set forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and
incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

J. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by
law.
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K. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized
and directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers

in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict
between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and

possible accidental repealers of existing provisions.

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted,
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face

and repealed matter by italic.

JM/DJ/mw
4/13/15

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:
Corporalion Counsel Business Adnninistrator

Certification Required n

Not Required D



RESOLUTION FACT SHEET ~ NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to th0 front of any resolution that is. submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

Twenty Year Tax Exemption for a Market Rate Residential Rental Project to be Constructed by 170 Lafayette
Street Urban Renewal, LLC An Urban Renewal Entity pursuant to the Long term Tax Exemption Law N.J.S.A.
40A:20-1 et. seq.

Initiafor
Department/Division
Name/Title
Phone/email

Administration
Marcos Vigil
(201) 547-6542

Mayor's Office

bplatt(a)/icni.org
Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

The applicant, 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal LLC, is applying for a twenty (20) year tax abatement under
N.J.SA. 40 A: 20-1 et seq. It will be the renovation of an existing four (4) story industrial building into a
market rate rental project within the Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan area. The application fee of $9,500 was
paid. The proposed project will consist of forty-six (46) market rate worlc/live rental loffcs Fifty (50) parking
spaces will be provided through an existing easement agreement with an adjacent property owner.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate,

Signature of Department Director Date



170 Lafayette Street

1. Ownership disclosure certification

2. Fiscal Impact Cost Projection

3. Good Faith estimate of rental income/condo

4. Projected construction costs

5. Schedule ofASCoverthe abatement

6. Tax Assessor spreadsheet

7. Projection of sales price for condos (n/a)

8. Memorandum from Al Cameron to the Law Department

9. Financial Agreement (attached to the Ordinance)



NAME OF ENTITY:

NAME Or PROJECT:

EXHIBITS

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN 3RENEWAL, LLC

Disclosure Statement

170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC

170 Lafayette Street
Jersey City, New Jersey

PRINCIPAL PJLACE OF BUSINESS:

NAME OF REGISTERED AGENT:

ADDRESS:

15 Wilfcmsoa Avenue :
Jersey City, New Jersey 07305 '

Maninder Sethi

15 Wilkinsoa Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey 07305

I CBRTIFY THAT THE FOLLOWING LIST REPRESENTS THE NAMES OF ALL MEMBERS OWNING A
10% OR GREATER INTEREST IN THE ABOVE URBAN RENEWAL ENT^Ty (IP ONE OR MOM OF
THE ABOVE NAMED IS ITSELF AN ENTITY, THE APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE TJHE NAMES OF ANY
ENTITY OWING A 10% OR GREATER WEREST THEREIN)

NAME

Maniader Setiu

ADD3RESS

1407 Broadway
Suite 1807
New York, New York 10018

PERCENT
OWNED

100%

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT NO OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OP THE CITY OF JERSEY Cmr HAS ANY
INTBREST, DIRJECT OR INDIRECT, W THIS ENTrTY.

170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC

By:
Name: Manmder Sefhi

Office: Maaaeer

3070640-1



FISCAL IMPACT COST PROJECTION (MARKET RATE RENTAL UNITS - TfER 3 - 20 YEAR)

Block: 17301 Lot-11 Loc: 170 LAFAYETTE

Market Rate Rents! Units

wsth Retail & Parking

Planned Development

Studio
1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom

TOTAL

Number

of Units

1
37
8

46

Demagrapliic MuiSpSers

(Transit Oriented Development}*

Household Students

1.000
1.421
2.012

0.000

0.050
0.120

Total

Residents Students

1.00
52.58

16.10

69.67

0.00
1.85

0.96

2.81

Annual

Expenditures

Per Capita Per Pupil
Municipal Per School District

$1,163.68
$1,163.SS
$1,163.68

$3,445.00
$3,445.00

$3,445.00

SVIunicipal

$1,163.68
$61,182.88
$18,730.62

$81,077.18

Total

Annual Expenditures

School District

$0.00
$6,373.25

$3,307.20

$9,680,45

Total

$1,163.68
$67,556.13
$22,037.82

$90,757.63

1.

2.

3.

Total IVlunicipal Ratables

Residential Ratables
Commercial Ratables

Residential Ratables
as a Percentage of
Total Ratables

$5,916,171,4711

$3,299.371,8821
$1,439,637,4251

55.77% I

4. CY 2014 Budget

5. Residential Portion

$516,641,1471

$288,124,0481

6.

7.

8.

Population of Jersey City

(2010 Census)

Per Capita Municipal Cost

247,597

$1,163.68

Annual Expenditures Per Student**

Classic Average costing approach for projecting the impact of population change and local Mun'scipal and School District costs

$3,445.00

9. Increase in Services
Incurred Per Development

10. Anticipated Gross PILOT
1st Year 10%AGR $

1%Admin $
5% County $
Less Land $

11.1st Year Net PILOT $

12. Implied Surplus (Cost) $

90,757.63

98,515.00
985.15

4,925.75
(7,805.70)

96,620.20

5,862.57

"Source: New Jersey Demographic Multiplers: Profile of the Occupants of Residential and NonresidentiaS Deveiopment; Listoksn, November 2006

"Source; 2014-2015 Jersey City Municipal Cost Per Pupil



EXHIBIT B-l

170 LAFEYTTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant

2. Term of Lease

3, Number of Units

4. Rent per Units

Apartments

Studio
1 Bedroom/l Bath
1 Bedroom/1 Study/1 Bath
1 Bedroom/lStLidy/1.5 Bath

• 1 Bedroom/1 Study/2 Bath

1 Bedroom/2 Bath

2 Bedroom/1 Bath
2 Bedroom/2 Bath

Total Potential Res. Rental Income

5. Total Rent

6. Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually
a. Fire & other insurance

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

on property in project
c. Operating and maintenance

expenses ordinarily paid by tenant

7, Renewal Option (Yes /No)
a. Number of Years

b. Renewal Rent

8. Special Features (step-up rents, etc.)

Various

No less than 12 months each

Units

1
10

8
10

8
1
2
6

46

Studio (1)
1 Bedroom

2 Bedroom
Total 46

Monthly

$1,300
$16,000
$16,000
$22,000
$17,200

$1,850
$4,000

$13,800

$1,037,000,C

N/A

N/A

N/A

One

(37)
(8)

$15
$192
'$192

$264
$137
$22
$48

$165
$1,037

00

Market increases

A-nrLual

,600.
,000.

,000.'

,000,1

,600.

,200.

,000.1

,600.1

,000.1

.00

.00

.00

,00

.00

.00

.00

,00

.00

None

3070640-1



EXHIBIT B-2

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

ESTIMATED FISCAL PLAN

Rental Income:

Apartments

Studio
1 Bedroom/1 Bath
1 Bedroom/1 Study/1 Bath

1 Bedroom/lStudy/1.5 Bath

1 Bedroom/1 Study/2Bath
1 Bedroom/2 Bath
2Bedroom/lBath

2Bedroom/2Bath
Total Potential Res. Rental Income

Vacancy (5%)
Annual Gross Revenue .

Property^ administrative and fmanciaL expenses:

Payment in lieu of real estate taxes -

Management Fee

Leasing Expenses

Repairs andMaintenance

Insurance

Utilities
Labor " Payroll, Taxes & Benefits

Advertising/Marketing
Miscellaneous Operating Expenses
Reserves

Legal/Accounting/Admin/Licensing
Exterminator

Elevator Maintenance

Water/Sewer

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Estimated Debt Service

Units

1
10

8
10

8
1
2 '

6
46

Monthly

$1,300
$16,000
$16,000
$22,000
$17,200
$1,850
$4,000

$13,800

.Annual

$15,600.00
$192,000.00
$192,000.00
$264,000.00

$137,600,00
$22,200.00

$48,000.00

$165,600,00
$1,037,000.00

$51,850.00
$985,150.00

$98,515
$50,000
$10,000
$10,000'

$30,000
$12,000
$30,000

$5,000
$10,000
$5,000
$5,000
$2,000

$10,000
^20,000

$297,515.00

$687,635.00

. $450,000.00

3070640-1
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EXHIBIT B-3

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

ANNUAL GROSS REVENUE COMPUTATION

(1) Total Aimual Effective Gross Rental Income -

Market Rate (residential less 5% vacancy)

(2) Real Estate Taxes and/or Assessment on Property^

(3) Insurance Premiums*

(4) Operating, Mamtenance or Repair Expenses^

$ 985,150.00

$ NONE

$ NONE

$ NONE

*NJSA 40A:20-3(a) provides that "the financial agreement shall establish, the method of computing gross revenue
for the entity, and fhe method of determiniag insurance, operatmg and maintenance expenses paid by a tenant which.

are ordinarily paid by a landlord, which shall be included in gross revenue..."

Total Annual Gross Rental

Apartoients

Studio

1 Bedroom/1 Ba&

1 Bedroom/1 Study/1 Bath

1 BedFoom71Smdy/L5 Bath

1 Bedroom/1 Study/2 Bath

1 Bedroom/2 Bath

2 BedrooiWl Bath

2Bedroom/2Bath

Total Potential, Res. Rental Income

Vacancy (5%)

Annual Gross Revenue

Annual Payment in Lieu of Taxes: (10%) Years 1-20

Units

1

10

8

10

8

1

2

6

46

Monthly

$1,300

$16,000

$16,000

$22,000

$17,200

$1,850

$4,000

$13,800

1

Annual

$15,600.00

$192,000.00

$192,000.00

$264,000.00

$137,600.00

$22,200.00

$48,000.00

$165.600.00

$1,037,000.00

$51,850.00

$985,150.00

$98,515.00



EXHIBIT C

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

Projection of Total Project Costs (per N.J.S.A.40A:20-3(h)):

Total Project Cost

Land and Improvement Cost

Architects/ Engineers

Surveying & Testing

Construction Costs

Insurance, Interest, Finance Costs, Soft costs during construction

Costs of Obtaming Initial Pennanent Financing

Commissions and Marketing Expenses m connection with leasing ofumts

Real Estate taxes and assessments during construction period

Developer's Overhead (5% of construction costs as set forth in N.J.S.A.

40A:20-3(h)) .
Total

$4,600,000

$200,000

$150,000

$7,000,000

$300,000

$100,000

$75,000

$75,000

$386,667

$12,886,667

3070640-1



EXHIBIT C-l

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

CertiJSeafion of Estimated Construction Costs

On thisfj^day of ^ '201^, the undersigned bemg the architect for the Project to be developed by 170
Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC, does hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief-that Exhibit C
accurately reflects the estimated actual construction costs of the Project proposed on Block 173 01, Lot 11

(formerly IOIOWQ as Block 2057, Lot 17} and is commonly referred to as 170 Lafayette Street, Jersey City,
New Jersey

Witnessed:

,AIA

'\ ^^^eh

JCTSS. McNQighi, PC
Architsei & Pjanne:

163 Schuv!er Avenue
i<S3H^. UJ O?*^'

3070640-1



SERVICE CHARGE VS CONVENTIONAL 170 LAFAYETTE UR
^ASSUMING 74.34 TAX RATE WITH 2% ANNUAL INCREASE

NEW ASSESSMENTS BASED ON TAX ASSESSOR ANALYSIS
LAND 105,000 COUNTS
BLDG 1,963,800 ADM1N

TOTAL 2,068/800

5% EXISTING ASSESSMENT 290,000
1%
PROJECTED SERVICE CHARGE (1ST YEAR) 98/515

YEAR
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20 •

ASC w/ Phase-

In Less Land Tax

Credit

90,709

92,523

94,374

96/261

98,187

100/150
102,153

104,196

106/280

108,406

110,574

112,786

115:041
117,342

119,689
122,083

158,186

161,350

164,577

167,869

ASC w/ 2%
Annual

Increase

98,515

100/485

102,495

104,545

106,636

108/769
110/944

113,163

115,426

117,735

120,089

122,491

124,941

127,440

129,988

132,588

135,240

137,945

140,704

143,518

ASC w/ 2% Annual
Incease & Phase-ln

98/515

100,485

102/495

104,545

106,636

108,769
110,944

113,163

115,426

117,735

120,089

122/491

-124,941

127,440

129,988

132,588

168,902

172,280

175,725

179,240

County

(5%)
4,926

5/024

5/125

5,227

5,332

5/438

5/547

5,658

5,771

5,887

6,004

6/125
•6,247

6,372

6/499

6,629

8/445

8,614

8,786

8/962

Ad mi n

(1%)
985

1,005

1,025

1,045

1,066

1/088

1,109

1,132

1,154

1,177

1,201

1,225

1,249

1,274

1,300

1,326

1/689

1,723

1,757

1,792

Estimated

Conventional Taxes

On New Assessment

[2% Annual Increase)

153,795

156,870

160/008

163,208

166/472

169,802
173,198

176/662

180,195

183,799

187,475

191,224

195,049

198,950

202,929
206,987

211,127

215,350

219,657

224,050

Step Up
Rate

20%
20%
20%
40%
40%
40%
60%
60%
60%
60%
80%
80%
80%
80%

% of Conv.

34/640

35,332

36,039

73,520

74,990

76/490

117,029

119,370

121,757

124/192

168,902

172,280

175/725

179,240

Conventionaf

Taxes at 51%

(Estimated)

78,435

80,004

81,604

83,236

84,901

86,599
88,331

90,097

91,899

93/737

95,612

97,524

35/475

101,464

103,494

105,564

107,675

109,828

112,025

114,265

Current Taxes On

Existing
Assessment f2%

Annual Increase)

21,559

21,990

22/430

22,878

23,335

23,802

24,278

24,764

25,259

25,765

26,280

26,805

27.342

27,888

28,446

29,015

29,595

30,187

30,791

31,407

Land Tax

7,806

7,962

8,121

8,283

8,449

8/618

8,790

8,966

9/146

9,329

9,515

9,705

9/900

10/098

10,299

10/505

10/716

10,930

11,148

11,371

TOTAL 2,342/738 2,393,655 2,532,395 126/620 25,324 3/736/804 1/509/505 1,905,770 523/817 189/658

ASC phase-sn reflects annual 2% increase in conventional taxes AND Gross Rents



170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL ASSOCiATES, LLC
BLOCK 17301 Lot 11

170 Lafayette St.

Block Lot Existing New Good Faith Land Bldg. Assmt

Prorated (subdvi.) Assessments ASC Tax (Phased-In)

17301 11 Land

Bldg
Total

105,000 105/000

1/963,800 98,515 1/963/800

105/000 2/068/800 98/515 1,963/800

Est. In-Lieu of Full Property Tax Payments An Amount Equal

To A Percentage Of Taxes Otherwise Due On The Land and

New Improvement According To The Following Stages:

ASC

Stage One

Stage Two

From the 1st day of the month following substantial

completion until the last day of the 6th year, the ASC

shall be at 10% of Annual Revenue $ 98,515 $ 7/806

Annual Taxes*

(Phased-in)

7,806

Beginning on the 1st day of the 7th year and the lastdayofthe

9th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 10% or 20% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and improvements; $ 98/515

Stage Three Beginning on the 1st day of the 10th year and the last day of the

12th year of substantial completion/ an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 10or40% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the land and improvements; $ 98,515

Stage Four Beginning on the 1st day of the 13th year and the last day of the

16th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

oftheASCat!0%or60%ofthe amount of taxes otherwise

$ 7/806 $ 37,003

$ 7,806 $ 66,201



due on the value of the land and improvements; $ 98,515 $ 7/806 $ 90/686

Final Stage Beginning on the 1st day of the 17th year and the iastdayofthe

20th year of substantial completion, an amount equal to the greater

of the ASC at 10% or 80% of the amount of taxes otherwise

due on the value of the iand and improvements. $ 98/515 $7/806 $ 124/597

^Yearly Land and Improvement Yearly Tax $ 153,795

3/30/2015 (Based on 2014 tax rate o $74.34 & 30.02% Assessment Ratio)



DATE: IViarch6,2015

TO: Diana Jeffrey (For distribution to City Council and City Clerk)

FROIVI: Al Cameron, Fiscal Officer - Tax Collector's Office

SUBJECT: TWENTY YEAR TAX ABATEIVIENT: MARKET RATE RESIDENTIAL
RENTAL PROJECT - 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal LLC,
170 Lafayette Street - Block 17301 Lot 11

CC: 1VI. Cosgrove, E. Borja, E. Toloza, J. Monahan, IVI. vigil, G. Corrado,

INTRODUCTION:

The applicant, 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal LLC, is applying for a twenty
year tax abatement under NJ.S.A. 40 A: 20-1 et seq. It will be the renovation of an
existing four (4) story industrial building into a market rate rental project within
the IVIorris Canal Redevelopment Plan area. The application fee of $9,500 was
paid.

LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY:

The property is located within and surrounded by the Whitlock Cordage site.
Know as 170 Lafayette, Street it consists of Block 17301 Lot 11.

PROPERTY TO BE CONSTRUCTED:

The proposed project will consist of forty-six (46) market rate work/live rental
lofts in a rehabilitated four (4) story industrial building. Fifty (50) parking spaces
will be provided through an existing easement agreement with an adjacent
property owner. The residential units will consist of the following:

Unit Type Number of_Units

Studio 1
One Bedroom 37
Two Bedroom 8

ESTIMATED TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST:

The cost of construction is estimated at $7,000,000 is certified by James
IVIcNeEght, the applicant's architect Totai Project Cost is projected at $12,886,667.

170 Lafayette Urban Rrenewal LLC SUM.doCX

4/7/2015 10:31 AM
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CONSTRUCTION SCHEDU LE:

The applicant is prepared to begin construction in IVIarch 2015 and expected to be
completed within twenty four (24) months of commencement

ESTIMATED JOBS CREATED:

The applicant estimates creation of forty (40) jobs during Construction and
approximately two (2) permanent part-time jobs after construction. The applicant
will execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement. However; based
upon the estimated construction cost, a Project Labor Agreement is not required.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTIONS:

At the rate of $1,500 per residential unit for forty-six (46) units and $1.50 per
square foot for 8,100 sq. ft for fifty (50) parking spaces, the applicant proposes a
total AHTF contribution of $81,150. The square feet assigned for parking spots
does not include the full amount of the parking area only an allocation of 162 Sq.
Ft per parking space.

170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL LLC AHTF Payment

Rate Amount

Residential
Units 46 $1,500.00 $69,000.00

Square footage

Parking 8,100 $1.50 $12/150.00

Total AHTF Payment $81/150.00

CURRENT REAL ESTATE TAX:

The existing assessment for the land is $105,000. The Improvements are
assessed at $185,000. At the current tax rate of $74.34 the estimated annual land
fax is $7,805.70. The tax for the improvements is $13,752.90. The First Quarter
2015 taxes are paid.

170 Lafayette Urban Rrenewal LLC SUIVI.doCX

4/13/2015 11;20AM



The property is in Tier III of the Jersey City Tiered Tax Exemption Policy
The applicant has requested a term of the lesser of twenty-five (25) years from the
date of approval of an ordinance approving the abatement or twenty (20) years
from substantial completion of the project

The tier III Tax Abatement Policy provides for a PILOT of ten percent (10%) of
Annual gross revenue, a one percent (1%) City administrative fee and a five
percent (5%) service charge to Hudson County.

The proposed staged adjustments would begin the first day of year seven (7).
The ASC in years seven (7) through the end of year nine (9) would be the greater
of ten percent (10%) of gross revenue or twenty percent (20%) of conventional
taxes. Beginning in year ten (10) through the end of year twelve (12) it would be
the greater of ten percent (10%) of Annual gross revenue, or forty percent (40%)
of conventional taxes. Beginning in year thirteen (13) through the end of year
sixteen (16) it would be the greater of ten percent (10%) of Annual gross revenue,
or sixty percent (60%) of conventional taxes. Beginning in year seventeen (17)
until the end of year twenty (20) it would be the greater of ten percent (10%) of
Annual gross revenue, or eighty percent (80%) of conventional taxes.

The Tax Assessor's phase-in schedule assesses the Land at $105,000 and the
improvements at $1,963.800 for the completed project The PILOT would be the
greater of the Annual Service Charge (ASC) or the result of the staged
adjustments.

PROPOSED REVENUE TO THE CITY:

At full occupancy the Good Faith estimated annual revenue is $985,150. The
proposed market rents used for the revenue estimates seem to be reasonable.
The Annual Service charge at the rate of ten percent (10%) is $98,515.00. The City
Administrative fee at one percent (1%) would be $ 985 and the Hudson County fee
of five percent (5%) would be $4,926.

170 Lafayette Urban Rrenewal LLC SUM.doCX

4/13/2015 11:20 AIVt



TIER 3 - FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (20 YEAR)
Rev. 12-20-13,1/16/14
Long Term Tax Exemption
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.

Re; 170 Lafayette Street
Approximately _ Acres
Block 17301, Lot 11
Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the _day of_, 20_

by and between 170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL LLC, an urban renewal entity formed

and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 2003,

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal office at 15 WUldnson Avenue, Jersey City, NJ.,

and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having

its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

RECITALS

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Contract Purchaser pursuant to a contract for sale dated

December 19, 2014, of certain property designated as Block 17301, Lot 11, more commonly

known by the street address of 170 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, and more particularly described

by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the closing of the sale of the property and transfer of title from the seller to

the Entity shall take place within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of Ordinance

; and

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Morris Canal

Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to restore an existing four (4) story industrial building and

two and one half story historical annex building with approximately forty-six (46) market rate

residential work/Uve loft units, along with fifty (50) surface parking spaces provided pursuant to

1



an easement agreement annexed to Exhibit 1; and

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2003 the Project received site plan approval from the

Plaimmg Board as amended on November 13, 2006; and

WHEREAS, on_, 20_, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long term

tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance_ on _, 20_, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Fmancial Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1. the current real estate tax generates revenue of only $21,559 whereas, the
Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City of

approximately $98,515;

2. as required by ordinance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the sum of

$27,050 on or before the effective date of the ordinance approving the
Fmancial Agreement, and will pay the balance of $54,100 as an affordable
housing contribution as required by the ordinance;

3. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 40 new

construction jobs and 2 new permanent part time jobs;

4. the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of

existing local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater

to the new occupants;

5. the Project will further the objectives of the Morris Canal Redevelopment
Plan, and will mclude the remediation of vacant buildings;

6. the City's Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,
indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

B. Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of

the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to

finance the Project; and



2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract
occupants to the Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants

and the success of the Project; and

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1,1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption

Law of 2003, NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seg.. Executive Order of the Mayor 2013-004, Disclosure of

Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance 2013-004, which authorized the execution of

this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the

facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in

granting this tax exemption.

Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requkes, when used m

this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit

Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c).

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived

at by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity's initial

permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a

governmental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per

annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage

financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit

Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per

annum to the interest rate per annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate

on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provlsious of

N.J.S.A, 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herem by reference.
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iiL Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the

Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees

from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as

user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance

costs, mcluding, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal

and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each

year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the

Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12. It shall include a payment for all annual excess

profit.

v. Auditor's Report - A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear

computation of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor's Report shall have been

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a

minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings

or changes in stockholders' equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accountmg policies,

notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of

operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor's Report shall be

certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant that is

licensed to practice that profession m the State of New Jersey.

vi. Certificate of Occupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, m whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A.

52:27D-133.

vii. Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and

interest or the equivalent thereof on any consb'uction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt

for the Project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement.

viii. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.
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ix. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean 170 Lafayette Urban

Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also

include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are

formed and operate under the Law.

x. Improvements or Project - Any buildmg, structure or fixture permanently affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xl. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-

129 et seg.

xii. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the

project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not

exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax

Collector.

xiv. Law ~ Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and

supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, efc se^.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003, relating to long

temi tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of

Lobbyist Statis and Ordinance 2002-005, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and

all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be the greater of: (a) the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property m the area

covered by the Project in the last full tax year m which the area was subject to taxation, which

amount the parties agree is $21.559; or (b) the sum of $98,515 per year, which sum is equal to

the estimated Annual Service Charge and which shall be due 12 months followmg Substantial

Completion of the Project [Mmimum Annual Service Charge for condominium is based on

initial assessed value].

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimym Annual Service Charge set forth in

subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated

pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Muumum Annual



Service Charge.

xvi. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating

and non-operating expenses of the Entity, calculated annually, all determined in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, but:

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to

NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to NJ.S.A.

40A:20-15 or NJ.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the

straight line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs

determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity

whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement;

(d) all reasonable annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is

mcluded in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees,

brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,

or other professional service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building .and office

supplies and payments mto repair or mamtenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent

including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on

debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xvii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminme or neuter gender, the

singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xviii. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the

Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or

permanent for any portion of the Project.

xix. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xx. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth



in NJ.S.A. 40A;20-3(h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred

by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are

associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or

contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred

including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of

relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. If the Service Charge is a

percentage of Total Project Cost, then the Entity agrees that final Total Project Cost shall not be

less than its estimated Total Project Cost.

ARTICLE 11 - APPROVAL

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and

the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known

on the Official Tax Assessor's Map of the City as: Block 17301, Lot 11, more commonly known

by the street address 170 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in

Exhibit 1 attached hereto.

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as

Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;

has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;

and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson

County Clerk, all in accordance with NJ.S.A. 40A:20-5.

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will renovate and restore a four (4) story indusb-ial building and

two and one half (2 Vi} story annex with approximately forty-six (46) market rate residential

work/live loffc rental units along with fifty (50) surface area parking spaces; pursuant to an

easement agreement recorded in August 1, 2001 annexed to Exhibit I herein, all of which is

specifically described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.



Section 2.4 Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence consb'uction and complete the

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5,

and in compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement.

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the contract purchaser of the property upon which the

Project is to be constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will

be used, managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and any

Redevelopment Agreement.

Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest

rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the

terms of any mortgage amortization.

Section 2.7 Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue

to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7.

ARTICLE HI - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain m effect for the earlier of 25 years

from the date of the adoption of Ordinance _ on _, 20_, which approved the tax

exemption or 20 years from the original date of Substantial Completion of the Project or

20_. The tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the

Project and shall continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or

association formed and operating under the Law.



ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual

payments to the City for services provided to the Project:

i. City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Amiual

Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 10% of the Annual Gross Revenue. The

Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity's estimates of Annual

Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be

adjusted m accordance with this Agreement.

ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service

Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County.

iii. The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section 1.2xv(a) shall be due

beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. The Minimum Annual Service Charge

pursuant to Section 1.2xv(b) shall be due 12 months following Substantial Completion of the

Project. The City Service Charge and the County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the

first day of the month following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the

Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge,

the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or

tax liens on land until paid.

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax

exemption in accordance with NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i. Stage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until

the last day of the 6th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 10% of Annual Gross Revenue;

ii. Stage Two: Begimiing on the 1 day of the 7th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 9th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 10th year following the Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 14th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual



Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

.land and Improvements;

iv. Stage Four: Beguming on the 1st day of the 15th year following Substantial

Completion until the last day of the 18th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements;

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 19th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of

the land and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Land Tax

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax

Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the

pre-existing improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual

Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,

without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments

against the Annual Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax

Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land

Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the

Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have,

among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the

In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et sec^. and/or declare a Default and terminate this

Agreement.

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under

this agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate-of interest permitted in the case of
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unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the

Annual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as one

(1%) percent of each prior year's Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on

or before December 31st of each year, and collected m the same manner as the Annual Service

Charge.

Section 4.6 Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies

A. Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $81,150 or [$1,500 per 46

units and $1.50 per square foot of 8,100 of parking] as a contribution. The sum shall be due and

payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax

exemption;

ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no

later than six months after the date of the Financial Agreement; and

iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the

Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial

Agreement.

Section 4.7 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum

Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including Annual Net Profits and any

adjustments thereto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest

thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
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ARTICLEVI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with

the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the

Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the

date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,

including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in

the absence of such filmg by the Entity.

Section 6.3 Construction Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial

Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit for the Project.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1 Accountmg System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor's Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar

year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the

Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local

Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor's Report for the

preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not be limited to gross

revenue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or
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construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and

to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The

Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year,

the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is generated.

B; Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project

architect.

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and

each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal

officials required to be advised^ a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership

interest m the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional

information as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership

interests of the individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity.

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in

the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made

during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated

by the Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was m full force

and effect.

All costs mcurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity's audits, including

reasonable attorneys' fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part

of the Entity's Annual. Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same

rate as for a delinquent service charge.
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ARTICLE Vffl- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions ofN.J.S.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,

and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue, of

the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess

Net Profits as is necessary to elimmate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided m NJ.S.A.

40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto

shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of

the preceding year's Gross Revenue.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits

for such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the

year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge;

provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to

aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity's Excess Net Profits shall include

those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other

costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement even

though those costs may have been deducted from the project costs for purposes of calculating the

annual service charge.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal

year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the

amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the

Excess Net Profit, if any.
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ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Approval of Sale

Any sale or transfer of the Project, shall be void unless approved m advance by

Ordinance of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written

application by the Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and

the transfer of this Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject

to long term tax exemption at the tune of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to

operate under the Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the

Entity's obligations under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays

in full the maximum transfer fee, 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted by NJ.SA.

40A:20-10(d); and 6) as to projects that are not Substantially Complete, the Entity is comprised

of principals possessing substantially the same or better financial qualifications and credit

worthiness as the Entity.

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure

statement.

Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in

ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to

the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate

action on the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not

only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, efc se^., as amended and supplemented, but

also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall
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constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the

right to terminate the tax exemption.

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-

005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.

The Entity's failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a

Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to

terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI -DEEAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or

failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable

notice, cure or grace period.

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the

Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the

alleged Default. The Entity shall have thirty (30) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to

cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However,

if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using

reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such thirty (30) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the

right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should die Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.7, or a sale of the Project occurs without the consent of the City, the

Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein but shall allow

the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided m Article XII herein.

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.SA. 54:5-1, et seq. In order to secure the full
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and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf, or on behalf of the

Trustee, reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project

Area in accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default

arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,

Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not

be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allow the City to

proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided herein. All of the remedies

provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and

equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement

shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions agamst the Entity because of its failure to

pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable

Housing Contribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due

and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would In the future become due as if

there had been no termination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum

Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,

Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herem provided

for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the

tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified

remedy.

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article

IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and

property, m the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or

amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to

mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is

pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.
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ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the tune period provided

m Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to

the Entity [Notice of Termination].

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project,

after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project, as of the January

1 of the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City

no later than October 1 of the tax year proceeding the calendar year in which the termination is

to occur. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and

dividend restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be

entitled to any refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the lax

exemption, including but not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the

due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay

under this Agreement, shall be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1

as a condition precedent of the voluntary termmation.

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the

Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the

Entity shall provide a final accountmg and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the

provisions of N.J.SA. 40A:20-l3 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For

purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be

the end of the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project

shall exph'e and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.
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ARTICLE XIU - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

.In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a

dispute arising between the parties m reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,

either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to

settle and resolve the dispute m such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.

In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the

dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance

with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax

Exemption Law. The cost for the arbib'ation shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that

the Entity may not file an action m Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the

Entity has first paid m full all charges defined in Section 4.7 as Material Conditions.

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment

In calculating the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due,

pursuant to Section 4.2 and NJ.S.A. 40A:20-12, either party may file an appeal of the

conventional assessment to determine the value of land and improvements.

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, Including, without limitation, the right to

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided

herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City's right to audit or recover any amount

which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in

any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of

this Agreement and/or the provisions of NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify

and hold the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable
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attorneys' fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives

all statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this

indemmficatioiL The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City

mamtains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the

expense thereof to be borne by the City.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16,1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC
15 Wilkinson Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey 07305

Attn: Maninder Sefhi

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice m accordance with this

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity's Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall
280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice

to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Property's Block and Lot number).
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ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a

Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of

this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent pennitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be mvalid or unenforceable and

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each

other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated

by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-

execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the

parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this

Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring

construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn smce counsel for

both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizmg the Agreement,
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and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no

modifications thereto other than by a written instrument, approved and executed by both parties

and delivered to each party.

Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.

Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the

City.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;
5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial [Rents or Sales Prices],

8. Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.

10. Entity's Deed [or Lease].
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day and
year first above written.

WITNESS: 170 LAFAYETTE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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12-04-13

(Projects w/no PLA)

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the _ day of
20_, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and 170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC
having its principal office at 15 WiUdnson Avenue. Recipient agrees as follows:

I. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used m this agreement, shall have the following

meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Admimstrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,

including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in

whole or in part, this agreement.

2. "Constmction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or

demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project

Site.

3. "Contractor means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on
behalf of the Recipient.

4. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of

Administration, located at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone #(201)
547-5611. DEO is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and
monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

5. Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project
which requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount
of taxes otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase

of the project. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions,

terminations, or expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by
new employees. However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's

existing work force are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

8. Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO

under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority

business cortacts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert
service which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting
and construction subcontracting goals.



9. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined
as follows:

a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial
groups of Africa.

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding,

however, persons of European origin.

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the origmal people of the Far

East, Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide busmess located in

Jersey City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a
Minority or woman.

11. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market,

and Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City
Clerk.

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part tmie or seasonal.

13. Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

contract.

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member of the DEO staff

under the Department of Admmistration who is in charge of coordinating Project

Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects

covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the
Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

15. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of the DEO

staff under the Department of Administration directly under the commaind of the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is m charge of monitoring the site,
collecting the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment &

Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Officer" is an employee of the

Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance
with the Recipient's Project Employment & Contracting agreement.



17. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or

other entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which
receives an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent

of the Recipient.

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the

City or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses,
mcluding Mmority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that

is part of a prime contract.

20. "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform

under a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

21. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole
or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion of

the Project.

II. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses,

especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or

relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has detennmed
to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Bconomic Incentive to act m Good
Faith, as defined herem, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent

mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith
obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors
are free to hire whomever they choose.

III. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the

goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the

Recipient will not be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth
in Section VI 1., A-L (Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A"J (Permanent Jobs). All goals for
Construction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of the total number of work hours in each
trade from the beginning of the project to its completion.

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Oood Faith effort to achieve the goal of a
work force representing flffcy-one (51%) percent City residents, fiffcy-one (51%) percent of whom
are residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of
whom are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more

than one category.



2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fiffcy-

one (51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. Iffifty-one
(51%) percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that
percentage of contracts must still be applied to local vendors.

IV. Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City m order to

discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be
designated as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the "Project Employment &
Contracting Compliance Officer" to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to

any preconstruction meetings. All example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This
principle officer should also be present for all preconstmction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Project Employment & Contracting
Compliance Officer" to the employees of the Recipient's company. An example of this letter

can be found in Appendix AZ

V. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-ferminus with the effective period of the
tax exemption [the Economic Incentive], Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council
adopted Ordinance _ approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of
years from the date of the adoption of that Ordinance or _ years from the date of Substantial

Completion of the Project.

VI. Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. Initial Manning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manning Report.

ii) The Initial Manning Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each
construction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked by City

residents, including a list of the number of minority residents and women
residents that will work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be

performed by such employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors.

Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient's Initial Manning Report.



iii) The Initial Majming Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and
Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in

Appendix C.

B. Developer's Contractmg Obligations

i) Once the developer submits the project's initial manning report, he/she must

forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Steven M. Fulop's
Business Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any

construction or building operating goods, services and sub-contracting
opportunities. An example of this letter is given in Appendix D.

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and
individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will
be sent to Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program at DEO under

the Department of Administration. An example of this letter can be found in

Appendix D2.

C. Contractor s/Subcontractor's Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor

must agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated
herein. An example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &

Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective

bargaining agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular
union to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting

agreement. This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the
signed compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment &

Contracting Monitor in DEO under the Department of Administration before
work starts in order for a developer to be m compliance.

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union
refuses to sign a statement, the .Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such

statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and

submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
DEO under the Department of Administration.



E. Sub_-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance

of his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting
requirements during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a
portion of the work on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations
contained m these supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

F. Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account

for at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each
trade listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-joumey-worker
ratio contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold
each of his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or

subcontractor to, promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and

minority apprentices.

G. Monthly Manning Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project
Maiming Reports to the Project Employment & Contractmg Monitor in DEO
under the Department of Administration by the seventh day of the month
following the month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the
contract.

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft

and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number
of minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will

list separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and
each of its Subcontractors during the previous month. The Monthly Manning

Report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G.

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or

Subcontractors.

H. Monthly Certified Payroll Report

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The
reports will specify the residence, gender and ethnic/mcial origin of each worker,

work hours and rate of pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report
shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.



ii) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning
Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

I. Equal Employment Opportumtv Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the

most recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report CEEO-2)
which are required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission by the collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project

Employment & Contracting Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment
& Contractmg Agreement.

J. Other Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other
documents to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the

purposes of this agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

i) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify
the accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently, if it is deemed
reasonably necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site
Visit Report." An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in

Appendix I.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with

the City's site monitormg activities and inform the City as to the dates they are

workmg at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site
construction manager about the monitoring process, and mforming him/her that

the monitor will contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of

projects with multiple locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates
they are working at each site location(s) where they are working, in order to
facilitate the monitoring.

2. . Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following
conditions:

A. 'Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient's

permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit

down with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent



workforce. The following issues should be covered in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used m the hiring process.

ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
ui) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient's goals and how it plans to meet these goals.

vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification - If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of

its permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the

subcontractmg party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement
before said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a
copy of the signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An

example of this signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hmng Job Awareness Meeting — Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with
the head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Sub contractors-Sub contractors of subcontractors are subject to the
same requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan-Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meetmg has taken

place, the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent
employment needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hirmg

Awareness Meeting, list estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment
goals commensurate with the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the

Recipient plans to meet these goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient's subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a

written notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of
pay, hours of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective
terms which will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified

applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the Jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published m Jersey City. The Recipient must fumish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator m DEO under the Department of Admmistration with a
copy of this advertisement.

E. Pre-Hiring. Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to It
from the Registry, to be mamtamed by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the
advertisement.



F. Semi-Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual

employment reports to the Project Employment & Contractmg Monitor in the form to be
provided by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident,
mmority resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any

qualified applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any
qualified person responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is

found in Appendix K.
G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files
and records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the

accuracy of the information set forth m the semi-annual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the

site to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the mformation set forth in the

semi-annual reports.

I. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish
such reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time m order to

implement the purposes of this agreement.

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this

Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service,

maintenance, security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose
personnel will be assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

1) Solicitation of Businesses :

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must
forward a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Steven M. Fulop s
Business Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any

construction or building operating goods, services and subcontracting

opportunities. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether , the bid was
accepted or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation
can be found in Appendix D2.

1) Semi-Ammal Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-

annual purchasmg reports which will include a list of all contracts
awarded over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these

contracts. The reports will specify the number and dollar amount of
contracts awarded to Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned

Local Businesses. An example of these reports can be found in Appendix

L.



ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors

that are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Department of

Administration of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local

or minority owned business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it
should not, will immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d)
below.

4. SummatipD_of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

1. Letter Designating Project Employment.& Contracting Officer (Appendix. A)
2. Letter Designating Project employment & Contractmg Officer to Recipient's Employees

(App.) AZ
3. Example of Initial Manning Report (Appendix B)
4. • Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Manning Report (Appendix C)
5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and

Residential Vendors from Mayor Steven M. Fulop's Business Cooperative Program

(Appendix D)
6. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2)
7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/

Subcontractors (Appendix E)
8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)
9. Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)
10. Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H)
11. Example of Bi-Weeldy Site Visit Report (Appendix I)
12. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J)
13. Example of Semi-Annual Employment Report (Appendix K)
14. Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there
is non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The

Advisory Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The
Recipient shall have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an
Advisory Notice can be found in Appendix M.

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth iu the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then
issue a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient
detail the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3)
working days to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in

Appendix N.
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3. Correcting the Violation; Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and

so advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to

achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the
violation will be considered not corrected.

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting

with the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance;
or may respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely
submission of a written explanation piirsuant to the above. The meeting shall be
requested no later than two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written

explanation.

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request

additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine

whether the alleged violation has occurred.

7. Determitiation of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the

delivery of .the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

VIII. Liquidated Damages/lnterest:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material
breach of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this
agreement by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical
certainty. Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any of the

above terms and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation,

the City will be entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a) failure to file Initial Manning Reports (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hirmg
Notification (Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business

Contracting): an amount equal to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated
annual payment in lieu of taxes;

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement

(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Busmess Contracting): an amount equal to
Three (3%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes;

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports
(all categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated

annual payment in lieu of taxes.
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d) the use of the local or local minority business' masthead for labor or work

supplied by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%)
percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes. Interest shall

be charged on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax
Collector.

e) the late payment of any liquidated sum shall accrue interest at the rate of 8%.

IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

1. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site'a
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the fomi attached as Appendix
0.

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about
. the composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will

be submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall
provide the Recipient with a questionnau'e in the form attached as Appendix P.

3. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Proj ect Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year.

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.

X. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to :

170 Lafayette Urban Renewal, LLC
15 Wilkinson Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey 07305
Attn: Maninder Sethi

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Compliance Division
280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302
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with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to

giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by

the Municipal Council.

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its
Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the
Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts

with any collective bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as

the Recipient provides the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective
bargaining agreement.

Robert Byrne Robert J. Kakoleski
City Clerk Acting Business Administrator

WITNESS: RECIPIENT

Secretary President
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City Clerk File No. —_Ord^_J^04Q

Agenda No. _• '•'•• 3-L 1st Reading

Agenda No._ 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF

JERSEY CITY, N.J,

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 15.040

TITLE:

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE WEST BERGEN-EAST LINCOLN PARK mSTORIC DISTRICT AS A MUNICIPAL mSTORIC
DISTRICT

WHEREAS, The City of Jersey City ("the City") applied for, and received a Garden State Historic
Preservation Trust Fund GrantAward administered by the New Jersey Historic Tmst for the City to retain the
services of a consultant in order to provide professional services for the identification and nomination of eligible
historic resources "within Ae West Bergen Historic District Study Area to the municipal, state and national
registers of historic places; and

WHEREAS, the City, having accepted the grant, authorized an agreement with Hunter Research, Inc.
(the consultant") for cm extraordinary, unspecifiable sefvzcefor the identification and'nommation of Eligible
Historic Resources in the West Bergen Historic District Study Area on Jsmisry 23,2Q13; and

WHEREAS, The consultant produced the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District Nomwation
Report and identified boundaries of a potential municipal, state and national historic district in accordance with
fhe standards and guidelines for nominations set forth by fhe Secretary of the Interior and the National Parks
Service; and

WHEREAS, onOctober20,2014theCommissionersofthe Jersey City Historic Preservation
Commission (the Commission ), pursuant to Section 345 9-B(5) offlie Land Development Ordinance of the
Cityof Jersey City, voted 7-0-0 to recommend to the Planning Board of the City of Jersey City ("the Board")
that the Board recommend to the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City ("the Council") that the Council
designate the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District ("the District") as a Municipal Historic District;
and

WHEREAS, on November 13 after reviewmg fhe nomination report and hearmg testimony from the
consultant and Historic Preservation Staff, the New Jersey State Historic Review Board unanimously moved to
recommend the District be included on the New Jersey and National Registers of Historic Places; and

WBEREAS, on December 29th 2014 the district was officially listed on the New Jersey Register of
Historic Places by the Sigaatire of the Secretary of the Depai-tment of Environmental Protection; and

WHEREAS, the National Park Service announced in the Federal Register, published February 6 , 2015
that it had received fhe application for Nomination was considering the District for listing in fhe National
Register; and

WHEREAS, on February 3 , the Board heard testimony from Patrick Harshbarger, consultant and
architectural historian to the City, from Staff of the Division of City Planning and the Commission, as well as
from the public, and

WHEREAS, On March 10 the Board heard further testimony from the public and Staff of the Division
of City Planning and the Commission, and voted 5-0-0 to recommend to the Council that the Council designate
the District as a Municipal Historic District; and

WHEREAS, after review of the record of the proceedings of the Commission, of the Nomination
Report and the subsequent presentation of the City's Consultant, as well as fhe testimony of Staff of the Division
of City Planning and the Commission and members of the public, before the Board, demonstrates the following
fmdiugs:

a. The District, as shown in the attached map entitled West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District
has been placed on the New Jersey State Register of Historic Places and shall be included on the
National Register of Historic Places for its significance under Criteria A; for its distinctive pattern of



Continuation of City Ordinance 15.040 . ,. .—, ''Pa9e.

suburban development and plamiing and its significant patterns in Jersey City's social history, under
Criteria B for people significant to local and state history and under Criteria C for Its distuict
architectural heritage found in the diversity offhe architecture and streetscapes as noted in fhe,
Nomination Report.

b. The boundaries of the historic district as shown in the attached map and coterminous wifh the
district listed on the State Register of Historic Places and soon to be listed on the National Register
ofHistorio Places captures fhe distinctive reisidential architecture, social history, and geography of

.. the Western Slope of tiieBergen Hill, west to the main entrance of Lincoln Park on West Side
Avenue

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City. of Jersey City that
after consideration of the record of proceedings before the Commission and the Board, the Municipal CouiLcll of
the City of Jersey City hereby accepts all the findings set forth iu the recommendation of the Commissioners of
the Jersey City Historic Preservation Commission and the Planning Board of fhe City of Jersey City concerning
the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District; and . • .

BE FT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City amends fhe Laud
Development Ordinance to add the West Bergen-Bast Lincoln Park Historic District to the Municipal Register of
Historic Places; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that City Code Chapter 345 (Land Development Ordinance) §345-30
Historic Districts/Laudmarks G Historic Dishicts/Landmarlcs be amended as follows:

G. Historic Dlstricts/Landmarks Pursuant to this section, the following historic districts and landmark buildings,
objects, sites, structures or landscape features are designated and recognized as "historic" and shall enjoy the
protection of law as herein provided, be amended as follows: (material indicated by bold italic^u'A'fy is new
material that is intended to be enacted),

Historic Districts: . Date:

West Bergen-East Lincoln Park [Date of City Council Adoption]

BE FT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:
A. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,
B. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City
Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated m the official copies offhe Jersey City Code.
C. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law. .
D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any
chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals
that there is a conflict between fhose numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible .
repealers of existing provisions.
E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the
adoption of this Ordinance to the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto
pursuant to NJ.S.A. 40:55D"15 andNJ.S.A. 40;55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption of this Ordmance after
public hearing thereon, fhe City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy of the
Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by NJ.S.A. 40:5SD-l6. _The
clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of this Ordinance after final passage to the Mimicipal Tax Assessor as
required byNJ.SA. 40:49-2.1.

Robert D. Cotter, FAICP, PP, Director
Division of City Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM . APPROVEt

APPROVED^
Corporalton Counsel . Susiriess Administrator

Certification Required 0

Not Required Q



ORDINANCE FACT SHEET - NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet Is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.

Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with fhe resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE
ADOPTING THE WEST BERGEN-EAST LINCOLN PARK HISTORIC DISTRICT AS A
MUNICIPAL mSTORIC DISTRICT

Inittator
DepartmenVDivision
Name/Title
Phone/email

HEDC
Robert Cotter, PP, FAICP

201-547-5010

City Planning

Director

bobbyc@jcnj,org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

This Ordinance will accept the recommendations of the Historic Preservation Commission-and the Planning

Board that the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District, already on the State Register of Historic Places,

and in the process of being listed on the National Register of Historic Places, be listed in Chapter 345-30 of the
City Code, the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance as a Municipal Historic District. The inclusion of the
District on fee Municipal Register of Historic places would protect the unique character of the neighborhood
and the historic resources within the district through review of applications of development by fhe Jersey City
Historic Preservation Commission.

I certif^Siat all)the facts pi^sented herein are accurate. ^ ^

3//&//S-
S\^wcteree^Sp^^ent^Director Date

G:\Land Development Ordinance Amendments\Article V\Hisforic District\2015-West Seigen East Lincoln ParkWest Bergen Fact Sheet.doc^



Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

Division of City Planning

Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

March 16, 2015

Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Bob Cotter

Brian J. Blazak, Historic Preservation Specia,
Dan Wrieden, Historic Preservation Office 'wy

SUBJECT: West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic D4stHdl

The proposed amendment adds the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District to
the Municipal Register of Historic Places and consequently amends chapter 345 of the
City Code, the Land Development ordinance §30 G. The Ordinance will overlay the
area with Historic District Designation

This amendment was initiated by members of the community in order to protect their
neighborhood from inappropriate development which would adversely affect the special
character and integrity of the West Bergen East Lincoln Park Historic District. The
district, with the current recommended boundaries has already been listed on the State
Register and shall soon be listed on the National Register. It is strongly recommended
that the existing boundaries be adopted by the City to be coterminous with the State
and National designation.

It is our conclusion that given the information in the West Bergen East Lincoln Park
Historic District Nomination report prepared by Hunter Research Inc. that it is important
that the special architectural, historic, and social character of the area be preserved in
the District. The Historic Preservation Commission shall review applications for
development in accordance with the provisions of the Historic Preservation Standards
in Chapter 345-71 of the City Code and the Secretary of the Interiors Standards and
Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties. This will help to protect the area
whilst encouraging appropriate, compatible rehabilitation of irreplaceable historic
buildings while allowing for new growth and development which shall not harm the
integrity of the neighborhood.



SUMMARY STATEMENT

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
WEST BERGEN-EAST LINCOLN PARK HISTORIC DISTRICT AS A MUNICIPAL HISTORIC DISTRICT

This Ordinance will accept the recommendations of the Historic Preservation Commission and the
Planning Board fhat the West Bergen-East Lincoln Park Historic District, already on the State Register of
Historic Places, and in the process of being listed on the National Register of Historic Places, be listed in
Chapter 345-30 of the City Code, the Jersey City Land Development Ordinance as a Municipal Historic
District. The inclusion of the District on the Municipal Register of Historic places would protect the
unique character of the neighborhood and the historic resources within the district through review of

applications of development by the Jersey City Historic Preservation Commission.

G:\L and Development Ordinance Atnendment3\ArticIeV\HistorieDistrict\20i5-WestBergen East Lincoln ParkWest Bergen-East Lmcoln Park Summary SIieet.doc
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